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December 31, 1997

To the Citizens of Illinois. Governor Edgar
and Members of the Illinois General Assembly:

oday 1 am releasing the State of Illinois Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report (“CAFR") for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 1997. This year’s CAFR presents the

State of Illinois’ financial position and results of opera-
tions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) as prescribed in pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™). This audited report enables you to assess the steward-
ship entrusted to the State in a manner that is consistent with other governments and consistent
from year to year.

This year's CAFR reveals a $500 million or 53% improvement in the State's General Fund.
The fund deficit in the General Fund decreased from $951 million at June 30. 1996 to $451 mil-
lion at June 30. 1997. With the healthy economy, the State benefits in the short term from high-
er tax revenues and interest earnings. However, we must be prepared for the long term and a
potential downturn of the economy. For example, under the new GASB pension standard the
State’s retirement systems were underfunded by $1.4 billion during the current fiscal year. I will
continue to monitor and report on both the short and long term condition of the State.

This report contains three sections: the introductory, the financial, and the statistical and eco-
nomic sections. Responsibility for the accuracy of the data as well as the completeness and fair-
ness of presentation of this report rests with my Office and other State agency management.
This report necessarily includes certain amounts which are based on management’s best esti-
mates and judgments.

This CAFR includes a copy of the 13th Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting awarded to the State of Illinois by the Government Finance Officers Association for
the State’s previous CAFR, published in 1996. This certificate is a prestigious national award
recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local govern-
mental financial reports.

This CAFR differs from the thirteen that have preceded it in an important respect. For the first
time in Illinois, and for the first time by any state or local government issuer of a CAFR., it
includes measurement information, on an experimental basis about the results, accomplish-
ments, and performance of Illinois state government beyond just disclosures of financial condi-
tion and operations.



| have consistently expressed my belief that accountability that only reports how much govern-
ment spent, and what that spending bought, is insufficient. Citizens are also entitled to know what
are the results of the expenditure of our tax dollars? The missing piece of accountability has been
what services have been provided. in quantity and quality, and what public purposes served, how
well, at what cost?

The history of efforts to measure and use government performance or results information is a long
one, and is summarized as background in a following section. But the most recent development
has come from the GASB, the authoritative body that promulgates the GAAP that all state and
local CAFRs must follow. GASB has said that one of the subobjectives of CAFR reporting is “to
provide information to assist users in assessing the service efforts, costs, and accomplishments of
the governmental entity.” Consistent with that conclusion regarding objectives, GASB has
encouraged state and local CAFR issuers to experiment with the inclusion of government service
efforts, and accomplishments information (“SEA™). Such experimentation is expected to be a nec-
essary precondition to GASB adoption of authoritative guidance for the inclusion of SEA informa-
tion in all state and local government CAFRs.

As reflected by the following correspondence, this Illinois CAFR has been designated as a
GASB SEA experimentation effort for the purpose of the national discussion regarding govern-
ment performance accountability. Throughout the report you will find examples of different
kinds of performance and service measures. For this first experimental effort we worked with the
various agencies in an ad hoc process to capture illustrative examples. At the same time we are
also working to create processes that will provide SEA measures on a systematic and comprehen-
sive basis in the future.

[ wish to extend my appreciation to the various Illinois agencies, offices, and boards who assisted
us in this pilot effort in government accountability. We all hope this effort in Illinois will con-
tribute to the national dialogue on government SEA-Performance accountability, and more
parochially also begin to tell Illinoisians something about the results of the expenditure of their tax
dollars.

Sincerely,

Stcts Moticibn,

LOLETA DIDRICKSON
Comptroller

Vi



GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD rw

401 Merritt 7, P.O. Box 5116, Norwalk, Connecticut 06856-5116 / 203-847-0700
Fax: 203-849-9714

April 2, 1997

The Honorable Loleta A, Didrickson
Comptroller

State of Illinois

State House

Springfield, IL 62706

Dear Comptroller Didrickson:

We arg pleased to formally announce the designation of the State of Illinois as a GASB
service efforts and accomplishments (SEA) experimentation site.

As you are aware, the Board is leading and sponsoring research into how governmental
financial reports can be strengthened by including measures on SEA, in addition to
traditional financial data and information. Measuring and reporting program performance,
as part of overall financial reporting, remains one of the GASB’s three major objectives
for governmental financial reporting.

As a basis for establishing standards for SEA reporting, we have been strongly
encouraging state and local governments to undertake experiments in developing and
selecting SEA indicators, gathering data for these indicators, and devising methods for
presenting and explaining the information.

Over the past year we have become aware of your desire and commitment to strengthen
accountability not only for how funds were spent, but also for what the spending
accomplished. We are especially interested in Illinois’ efforts because of your plan to
incorporate various SEA measures into the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). The annual financial report is the primary vehicle for accountability by
governments, and we believe it remains a viable place for reporting SEA information.

Your initiative not only offers Illinois a timely opportunity for leadership on this important
and evolving issue, but also advances the Board’s view that SEA reporting is fundamental
both to governmental decision making and public accountability. We heartily applaud .
your leadership, wish you the best in your efforts, and assure you that we are here to
support and assist in any way we can. Please feel free to call on us.

Sincerely,

dlh_ AQ Qe

Tom L. Allen David R. Bean
Chairman Director of Research
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COMPTROLLER

Loieta A. Didrickson

December 31, 1997

The Honorable Jim Edgar
Governor

State of Illinois

207 State House
Springfield, Illinois 62706

Dear Governor Edgar:

It is my pleasure to present to you the Stare of
IHlinois  Comprehensive  Annual  Financial
Report (“CAFR”) for the year ended June 30,
1997. The CAFR is the State's official annual
report and provides the readers with the financial
position of the State at June 30, 1997. and results
of operations during the fiscal year. The report is
intended to provide the State’s managers,
investors and creditors, taxpayers, the legislature,
and other users with information in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”). The statements are presented using
the “pyramid” approach to governmental financial
reporting as prescribed in pronouncements of the
Governmental ~ Accounting  Standards  Board
(“GASB"). Responsibility for the accuracy of the
data as well as the completeness and fairness of
presentation of this report rests with my Office
and other State agency management. This report
necessarily includes certain amounts which are
based on management’s best estimates and
judgments.

The CAFR is composed of the following sections:
introductory:  financial: and statistical and
economic. The introductory section includes the
table of contents, the Comptroller’s letter of
transmittal and SEA Performance Measurement
Overview, and the State's organization chart. The
financial section includes the Auditor General's

report on the financial statements, the general
purpose financial statements, required
supplementary information and the combining and
individual fund financial statements and
schedules. The statistical and economic section
includes selected demographic and business data,
generally on a multi-year basis, and SEA
Performance Measurement Overview/Illustrations

consistent with our GASB experimentation
designation.
The accompanying financial statements are

prepared in conformity with GAAP applicable to
state governments as prescribed by the GASB.
This office strongly supports the GASB,
contributed to its formation and participates in the
development of pronouncements, providing
testimony at public hearings and submitting
comments and recommendations as proposed
standards are distributed for exposure.

The CAFR includes all funds, account groups.
elected offices, departments and agencies of the
State, as well as all boards, commissions.
authorities, universities and colleges for which the
State’s executive or legislative branches are
financially accountable. The financial statements
distinguish ~ between  primary  government
organizations and component units. The primary
government is the nucleus of the financial



reporting entity and is the focal point for the users
of the financial statements. The primary
government of the State consists of all the
organizations that make up its legal entity. All
funds, departments, agencies. offices and other
organizations that are not legally separate are, for
financial reporting purposes, part of the State or
another entity’s primary government. Component
units are legally separate organizations for which
the State is financially accountable.

The financial activities of the State are organized
on the basis of individual funds and account
groups, each of which is a separate accounting
entity segregated for the purpose of carrying out
specific activities or attaining certain objectives in
accordance with specific regulations, restrictions
and limitations. The reporting entity, fund types
and account groups are described in detail in Note
1 to the financial statements.

To ensure readability of the financial statements,
generally only funds with total assets, liabilities,
fund equity. revenues or expenditures greater than
2% of the total for that fund type (except special
revenue funds where .5% is used) are presented
separately in the combining statements,

Combination of funds is necessary due to the
existence of more than 700 funds in the State’s
reporting entity. Funds used by more than one
agency are classified with what is determined to
be the primary administering agency.

Universities. colleges and their related foundations
and alumni associations are reported as “discretely
presented component units,” The Combined
Statements of Changes in Fund Balances and
Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Other
Changes for university and college funds are
presented separately within the general purpose
financial statements in conformity with GAAP.

An organizational chart, showing the relationships
of the three branches of Illinois State government
and those of the various agencies, boards.,
commissions and colleges and universities which
provide a full range of State government services,
is presented on pages xliv and xlv.



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following balance sheet and operating
statements have been condensed from the
statements included in the State of Illinois

Comprehensive  Annual

Financial

Report

utilizing the “memorandum only” column of the

primary government.

State of Illinois
Balance Sheet - Primary Government
Amounts (in millions)
FY 1997 FY 1996

AsS er debits
Cash $§ 8792 % 7.485
Investments 36,940 28.083
Receivahles. net 6.466 6.154
lixed assets 4,909 4.654
Other assets 1,522 1.511
Other dehits 19,718 20.204
Total assets and other debits $ 78347 $  68.91
Liabilities
Payables $ 0 8602 % 8.404
Pension liability 10.557 11.026
Bonds outstanding 8.507 5,412
Depository and other 6.018 5476
Other 2,332 2.281
Total liabilities 36.016 35.599
Investment in fixed assets 4.834 4,588
Gieneral (431) (V32)
Special revenue 2.683 2.346
Debt service th3Y 530
Capital projects 135 217
Proprietary 281 227
Trust 34,210 25.536
Total fund equity 42.331 32,492
Total liabilities and fund balances/

retained earnings $ 78347 § 68,091

State of Hlinois

Operating Statement - Primary Government

Amounts (in millions)

FY1997 FY 1996
ven
Taxes -
Income $ 7932 % 7.350
Sales 6.823 6.520)
Other taxes 5:179 5.146
Federal government 8.910 8410
Charges for sales and services 2.628 2.666
Interest income 5.583 3,055
Contributions 1.593 1.478
Licenses and fees 1078 1.021
Other 1.412 1.131
41.138 36.777
Health and social services 9.290 8.732
iducation 6,132 5.753
Cieneral government/administrative 5.149 5.076
Social assistance 3.873 4.132
Transportation 2.698 2.627
Public protection and justice 1,613 1,481
Debl service 944 941
Benelit payments and refunds 2,614 2,553
Prizes and claims 827 839
(Other 1,222 1.112
34,362 33,246
Net other sources {(uses) and
nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1.16%) (728)
Excess of revenues over expendi-
tures and net other uses $ 5607 % 2.803




Assets (and “other debits”)

Total assets (and other debits) of the State of requiring reporting those assets at “fair value.”
[linois at June 30, 1997 were over $78 billion. Cash/cash equivalents increased $1.3 billion
This was an increase of $10.3 billion (15.1%) over reflecting higher cash balances at June 30 in State
fiscal year 1996. The largest increase was in the treasury and at the pension systems ($414 million
State’s investments ($8.7 billion increase in increase).

State’s pension funds for accounting changes

Comparison of Total Assets (in millions) *
% change
Account FY 1997 FY97 % From 1996 FY1996
Investments $ 36,940 47 1% 31.5% § 28,083
Cash & cash equivalents 8,792 11.2% 17.5% 7.485
Receivables 6,466 8.3% 5.1% 6.154
Fixed assets 4,909 6.3% 5.5% 4,654
Other assets 1,522 1.9% 0.7% 1.511
Other debits 19,718 25.2% ( 24%) 20,204
Total Assets 3 78.347 100.0% 1515 '3 68.091
*The above numbers include primary government funds only.

Total Assets-Primary Government
June 30, 1997 (in millions)

Other debits

$19,718
25%
Invastments
Other Assets $36,940
$1,522 47%
2%

Fixed assels
$4,909

%

Receivables
56,466 Cash/equivalents
8% $8,792
11%

xii



Liabilities

Total liabilities increased to $36.0 billion at June
30, 1997, $417 million (1.2%) greater than fiscal
year 1996. Depository and other liabilities
increased $542 million (primarily deferred
compensation, child support, and ‘“‘securities
lending” at the Universities Retirement System)
and the State’s pension liability decreased $469

million which reflects the implementation of the
new pension accounting standards for fiscal year
1997. The State’s payables increased $198
million although “governmental fund” payables
(including Medicaid) increased only about $18
million or less than .5%.

Comparison of Total Liabilities (in millions) *
% change

Account FY1997 FY97 % From 1996 FY 1996
Payables 5 8.602 23.9% 24% & 8.404
Pension liability#* 10,557 29.3% ( 4.3%) 11,026
General obligation bonds 5.655 15.7% -- 5.657
Special obligation bonds 1,885 5.2% 0.2% 1.881
Revenue bonds 967 2.7% 10.6% 874
Depository & other 6,018 16.7% 9.9% 5476
Other 2,332 6.5% 2.3% 2,281
Total Liabilities 5 36.016 100.0% 12% $ 35,599
*The above numbers include primary government funds only.
*#See page xxiv for [urther information,

Depository & other Other
56,018 52,332
1 7% O

Revenue bonds
5967

3%

Special obligation bonds
51,885
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General obligation bonds
S5.655
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Total Liabilities-Primary Government
June 30, 1997 (in millions)
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Pension liability™™
$10.557
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Fund Balances and Retained Earnings

The fund balances for all primary government
funds combined was $42.3 billion at June 30,
1997 representing a 30% increase from fiscal year

value™ of assets and implementation of the new
GASB pension standards, the Special Revenue
Funds ($337 million), and general fixed assets

1996. The majority of the increases were in the ($246 million).

pension trust funds ($8.6 billion) reflecting “fair

Comparison of Total Fund Balances (Deficits)
and Retained Earnings (in millions) *

Fund Types/ % change
Account Group FY 1997 FY97 % From 1996 FY1996
General $(451) (1.1%) 52.6% )51
Special Revenue 2,683 6.4% 14.4% 2.346
Debt Service 639 1.5% 20.6% 530
Capital Projects 135 0.3% (37.8%) 217
Proprietary 281 0.7% 23.8% 227
Trust 34.210 80.8% 34.0% 25,536
General fixed assets 4,834 11.4% 54% 4.588
Total Fund Balances $ 42,331 100.0% 30.3% $ 32493
*The above numbers include primary government funds only.

Fund Balances and Equity
June 30, 1997 (in millions)

1 $34,210
Trust

. $4,834
General fixed assels ex

Proprietary ‘I 5281
Capital Projects g ..

Debt Service

Special Revenue §

General D

5(451)4

$- $ 5,000 $ 10,000 $ 15,000 $ 20,000 $ 25,000 $ 30,000 $ 365,000
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General Governmental Functions

The governmental fund types are those through
which most State functions are financed. These
fund types (the general. special revenue, capital
projects, and debt service funds) are presented on
the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Throughout the year, the Comptroller’s Office
publishes a monthly Fiscal  Focuns  which
summarizes the status of governmental fund
revenues and expenditures and analyzes various

programs and activities. ~ These reports are

available on request.

Revenues

Revenues on the modified accrual basis are
recognized when they are both measurable and
available to finance current operations. Revenues
(amounts expressed in millions) from various
sources for fiscal years 1997 and 1996 are as
follows:

1%

$8,887
Federal
29%

$1.003 $1.232

Public utility
4%

51,664
Qther luxes

507 L

Increase Percentage
Amount Percentage of Total (Decrease)  Incr (Decr)
Revenue Source 1997 1996 1997 1996 from 1996 from 1996

Taxes:
Income 5 7.032 % 7.350 26% 26% % 582 8%
Sales 6.823 6.520 22% 23% 303 5%
Motor fuel 1,232 1,197 4% 4% 35 3%
Public utility 1.093 1.047 4% 4% 46 4%
Other 1.664 1.696 5% 6% (32 (2%)
Federal government 8,887 8.387 29% 29% 500 6%
Licenses & fees 1,078 1,021 4% 3% 57 6%
Interest/investment 248 240 1 % 1% ] kL
Other 1.371 1.063 5% 4% 308 29%
Total $ 30328 § 28,521 100% 100% 3 1,807 6%

FY97 Governmental Fund Revenues
$1,078
Licensesfiees $248 51.371
4% Int/invest Other $7.932
5% Income fixes

Maotor fuel

26%

$6.823

Sales taxes
22%
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Fiscal year 1997 governmental funds revenues
increased by $1.807 million (6%) over 1996
revenues. State-imposed taxes including income,
sales, motor fuel, public utility, and miscellaneous
other taxes remained the largest overall revenue
source for fiscal year 1997 and comprised nearly
62% of total State revenues.

Income Tax

Income tax revenues, the State’s largest tax
revenue source, increased $582 million (8%) from
fiscal year 1996. The increase is generally the
result of an improved economy and resulting
growth in personal and corporate income taxes.

Sales Taxes

Sales taxes remained the second largest tax
revenue source for fiscal year 1997. increasing
$303 million (5%) from fiscal year 1996. The
increase is due to general growth in retail sales in
an improved economy.

Federal Government Revenues

Federal government revenues increased $500
million (6%) during fiscal year 1997 and continue
as the second largest revenue source on a GAAP
basis for 1997 (second only to the State-imposed
taxes discussed above). The most significant
increase was at the Department of Public Aid
where revenues of the General Fund increased
$187 million for federal government Medicaid
reimbursement revenues. Secondly, federal
government reimbursement revenues of the
Medicaid assessment program accounts within the
General Fund increased $144 million. The
accounts and the increases (decrease) were:
County Hospital Services Provider Fund, $99
million: University of Illinois Hospital Services
Provider Fund, $34 million; Long-Term Care
Provider Fund, $19 million; and the Hospital
Provider Fund, ($11 million).

Other significant increases occurred in the Road
Fund ($136 million increase) administered by the
Department of Transportation. The increase is
attributable to the federal highway program and
more timely billing on completed projects.
Revenues at the Illinois Emergency Management
Agency increased $39 million in the Federal Aid

XVi

Disaster Fund because of July, 1996 flooding in
Northern Illinois and March, 1997 flooding of the
Ohio River in Southeastern Illinois.

Federal government revenues at the Department of
Children and Family Services (Children Services’
Fund) increased $36 million due to maximization
of reimbursable expenditures and general program
increases.

Other Revenues

Other revenues increased $308 million or 29%
during the current fiscal year. The increase is due
to increased activity in the Medicaid program.
primarily in the county hospital services program.



Expenditures

Expenditures for governmental fund types are
presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting and are generally recognized when the
liability is incurred regardless of when payment

is made. Expenditures (amounts expressed in
millions) for major governmental fund functions
in fiscal year 1997 and 1996 were as follows:

Percentage Increase Percentage
Amount of Total (Decrease) Incr (Decr)
Expenditure Function 1997 1996 1997 1996 from 1996 from 1996
Health and social services b 9289 & 8732 329 3% 557 0%
lzducation 6,132 5.753 21% 214 379 7%
General government 4,964 4914 1 7% 18% 50 1%
Social assistance 2.631 2,843 Y% 10% (212) (T%)
Transportation 2.698 2,627 1 0% 10% 71 3%
Public protection & justice l.613 1.451 6% 5% 132 9%
Natural resources/recreation 418 363 1 % 1% 53 5%
Debt service 944 890 3% 3% 54 6%
Capital outlays 375 366 1% 1% Y 2%
Total $ 29.064 § 27.971 1 00% 100% % 1,093 4%
- e R et
FY97 Governmental Fund Expenditures
S418
Natural resour- $375
31 '(Ti 3 ; ces/recreation Capital outlays
Public protection & justice 1% 044 1%
0% Debt service $9.289
3¢ Health and social services

$2,698
lransportition
10%

52.631
Social assistance

(V142

54,964
General government
17%

32%

56,132
Education

21%

Governmental funds expenditures of $29,064
million in fiscal year 1997 increased $1,093
million (4%) over 1996 and were $1,264 million
less than revenues on a GAAP basis.

Health and Social Services Expenditures

Health and social services expenditures of $9.3
billion were the largest expenditure function for
fiscal year 1997, increasing by $557 million (6%)
over fiscal year 1996, This expenditure function is
32% of total spending on a GAAP basis.



increasing slightly from 31% in fiscal year 1996,
Significant fluctuations were: a $232 million
increase in Medicaid expenditures in the General
Fund (including the Medicaid assessment program
accounts) primarily for hospitals: Department of
Mental Health-increase of $126 million in General
Fund expenditures primarily for payments to
Medicaid recipients at intermediate care facilities:
Department of Children and Family Services-
increases of $95 million in the General Fund for
operational expenditures for foster care. adoption
and other programs formerly split between the
Childrens’ Services Fund and the General Fund.
Department of Public Health expenditures in the
General Fund increased $41 million primarily for
the Medicaid Family Case Management program
formerly administered by Public Aid.

Education Expenditures

Education expenditures were once again the
second largest expenditure function in the
governmental funds for fiscal year 1997.
Education expenditures increased $379 million
(7%) from fiscal year 1996 on a GAAP basis.

Significant education expenditure increases that
reflect the budgetary emphasis on education in
fiscal year 1997 were at the State Board of
Education where expenditures increased $190
million in the General Fund and $53 million in the
Education Assistance Fund.

Other education expenditure increases were in the
State Board of Education Federal Department of
Education Fund ($24 million increase) for
increased eligible reimbursements and in the
Special Education Medicaid Matching Fund ($24
million increase) where more children received
Medicaid services provided by local school
districts. The Teachers’ Retirement System
received $53 million more in fiscal year 1997
from the State’s Common School account within
the General Fund to pay the employer contribution
of local school district teachers as required by law.

Social Assistance Expenditures

Social assistance expenditures decreased $212
million (7%) from the last fiscal year. The largest
decrease was in the food stamp program
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administered by Public Aid where expenditures
decreased $121 million.  The decrease is
attributable to fewer individuals eligible to receive
food stamps. Other significant decreases occurred
at the Department of Public Aid in the General
Fund ($50 million decrease in Aid to Families
with Dependent Children (“AFDC"), Aged, Blind
and Disabled. and other social assistance
programs) and the Child Support Enforcement
Trust Fund ($49 million decrease due to timing
differences and shortened lapse period even
though the program increased for fiscal year
1997).

Another significant decrease in social service
expenditures occurred at the Department of
Employment Security ($49 million) in the
Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund for
lower benefits payments to unemployed
individuals because of improvement in the
employment rate in the State.

Public Protection and Justice Expenditures

Public protection and justice expenditures
increased $132 million (9%) from fiscal year 1996
to 1997. A significant expenditure increase
occurred at the Department of Corrections in
conjunction with increased inmate population and
at the new Tamms prison and the Illinois Youth
Correctional Facility at Murphysboro ($56 million
increase). Expenditures increased $39 million in
the Federal Aid Disaster Fund resulting from
floods in July, 1996 in northern [llinois and in
March, 1997, in southeastern Illinois.

Internal Control

Each State agency's management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal control
designed to ensure that the assets of the State are
protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. The State's internal control is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost
of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and



benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

On October 31, 1989 the Fiscal Control and
Internal Auditing Act (“FCIAA™) became law,
requiring all State agency chief executive officers
to annually certify the adequacy of internal control
in place within their agencies. The first annual
certifications by State agency CEOs were due
November 15, 1990. Subsequent certifications are
due May 1" each year. The FCIAA also requires
that certain agencies have a chief internal auditor
with a specified minimum level of professional
competency.

Budgetary Controls

The Comptroller’s Uniform Statewide Accounting
System (*CUSAS") provides the basis for receipt.
expenditure and encumbrance reporting of all
State treasury held funds with specific budgetary
controls maintained on line-item expenditures for
all appropriated funds. Appropriations (budget)
and actual expenditure analysis for significant
individual funds is provided in the Budgetary
Schedules section of this report. A reconciliation
between the GAAP and budgetary basis of
accounting is presented in Note 2 of the financial
statements. The budgetary system (i.e., CUSAS)
classifies funds into traditional groupings which
do not conform with the fund type classifications
set forth by the GASB: therefore, a reclassification
of budget categories to GAAP financial statement
fund types also is presented in Note 2.

Effective July 1, 1996, Illinois’ “lapse period” was
reduced from three to two months. During
Ilinois’ two-month lapse period. July | to August
31, State agencies can expend funds appropriated
in the prior fiscal year if encumbered by June 30.
For all fund types, goods or services received prior
to June 30 are recorded as liabilities and
expenditures or expenses, whichever is
appropriate. For governmental fund types, lapse
period expenditures for goods or services
encumbered as of June 30 and received prior to
August 31 are reported with other encumbrances
as reservations of June 30 fund balances and not
as liabilities or expenditures.
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Investment Management

The Illinois State Treasurer is responsible for
investing all cash resources of the State, with the
exception of those held by the retirement systems
and certain debt service, enterprise, agency,
universities’ and colleges” endowments and other
locally-held funds. Of the five retirement systems,
three pool their resources for investment and two
invest their resources under investment master
trustee arrangements with individual investment
managers. The universities and colleges are
granted independent powers to invest their funds
which are held outside the State Treasury. Interest
income earned on the cash resources received and
invested by the State Treasurer is allocated to the
various funds (where specified by law) based on
the average daily cash balances invested. A
comparison of the State’s investments at June 30,
1997. 1996, 1992, and 1988 is presented on page
XX.

State agencies had $9.7 billion more invested at
June 30, 1997 than at June 30, 1996. A portion of
this increase is attributable to the State’s new
accounting treatment for pension funds (GASB
Statement 27) that requires investments to be
presented at fair value.  Also. interest and
investment income increased $2.5 billion. This
increase can be attributed mainly to the State’s
pension systems. The implementation of GASB
Statement 27 requires the net appreciation (or
depreciation) of investments to be recorded as
income (or expense).

Agreements signed between the State of [llinois
and the Financial Management Service of the U.S.
Treasury (“FMS™) since July 1993, set out
procedures for drawing federal funds and methods
for computing interest liabilities for programs
subject to the federal Cash Management
Improvement Act (“CMIA"). Illinois submitted
the fiscal year 1996 CMIA Annual Report in
December 1996, and after review by FMS paid the
federal government $2.4 million in State interest
liabilities by the March, 1997, due date.



Comparison of Investment Portfolios at June 30,
(In millions)
1997 1996 1992 1988
Investment Type Amount %  Amount %  Amount %  Amount %

Corporate Equity Securities $ 13513 29% $ 8747 24% § 6862 29% F 4576 3%
Mutual Funds 11,963 25% 8458 23% 1,508 6% 1,724 12%
U.S. Treasury & Agency Obligations 8.151 17% 6849  19% 4197  18% 3731 2%
Corporate Debt Securities 4538  10% 4,741 13% 5160 22% 1.966 13%
Tangible Property 2,631 6% 2,767 6% 2,176 99 933 6%
Repurchase Agreements 3197 7% 3164 9% 2495 10% 1.665 11%
Commercial Paper 1,833 4% 1,291 3% 380 2% 199 2%
Investment Contracts 844 2% 056 3% 906 4% — -
Totals $ 46670 100% $ 36973 100% § 23684 100% $ 14800 100%

—_— e Y

Cash Management

The State of Illinois” daily activities are operated
on a “cash basis,” where bills are paid with the
available balances of cash on hand.  The
Comptroller, chief fiscal officer of the State of
[llinois, maintains the State’s central fiscal
accounts and is responsible for ordering all
payments into and out of the funds held by the
State Treasurer. The State’s cash flow situation
improved again during fiscal year 1997. The
General Fund’s available balance at June 30, 1997
was $806 million. This was $381 million greater
than the balance at June 30, 1996. The cash
balance generally is affected by the same events
previously  discussed in  the  General
Governmental Functions Section.

The General Fund includes the three school and
General Revenue Fund accounts which administer
nearly 42% of the State’s annual expenditures.
The General Revenue Fund is also the State's
basic operating fund. funding at least a portion of
the operating budgets of every major agency.
Nearly all of the $381 million improvement
occurred in the General Revenue Fund account.

General Fund

Many State programs are accounted for in the
General Fund. As demonstrated by the tables on
page xxi (in millions), the State’s GAAP basis
financial position at June 30, 1997 improved from
fiscal year 1996. The fund deficit in the State’s
General Fund decreased by $500 million on a
GAAP basis (from a deficit $951 million to a
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deficit $451 million). (On the budgetary basis,
there was a $45 million fund balance at June 30,
1997 compared to a $292 million deficit at June
30, 1996, a $337 million improvement).

The undesignated fund deficit on a GAAP basis
also decreased by $526 million from a deficit of
$1.130 billion to a deficit of $604 million.
Revenues and transfers-in exceeded expenditures
and transfers-out in the General Fund by $500
million in fiscal year 1997.

The General Fund improvement is reflected by the
assets increasing by 27% trom fiscal year 1996 to
1997, including higher cash, investments and
taxes receivable balances. The State's payables
and other liabilities increased only (5%) for the
same period.  Also, General Fund revenues
increased by $1.5 billion (8%) while expenditures
increased $861 million (5%). Increased income,
sales. and other taxes in a healthy economy
outpaced expenditures during fiscal year 1997.



Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
Fund Balance #Undesignated (under) expenditures and net other
(deficit) Fund (deficit) at financing sources (uses) for the year
at June 30 June 30 ended June 30
USR8 §(335) $(511) §232
1989 (74) {(256) 281
19940) (3537) (743) (482)
[991 (1.368) (1.537) (806)
1992 (1.656) (1.825) (306)
1993 (1.916) (2.06(0) (260)
1994 (1.595) (1,731 324
1995 (1.204) (1.404) 388
1996 (951) (1,130 252
1997 {451) (604) S0
B The amount in (he Tund balance available (unavailable) for appropriation.
General Fund Deficits
FY 1988-97 (in millions)
$2,000 -
$1,800 -
51,600
$1,400
$1,200 -
$1,000 - $(1.916)
$800 - 5(1.656) $(1.595)
§(1.368) .
$200 s7o LS s(4s1)
5-
§ & &8 &8 3 &8 & & § 3

Expendable Trust Funds “UT") system is a joint state-federal program
designed to provide cash assistance to
involuntarily unemployed workers regardless of
need. During fiscal year 1997, the UI system
provided 6.3 million weeks of benefits to laid off
workers at an average weekly stipend for
recipients of regular benefits of $215. The State is
responsible for determining benefit levels and

Total revenues for the State’s expendable trust
funds decreased $29 million (2%) from $1.377
billion in fiscal year 1996 to $1.348 billion in
fiscal year 1997. Total expenditures decreased $27
million (2%) from $1.293 billion in 1996 to
$1.266 billion in 1997.

By far the largest expendable trust fund is the
State Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund
(“Trust Fund”). The unemployment insurance

eligibility criteria, and for setting State Ul tax
levels sufficient to pay the benefits. The federal
government provides all administrative funding



and mandates minimal coverage requirements. A
separate federal unemployment tax is assessed by
the federal government to finance these
administrative costs, provide a source of funds for
states to borrow against during periods of high
unemployment. and to pay the federal share of
extended and emergency unemployment benefits.

Because of the solvency problems experienced
with the Trust Fund in the late 1970’s and early
1980's, the members of the General Assembly
have worked closely with leaders of Illinois’ labor
and business communities to ensure the solvency
of the fund for its workers while guarding against
rapid growth of taxes on the employer community.
In 1987 and again in 1992, business, government,
and labor set out to revisit the issues surrounding
the administration of the Ul system. In 1992, most
of the language from the landmark 1987
legislation was carried forward. Illinois employers
will have realized tax savings of nearly $343
million over the life of the new agreement, while
benefits to unemployed workers will steadily
increase.

Current year revenues exceeded expenditures by
$86 million and the fund continues to be in a
fiscally sound position, as demonstrated by its
$2.0 billion fund balance at June 30, 1997. The
fiscal health of the fund has been so good that
legislation was signed into law in February, 1996
that reduced the minimum tax rate from 6% to
.5% and the maximum rate to 6.8% from 8.2%.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are the State’s “business-type”
activities and include enterprise and internal
service funds. Combined operating revenues for
the State’s enterprise funds were $1.889 billion in
fiscal year 1997 decreasing $22 million (1%) from
fiscal year 1996. Combined operating expenses
were $1.287 billion, up $6 million (less than 1%)
from fiscal year 1996. The only significant
fluctuation was at the Department of Lottery
where operating revenues decreased $25 million.

The State’s internal service funds which provide
data processing, motor pool vehicles, telephone
communications, printing services, self insurance

xxii

and other services to State agencies, operated on a
profitable basis for fiscal year 1997. Combined
internal service funds revenues and expenses for
fiscal year 1997 were $871 million and $663
million, respectively. This represents a decrease
of $25 million (3%) in revenues and a decrease of
$58 million (8%) in expenses from fiscal year
1996 to 1997. The decreases in both revenues and
expenditures are primarily attributable to the
Health Insurance Reserve Fund where a change in
accounting estimate was made for claims incurred
but not reported (“IBNR's™).

Component Units

Universities and Colleges. lllinois operates a
comprehensive program of higher education,
including nine State universities and support for a
statewide network of 49 community colleges. 103
private, not-for-profit institutions, 20 proprietary
institutions. and a student financial assistance
program. During fiscal year 1997, university and
college expenditures increased $198 million
(4.9%) over 1996. General Fund financial support
to the State’s universities increased by 2.6%, to
$1.233 billion, from fiscal year 1996 to fiscal year
1997. The support includes education and general
support from the general revenue and education
assistance accounts of the general fund as well as
general revenue account payments made to the
Universities Retirement System for payments on
behalf of the nine State public universities.

Proprietary. Certain business-type activities that
are not a part of the primary government are
included as component units. The largest
proprietary component units in terms of assets are
the Mlinois Toll Highway Authority and the
llinois  Housing  Development  Authority.
Combined proprietary fund component unit
operating revenues and expenses for the current
fiscal year were $631 million and $530 million,
respectively. This compares to revenues of $682
million and expenses of $676 million for fiscal
year 1996.



Debt Administration

On February 3, 1995, the Illinois general
obligation bond rating was lowered from “Aa” to
“Al1" by Moody's Investors Service. Standard &
Poor’s Corporation (“S & P") rating remained at
“AA-", General obligation bond ratings had
previously been adjusted downward in August
1992, from “Aal™ to “Aa” (Moody's) and from
“AA” to "AA-" (S & P) to reflect the Illinois cash
shortfall. Special obligation bond ratings
remained the same, ranging from “AAA” by S &
P for Build Illinois bonds to “A” by Moody’s for
Civic Center bonds. Among the states, [llinois is a
moderate debt state with outstanding general and
special obligation bonds at June 30, 1997 totaling
$7.540 billion. Bonds have been issued primarily
to provide funds for acquisition and construction
of capital facilities for higher education, public
and mental health, correction and conservation
purposes, and for maintenance and construction of
highway and waterway facilities. Bonds also have
heen issued to provide assistance to municipalities
for construction of sewage treatment facilities,
port districts, aquarium facilities, local schools,
mass transportation and aviation purposes, and to
fund research and development of coal and
alternative energy sources.

General and special obligation bonds aggregating
$435 million and $60 million, respectively, were
issued during fiscal year 1997 at average interest
rates ranging from 5.1% to 5.7%. During fiscal
year 1996, general and special obligation bonds
totaling $975 million and $80 million,
respectively, were issued at average rates ranging
from 5.1% to 5.7%. Debt service principal and
interest costs of $479.8 million and $359.7
million, respectively were paid in fiscal year 1997.
The dramatic increase since fiscal year 1980 is
displayed below and on page xxiv.
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General & Special Obligation Debt
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In addition to general and special obligation
bonds, Illinois has $4.688 billion of revenue
bonds., $102 million of notes payable and $1.838

billion of other long-term obligations outstanding

as of June 30, 1997,
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Retirement Systems

Total net assets of the State’s five pension trust
funds, on a “fair value” basis, aggregated $32.2
billion at June 30, 1997. During fiscal year 1997,
the State adopted GASB Statement 27,
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental — Employers. The statement
requires, among other things, that assets be valued
at fair value. The beginning fund balance
reserved for employees’ pension benefits in the
pension trust funds was restated, increasing by
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$4.0 billion to reflect fair value in accordance with
this standard (See note 3, Restatement of Fund
Balances).

The State’s pension trust funds simultaneously
implemented GASB Statement 25, Financial
Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and
Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans
in their stand-alone financial statements. GASB
Statements 25 and 27 rescind all previous




disclosures required by GASB Statement 5. The
new standards reduce some of the funding
disclosures required by the employer (i.e.. the
State of Illinois) and refers the reader to the
pension trust fund stand alone financial statements
for further information.

GASB Statement 27 also required the State to
restate its accrued retirement costs with a net
pension obligation (“NPO”) at transition in
accordance with certain parameters. The
beginning fund balance in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group was restated (reduced
by $1.9 billion) to reflect the State’s accrued
retirement costs at transition in accordance with
GASB Statement 27 (See note 3.).

Statement 27 focuses the reader of the State’s
CAFR on annual pension cost (“APC”) in
accordance with certain accounting parameters as
compared to the amount contributed. The State
retirement systems were underfunded by $1.4
billion during fiscal year 1997 and this amount
has been added to the NPO at transition in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
(See chart on previous page).

During fiscal year 1997, all of the State systems
were funded in accordance with the statutory
funding requirement. The new law enacted in
fiscal year 1996 provides for a 50-year funding
plan with a 15 year phase-in and a “continuing
appropriation.”  The continuing appropriation
provides the Comptroller’'s Office with the
authority to automatically provide funding to the
pension systems based on actuarial cost
requirements and amortization of the unfunded
liability without being subject to the General
Assembly’s appropriation process. However, the
State’s 50-year funding plan does not meet the
more stringent 40-year minimum amortization
“parameters” required to be reported in the State’s
financial statements in accordance with GASB
Statement 27.

Risk Management

The State’s risk  management  program
encompasses a wide range of State government
activities. Generally, the State has elected to
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retain most exposures to risk, with only limited
purchase of commercial insurance. Among the
exceptions are coverage for real property at the
James R. Thompson Center in Chicago. the State
Retirement Systems building, and the Regional
State Office complex in Collinsville. Limited
commercial coverage for personal property
includes a small portion of the State’s fleet of
motor  vehicles. certain  telecommunications
equipment, the fixed and rotary wing aircraft fleet,
some State watercraft, selected items of electronic
data processing equipment, a portion of the State’s
collection of fine art. as well as a small number of
other property and liability exposures.

The State retains workers’ compensation and auto
liability exposures, including claims management.
Other major retained risks include employee
fidelity and surety, as well as general liability. The
State’s risk management program also includes
legal representation and indemnification of
employees sued for violation of civil and
constitutional rights and other tort liabilities while
acting in an official capacity.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the Year. Major initiatives for the year
generally reflect the priorities set in the budgetary
process. Education, welfare reform, and prisons
were some of the “initiatives” mandated by the
General Assembly for fiscal year 1997. Other
initiatives are less visible but are nonetheless
important to state government. Some initiatives
undertaken by the State are discussed below.

Service Efforts and Accomplishments
(“SEAH)

As mentioned in my introductory letter to the
people of the State of Illinois, one of the financial
reporting areas in need of improvement is
measuring the performance by the government.
One of my initiatives is to explore the value of
SEA in financial reporting and set the stage for the
future of SEA. A section immediately after this
transmittal letter provides an overview of the
purposes, history, and issues regarding SEA. A
section in the statistical and economic section also



presents illustrations of SEA performance data.
SEA sections are highlighted with a blue border
for ease of reference.

Statewide Accounting Management System
(*SAMS”)

SAMS replaced the Comptroller’s Uniform
Statewide Accounting System (“CUSAS") on July
1. 1997. After the initial year, agencies will see
additional changes as the Comptroller’s Office
begins to take full advantage of the capabilities of
the new system. Some of these capabilities
include electronic report delivery, electronic
commerce, information warehouse queries,
electronic data interchange. electronic benefits
transfer, and use of the Internet and World Wide
Web.

Truth in Budgeting

Public Act 90-479, effective August 17, 1997,
requires budgets to be presented in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAP") for governments for the General
Revenue, Common School, Education Assistance,
Road, Motor Fuel Tax and Agriculture Premium
Funds. The act requires that for the above funds,
the General Assembly shall not enact
appropriations that exceed the resources estimated
to be available on a “GAAP basis.” The
legislation is effective for fiscal year 1999,

Receivables Reporting

The Comptroller’s Office has reported gross
receivables of $7.4 billion at June 30, 1997, for
statutory compliance reporting. Of that amount,
nearly $2.6 billion (35%) was estimated as
uncollectible. Of the net receivable ($4.8 billion),
$2.9 billion is over 180 days past due. Net
receivables for the total reporting entity in for
GAAP reporting totaled $8.7 billion.  The
difference is because the measurement focus and
basis of accounting differ for statutory and GAAP
receivables reporting.

The Comptroller’s Office will use recently enacted
legislation to improve debt collection in Illinois.
Under the new legislation’s last call provisions,
the Debt Collection Board is establishing
timetables and procedures for uncollected debt
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that is not subject to a repayment plan. These new
measures will assist State agencies in doing a
better job of bringing in delinquent dollars. Also,
the Comptroller has initiated efforts to benchmark
State agencies collection efforts and report the
results of those efforts.

House Bill 2251

On July 11, 1996, House Bill 2251 was signed
into law. This package of fiscal tools will have an
important impact on State government budgeting,
spending, revenue and debt collection practices.
A major component of the bill is the reduction of
the State’s “lapse period”. the time following the
end of the fiscal year used for paying bills incurred
by June 30th. This legislation reduced the lapse
period from 3 months to 2 for the 1 time in fiscal
year 1997, ending the practice of allowing fifteen
months of State spending out of twelve months of
revenue. The State is now able to close its books
sooner, which will allow for more timely financial
reporting to State lawmakers, policy makers and
other users.

The legislation also requires professional and
artistic and certain other contractual services to
meet the “GAAP” definition of a liability in order
to be paid during lapse period. That is, the
services must be both contracted and performed
by June 30 to be paid from the expiring
appropriation.

Pension Legislation

The State’s pension liability for the five state
sponsored retirement systems recorded in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at
June 30, 1997 is nearly $/0.6 billion. The
pension liability was restated to reflect the
requirements of GASB Statement 27, Accounting

for Pensions by State and Local Governmental

Employers.

P.A. 88-0593. effective for fiscal year 1996,
provided for a systematic 50-year funding plan
with an ultimate goal to fund the cost of
maintaining and administering the pension
systems at an actuarial funded ratio of 90%. The
legislation allows for a 15-year funding phase-in
period and  establishes a  “continuing”



appropriation, removing the appropriation of these
funds from the annual budgetary process and
requiring “automatic” funding in accordance with
the actuarial amounts. Although the legislation
does not meet the accounting parameters in
Statement 27, the Comptroller’s Office considers
the legislation a positive step and will monitor
compliance with this new law. For fiscal year
1997, the retirement systems were funded in
accordance with law,

Corrections

Significant emphasis was placed on public
protection and justice as evidenced by the
following initiatives by the Illinois Department of
Corrections:
e Opened workcamps in Pittsfield and
Vandalia, 800 beds total;

e Opened four new cellhouses of 448 beds
each at Dixon, Dwight, Graham and
Logan;

¢ New Illinois Youth Center juvenile boot
camp with 100 beds at Murphysboro was
opened;

e The Community Correctional Center at
Peoria, with 141 new beds, was opened:

¢ Added 50 new parole agents to staff.

For the Future Statewide accounting
changes. education, corrections, and human
services reorganization are some of the areas
where future initiatives are anticipated. These
future initiatives are discussed below.

Year 2000

One immediate benefit of SAMS will be that it
provides a solution to the year 2000 problem.

This is a common issue all organizations must
address related to their computer systems., As a
space saving convention, most computer systems
have been developed using a two digit fiscal year.
When the year 2000 arrives, these systems will not
be able to accommodate the four positions needed
to specify the new millennium. The cost for the
State to convert 85 separate accounting and
information systems is astronomical and it
becomes more expensive as time progresses. This

represents a large, unplanned expenditure that
State agencies must quickly address.

Education

During the 1997 school year, 1.910 million
students were enrolled in [llinois public
elementary and secondary schools. The State
Board of Education projects that public school
enrollments will increase to 1.944 million pupils
by the 2005 school year. On December 4, 1997
Public Act 90-548 was signed into law which will
have a significant impact on education in [llinois.
It provides for a “foundation level” per pupil of
$4.225 for the 1998-1999 school year, increasing
to $4,425 per pupil for the 2001-2002 school year
and thereafter. The foundation level is a figure
established by the State representing the minimum
level of per pupil financial support that should be
available OT provide for the basic education of
each pupil in Average Daily Attendance. The law
also  provides for school infrastructure
improvement and supplemental general state aid
to school’'s in areas with a low-income
concentration,

Corrections

Public protection continues to be a major focus of

the State in fiscal year 1998 and thereafter, Some

forthcoming corrections initiatives include:

® Opening of Tamms Supermax 500-bed prison,
designed to house the State’s most dangerous
inmates, is scheduled to open during fiscal
year 1998;

e Adding 100 juvenile staff at various facilities
in fiscal year 1998;

s Opening three day reporting centers and
Community Drug Intervention Programs;

e Two Community 400-bed Correctional
Centers are included in the budget for fiscal
year 1998.

Department of Human Services

Executive Order number three, effective July 1,
1997, created the Department of Human Services
and transferred to it all the rights, powers and
duties of the Department of Alcoholism and
Substance Abuse, Department of Mental Health
and Developmental Disabilities, and Department
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of Rehabilitation Services. The order also
transfers other rights, powers, and duties among
human service agencies. The goal of the
consolidation is to provide a responsive, effective
human services delivery system for the people of
Illineis in an efficient and financially accountable
manner without sacrificing quality.

ECONOMIC AND FISCAL
OUTLOOK

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Growth in foreign trade offers Illinois companies
extraordinary opportunities for new sales, but
opens Illinois markets to a world full of
opportunistic foreign companies. The true test of
an economy's competitiveness is how well it
meets this international competition.  Once
disparagingly referred to as part of the rust belt.
[llinois has instead developed a dynamic economy
that is a serious world trade participant.

Home to such major exporters as Caterpillar,
Motorola, and Abbott Labs, Illinois merchandise
exports totaled $32.2 billion during 1996 - fifth
highest among the states. Illinois exports have
grown rapidly in recent years. The value of
llinois exports increased 58.4% between 1993
and 1996 compared to a 34.0% increase in total
U.S. merchandise exports.

Manufacturing exports are led by industrial
machinery and computers with $8.2 billion in
exports in 1996 followed by electric and electronic
equipment  ($6.6 billion). Four  other
manufacturing sectors had exports valued over
$1 billion  including  chemical products
($4.2 billion), transportation equipment
($2.3 billion). food products ($1.6 billion). and
scientific and measuring instruments
($1.5 billion).

Ilinois ranked third in agricultural export sales in
1996 with total agricultural exports valued at
$4.0 billion. Specialization in corn and soybean
production is reflected in Illinois’ rank as the
second largest exporter of each crop.

Illinois’ success in international trade has been
based on technical expertise and a strong resource
base rather than low labor costs as the state has
maintained its position as one of the country's
wealthiest states. Illinois per capita income during
fiscal year 1997 stood at $27,609, 9.8% or $2,474
greater than the national average.

The Illinois economy takes advantage of its many
natural strengths. During 1996 the state was the
second largest producer of corn and soybeans and
the fourth largest producer of hogs. lIllinois
agri-business has developed to add value to these
products.  Illinois is the number one ethanol
producer among the states. With such major
[llinois companies as Archer Daniels Midland and
A.E. Staley (both headquartered in Decatur, the
soybean capital of the world), Illinois produces a
wide variety of specialized products based on corn
and soybeans.

Illinois continues to be home to major producers
of heavy equipment. Examples include
agricultural equipment (such as the Deere plants
in the Quad Cities), construction equipment
(Caterpillar, which is based in Peoria and is the
world's largest earth moving equipment company).
and machine tools (a specialty of the Rockford
area). Although manufacturing payrolls have been
trimmed in recent years, an average of 977,000
Mlinoisans held manufacturing jobs during fiscal
year 1997,

lllinois' central location makes it the logical
transportation hub for the nation. Illinois is home
to O'Hare airport. the nation's largest, and an
excellent highway and railroad network. The low
distribution costs from basing an operation in
Illinois allow for the continued generation of new
jobs in transportation and merchandising. During
fiscal year 1997, 336,000 Illinoisans were
employed in the transportation, communications,
and public utilities sector, while 1.3 million were
employed in wholesale and retail trade.

The state's role as the central distribution point for
agricultural commodities caused it to develop as
the world's leading futures market. Illinois
continues to be a national leader in financial
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industries such as banking, derivatives trading,
and insurance and is corporate headquarters for
many of the country's leading companies. During
fiscal year 1997, finance, insurance, and real
estate employed an average of 388,000 Illinoisans.

As home to 39 of the Fortune 500 companies,
lllinois ranked third among the states, trailing only
New York and California.

[llinois' reputation for research and technical
innovation are well founded. Illinois is home to
major government research laboratories such as
the Argonne National Laboratory and the Fermi
National Accelerator Lab, major private research
labs such as those operated by Amoco Oil and
Tellabs. major private universities including
Northwestern University and the University of
Chicago, and the state's network of nine public
universities including the University of Illinois
home of the Beckman Institute. The brainpower
generated from these institutions continues to
make Illinois a major center for technological
advancement and a logical location for the
production of advanced products.

Forecast for the Future

The most recent economic forecast for the [llinois
economy prepared by the consulting firm of
DRI/McGraw-Hill sees the Illinois employment
growth rate slowing over the next five years.
[llinois employment is forecast to increase at a
1.3% annual rate between 1997 and 1999 and at a
0.8% annual rate between 1999 and 2002. Across
the nation, employment growth is estimated at
between 1.8% and 1.1% during the same periods.
The study notes that the strengths of the Illinois
economy are its diversified economy including
high technology clusters, its role as the regional
center for trade and exports, and its skilled labor
force.

The longer term forecast expects continued growth
in the Hlinois economy, particularly in the service
sectors. Between 1997 and 2013, Illinois is
expected to add 683.000 jobs. an 11.9% increase.
Over 500,000 of these new jobs are expected to be
in services where employment is expected to
increase 30.4%. In contrast, manufacturing
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employment is expected to decline by 68,000 jobs
or 7.0% over the next sixteen years.

The long term forecast is vulnerable to unexpected
economic fluctuations. Traditionally, the Illinois
economy, with its emphasis on durable
manufacturing, has been extremely sensitive to the
business cycle. However, the increased emphasis
on services and finance in the Illinois economy
and better control over inventories by
manufacturers are likely to reduce the impact of
economic downturns on [llinois.

Long-Term Demographic Trends

The steady increase in the Illinois population is
expected to continue into the twenty-first century.
Illinois Bureau of the Budget estimates released in
1997 predict that the Ilinois population will

increase from 11.4 million in 1990 to 13.3 million
in 2020.

As the baby boom generation ages, there is
expected to be a shift in the age distribution of the
Illinois population that may have an impact on the
types of services demanded from state
government. In 1990, 39.8% of the Illinois
population was in the 20-44 age group and 18.7%
was in the 45-64 age group. In 2020, the portion
in the 20-44 bracket is expected to decline to
37.1% with the 45-64 share increasing to 22.0%.
As the baby boom reaches age 65 after 2015, the
population will age fairly quickly and a significant
increase in the proportion of elderly is expected.

FISCAL OUTLOOK

For the 4" consecutive year the State’s General
Fund GAAP balance improved, from a $951
million deficit in 1996 to a $451 million deficit in
1997. This $500 million improvement is nearly
double last year's increase. Fiscal year 1997 also
marked the 5" straight year of improvement in the
State’s  General Funds budgetary balance
(measured on a cash basis) as the balance rose
from a $292 million deficit in fiscal year 1996 to a
$45 million surplus in 1997--the first positive
budgetary balance since 1989.

The State’s daily cash availability also improved.
Building on the progress of the prior four years,



overdue payables from the General Funds were
reduced steadily throughout the year. Although
payment delays still occurred, those delays were
shorter than during the previous five years.
Payment delays were eliminated entirely by the
end of April. 1997.  Another indication of
improving fiscal health is the fact that the State
did not engage in short-term cash flow borrowing
for the first time since fiscal year 1992,

The GAAP and cash basis improvements were
made possible by two factors. First, due to the
continued strength of the economy, Illinois’
General Funds saw an increase of $918 million or
5.1% in “base” revenue (total revenue excluding
short-term borrowing) in fiscal year 1997, Second,
the State was able to significantly reduce the level
of unpaid Medicaid bills carried over from the
prior year. This marks the 3" year in a row that
such liabilities were reduced.

Between 1995 and 1996, Section 25 General Fund
liabilities payable out of future year appropriations
declined by $648 million. There was a $734
million decrease in Section 25 liabilities under the
State’s Medicaid program. The State’s group
health insurance program for employees, retirees,
and their dependents administered by the
Department of Central Management Services
increased $86 million between fiscal years 1995
and 1996.

In 1997, Section 25 deferrals dropped by $287
million. Deferrals for group health insurance
decreased $58 million, while Medicaid deferrals
fell by $229 million. This is a $1.41 billion
reduction in the Medicaid deficit in the last three
fiscal years and reflects the cumulative impact of
increased resources and program cuts.

While there have been improvements across a
broad spectrum, the fact that Illinois still has a
GAAP deficit suggests that there is room for
further improvement. Although the magnitude of
needed improvement may be subject to debate, a
comparison to benchmarks suggested by the
financial community is useful in placing the
state’s fiscal health in perspective.

Those involved in evaluating the fiscal health of
governments generally believe that the ability to
maintain working balances in the range of 4%-5%
of month budgetary expenditures indicates a
strong fiscal position. As evident in the chart
below. the State’s General Funds end-of-month
balances in June ($806 million) crossed over the
4% threshold for the 1" time since fiscal year
1990.

. Comparison of General Funds Cash Balances
and 4% of Annual Budgetary Expenditures (in millions)
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In order to continue to improve its fiscal health,
the State faces several challenges. To maintain
balances at more acceptable levels and keep
payment cycles under control, resources must
continue to be directed to these purposes. This
will not be easy. The ability to allocate resources
will be constrained on one hand by revenue
growth and on the other by the competing
budgetary needs of programs such as education
and those administered by the Departments of
Human Services, Corrections, Children and
Family Services and Public Aid.

Since revenue growth will mirror the strength of
the economy, the record revenue growth of fiscal
years 1995 and 1996 is not likely to be repeated in
the near future. In fact, fiscal year 1998 General
Funds base revenue growth is currently estimated
at $650 million, $268 million less than in fiscal
year 1997 and less than half the 1995 increase.

Although Section 25 deferred liabilities appear to
be largely under control, continued efforts will be
required to keep deferrals from again becoming a
budgetary black hole. This is especially
applicable to the Medicaid program.

The size, scope and demographics of Medicaid are
not static but are driven by several dynamic
factors. Advances in medicine have resulted in
new and beneficial, but often extremely costly
treatments. The aging of the population in
general, and in Illinois in particular, means that
one of the fastest growing and most expensive to
treat segments of the population will exert even
stronger influence on the demand for health care
services. In addition, fundamental changes in the
Medicaid program at the federal level will have a
profound effect on the state's budget. All of these
pressures and more will also result in significant
changes in the way health care services are both
paid for and delivered.

Future budgets will also have to address longer-
term issues, particularly funding for the state’s
pension systems. In the past, adequate pension
funding was deferred to future years in order to
make room in the annual budgets for other more
immediate program needs. With the enactment of
P.A. 88-593, Illinois began to seriously address its
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public pension funding problems in fiscal year
1996.

Unlike past funding legislation which was largely
ignored in the budget process, one of the key
provisions of the new law provides the
Comptroller with continuing appropriation
authority to make sure that required pension
contributions are made each year. In fiscal year
1997, the 2™ year of the new funding legislation,
state employer contributions totaled $752 million
and met the statutory funding requirement.

Independent Audit

The Ilinois Auditor General has elected to
perform a “department by department” single
audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-128. Audits of State and Local Governments,
and Circular A-133, Auwdits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit  Organizations.
Separate departmental financial reports for those
State agencies subject to the Single Audit Act
include the schedule of federal financial assistance
or schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
findings and recommendations, and the auditor’s
reports on internal control and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, The [llinois
Auditor General has performed an audit of the
accompanying  general  purpose  financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. and his unqualified opinion is
presented herein.



Certificate of
Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of
the United States and Canada (“GFOA") awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting (“Certificate™) to the State of
Mlinois for its comprehensive annual financial
report (“CAFR") for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1996. This is the thirteenth consecutive year that
the State has received this prestigious award in
governmental financial reporting. In order to be
awarded a Certificate, the State of Illinois
published an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR whose contents conform to
program standards. This report satisfied both
generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements. A Certificate is
valid for a period of one vear only. We believe
our current report continues to conform to the
Certificate Program’s requirements. [ will be
submitting this report to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.
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SEA/PERFORMANCE MEASURES-AN OVERVIEW

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The necessity of planning (specifying in advance).
and then measuring the accomplishment of results
{performance) has been accepted as an essential
component of management practice and
accountability in all organizations for most of this
century.

In the private sector the traditional view has been,
regarding  profit-seeking  organizations, that
planning and measuring results could principally
be accomplished with financial measures of
performance. Such financial measures include
profit margins, earnings per share, growth in sales
revenue, and asset-to-liability relationships.
Though in recent years, even the private sector has
begun to recognize the importance of non-
financial measures such as customer satisfaction,
quality, and timeliness.

In the public sector (government and non-profits).
there has also been a traditional focus on financial
measures for planning and accountability.
Budgeting, as the key planning or decision-making
policy tool, focuses on available financial
resources and their authorization to particular
expenditure  purposes. Accountability, or
performance measurement, focused on financial
measurements of what was spent in comparison to
budget, and what did the spending buy. But the
recognition that financial measures alone are
inadequate has an even longer history in the public
sector.

The duration and intensity of this recognition is
directly related to the essential reasons for the
existence of government and eleemosynary
entities. They do not exist for the purposes of
making a profit, or raising revenue, or spending, or
even staying within budget. They exist for the
purposes of providing services efficiently and
effectively. Financial measures alone, therefore,
can never adequately support policy decision-

making or performance and results accountability
in the public sector. The history of attempts to
include non-financial performance measures in the
management process of government traces back to
the years immediately following WW IL

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT IN
GOVERNMENT

The necessity to include  non-financial
performance measures in government decision-
making and accountability processes began to be
recognized in a variety of commission reports:
academic literature: federal, state and local laws;
and government process reform efforts in the years
following WW IL.  Such efforts and recognition
have continued unabated to the present. Without
exception all such efforts have had to struggle
with two essential questions. These two questions
may be simplified as the “measure what?” and the
“who, when measure?” issues.

The “measure what?" issue goes to the
fundamental question of what are the purposes
and priorities of government. In government
decision-making it is far easier to decide that one
government department will get an additional
million dollars for salaries than it is to decide that
we will resurface a hundred miles more roads
instead of placing several thousand more teenage
mothers in prenatal programs. In government
accountability it is far safer to report we
underspent our budget for contractual services by
20% than it is to disclose that the number of toxic
waste sites we inspected decreased by one-third,
while the population of identified sites requiring
inspection doubled. The “measure what?”
question continues to bedevil us for at least two
reasons. First, it is hard to get consensus on what
are the purposes of government and how they can
be measured. Second, government policy makers
and managers resist making explicit the
performance impacts that are embodied in their
decisions and result from their activities.
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The “who, when measure?” question has a long
and fascinating history. The problems of what
performance to measure, and how to measure it,
have remained pretty constant. What has
undergone change over time is where in the
government process the performance measures
should be used, who should decide on which
performance measures, and when and how they
should be disclosed, if at all,

Clearly, the first answer to the “who, when
measure?” question that received significant
attention was the government budget process. The
rhetorical question asked was, “Shouldn’t
government be making resource allocation
decisions based on what services to provide and
what outcomes and results are to be achieved?” In
its most conceptually developed forms, budgeting
would take place within an agreed, explicit
hierarchy of goals and objectives, each with their
own activity and outcome performance measures,
with the decisions made based on what activity
and outcome performance levels were desired.
Budgetary accountability would take the form of
reporting activity and outcome results achieved,
not just spending measures. Functional and
Performance Budgeting in the 1940's, Program
Budgeting in the 1950's. Planning, Programming
& Budgeting (PPB) and Zero-Based budgeting in
the 1960's and 1970's all reflect this approach.
While the acronyms change, attempts to include
performance measures in the budget process
continue through to the present day.

The second answer to the “who, when measure?”
question was developed in the 1970’s and
continues in various forms today. In this answer
the emphasis is on oversight by agents external to
the executive branch of government, and the role
of performance measures in accountability rather
than in decision-making. In some variations of the
answer, the external agent is the legislature, and
the process has names like legislative program
evaluation, or legislative sunset review. In other
instances the agent is the government post auditor,
and the process is called performance auditing,
management auditing, operational auditing, or
program results review. In all cases, performance
measurement is to be used to assess how well the
executive branch is doing.

A third answer emphasizes using performance
measures as part of agency and program
management. This approach received substantial
attention in the 1980's under the rubric of
strategic planning. In the 1990°s it has a role in
the “reinventing government™ movement, and is a
core element of the Federal National Performance
Review effort and performance accountability
legislation. Performance measures are seen not
only as a necessary component of agency/program
management planning and accountability, but also
an integral part of agency/program management
controls. This perspective acknowledges that the
specification of the public priorities to be served,
the selection of the performance measures to be
used, and the actual measurement of results must
come from the government’s executive/legislative
policy process and agency/program management.
The illustrative SEA performance information
presented in this CAFR primarily reflects that
assumption.

The newest and most relevant answer to the “who.
when measure?” question ironically brings the
discussion full circle. The classic vehicle of
financial performance measurement has always
been GAAP-based financial statements (CAFR’s).
The agent of such financial performance
measurement accountability has been the preparer.
issuer of the financial statements -- typically called
the comptroller in both the private and public
sectors. FASB (the source of private sector
GAAP) has made some soft suggestions that
perhaps corporate annual reports should disclose
more than just financial performance and status
measures. But GASB (the source for government
GAAP) has gone much further. In several of its
issuances on the objectives of government
financial reports, it has indicated at the conceptual
level that disclosure of non-financial performance
measurements are among its top three or four
objectives. At the more specific level GASB has
indicated its intent to provide future GAAP
guidance to governments regarding the inclusion
of performance measures and has solicited
experimentation by government CAFR issuers
with the inclusion of SEA, so that GASB can
benefit in developing authoritative guidance.
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PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT IN
ILLINOIS

Illinois has not been isolated from the national
trends and fads in state government management
concepts over the years, including those that
contained performance measurement aspects. In
approximate chronological order they have
included:

e In 1972 the General Assembly established the
Economic and Fiscal Commission (IEFC).
One of the Commission’s early missions was
to compile program output and outcome
information and prepare evaluative reports for
the legislature’s use regarding agency
performance results.

e In 1974 the General Assembly enacted the
lllinois State Auditing Act to implement the
Auditor General provisions of the 1970
Constitution, The Act drew heavily on the
General Accounting Office (GAO) Model
State Audit Act and incorporated broad and
explicit authority for the Auditor General to
conduct  management  and program
performance audits. These are defined to be
independent, after the fact (i.e., “post” audit)
assessments  of  the  efficiency and
effectiveness (performance) of agencies and
programs.

e In 1975 then-Governor Dan Walker and his
Bureau of the Budget implemented an
“accountability  budget”  process  and
justification to the General Assembly. The
process and presentation required funding to
be tied to measures of outputs and outcomes.

e [n the early 1980's the General Assembly
enacted regulatory “sunset review” legislation.
This initiative focused on state government
regulatory  programs, particularly  those
regarding licensure of professions.  The
legislation required analysis of the costs and
performance results of the covered programs.

e In 1989 the General Assembly passed the
Budget Performance Accountability Act. It
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directed the Governor and the Director of the
Bureau of the Budget to develop and
implement a program that would tie agency
performance results to their budgetary
authority. The Act provided for full
implementation by 1993.

Starting in the 1980's the GASB concluded
that users of the information provided by
governmental financial reporting share a
common interest in information about the
services provided by the organization, its
efficiency and effectiveness in providing those
services, and its ability to continue to provide
those services. Taxpayers need information to
help them assess whether governmental units
have achieved their public objectives. In
addition, they want to know how the services
provided by the governmental unit are likely
to affect the amount of taxes and fees they will
be required to pay. Resource providers such
as lenders, suppliers, and employees view a
governmental organization as a source of
payment for the cash, goods, or services they
supply. Governing and oversight bodies also
use information about services rendered to
help them evaluate whether managers have
carried out their policy mandates and to
change or formulate new policies for the
organization. Realizing the insufficient
disclosure of such information demanded by
accountability, the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) initiated research on
Service Efforts and Accomplishments (SEA),
a new format for the disclosure of
performance measurement.  The uses of
resources represent service efforts, and the
results represent service accomplishment;
thus, SEA reporting focuses on the results as
well as the resources consumed. Its objective
is to assess the benefits of expending efforts
and financial resources. There are three broad
categories of SEA measures: measures of
efforts (inputs), measures of accomplishments
(outputs and outcomes). and measures that
relate efforts to accomplishments
(efficiencies).




The GASB believes that full accountability
requires additional information beyond that
traditionally supplied in external financial
statements. While such a requirement would
considerably expand the scope of the
published financial statements, the GASB has
expressed the view that, as the primary
accountability  document, the external
financial report (the CAFR) is the appropriate
vehicle for the disclosure of SEA measures.

The GASB Concepts Statement No. 1,
Objectives of Financial Reporting, (May
1987) concludes that the objectives of GAAP
financial statements includes ‘“assist in
fulfilling government's duty to be publicly
accountable and...enable users to assess that
accountability,” and to “provide information
to assist users in assessing the service efforts.
costs and  accomplishments  of  the
governmental entity”. Over four years. 1989-
1993, GASB published nine related research
reports to discuss the results of its SEA
research project. In 1994, GASB issued its
Concepts Statement No. 2, Service, Efforts
and Accomplishments, stating, “the Board
believes that reporting SEA information is
fundamental both to governmental decision
making and to public accountability.” The
GASB also issued a Preliminary Views
document and an Exposure Draft on SEA
concepts in 1992 and 1993, respectively.
These documents, in addition to the
identification of the three broad categories,
discussed the nature and value of explanatory
information being presented with SEA
measures, limitations of SEA information. and
a description of characteristics of SEA
information required to achieve the objective
identified.

On April 2, 1997, the Chairman of the GASB
and its Director of Research announced the
designation of Illinois and its FY 1997 CAFR,
as a GASB service efforts and accomp-
lishments (SEA) experimentation project.

SEA-PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT:
ISSUES AND EXAMPLES

It is not very difficult to argue that creating and

providing
information  for

SEA  performance measurement

governments is  justified,

necessary, and desirable. That does not mean that
it is easy or noncontroversial. There are numerous
reasons why it is difficult and contentious. To
assist the user of this first experimentation effort,
some of such considerations are briefly noted in
the following points.

XXXVi

Governments take INPUTS (tax payer dollars,
employees, facilities) and convert them into
OUTPUTS and ACTIVITIES (applications
processed, miles of highway resurfaced,
number of visitors to parks) ostensibly to
create  desired public ~ OUTCOMES,
RESULTS, BENEFITS (more literate
students, reduced infant mortality, cleaner
water). Governments have always measured
INPUTS, and frequently tracked OUTPUTS
and  ACTIVITIES. Dealing  with
OUTCOMES and RESULTS is the invariable
problem. But taxpayers are entitled to know if
government is accomplishing anything --
fixing problems and making things better, not
just keeping government employees busy.
The SEA illustrations and examples in this
CAFR reflect measurements of a variety of
input, output, and outcome indicators.

Another continuing concern is what the
academics refer to as the causation issue.
There is a tendency to claim when good things
happen it is because of wise policy decisions
and  effective  government  programs.
Conversely. when bad things happen it is
attributable to other factors outside of
anyone's control. It is almost always easier to
find things to measure, than it is to prove that
government policy decisions and program
actions actually cause, or even influence the
indicators being measured. The user of



SEA performance measurement information
needs to be prepared to ask the question, “is it
reasonable to argue that a $50,000
government initiative increased the average
temperature in the state by 10 degrees?”

Measurements alone are just data. To become
useful, relevant SEA information, they must
be placed in an evaluative context. The
examples and illustrations in this CAFR
reflect varying approaches to creating such
contexts. For  example: presenting
measurement data over time.

This allows the reader to see if the indicator is
increasing, decreasing, or remaining constant
in relation to the policy decisions and
government program activity.

The following example demonstrates the
backlog of miles of rough roads for the past 13
years.

Miles of Rough Road Backlog
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Source: Department of Transportation

In the ideal, it would be possible to compare
infant mortality statistics among several state
governments to determine whose prenatal and
Women. Infants and Children (WIC) programs
are the most efficient and effective. However,
while the outcome measurement data may be
available, the reader must be satisfied that the
individual state programs are similar or
comparable, and that other socio-economic
factors influencing infant mortality do not
render the comparison unreliable.
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The two following examples employ the
comparative framework. The first compares
and ranks state park programs by measures of
park visitors. The second uses data from the
National Education Association (NEA) to
compare  public school spending per
elementary and secondary pupil based on
Average Daily Attendance (ADA) and
Enrollment (ENR).




STATE PARK VISITORS, FY 1994

STATE PARK VISITORS RANK BY
TOTAL VISTORS PER CAPITA PER CAPITA

STATE (000)

ALABAMA 6.183 1.5 a4
ALASKA 5,167 8.6 4

ARIZONA 2,095 0.5 49
ARKANSAS 6,354 2.6 26
CALIFORNIA 65,512 2.1 33
COLORADO 11,997 3.3 18
CONNECTICUT 8,207 25 27
DELAWARE 2,974 4.2 14
FLORIDA 11,903 0.9 47
GEORGIA 15,726 2.2 31
HAWAII 15,178 12.9 2
IDAHO 2517 2.2 32
ILLINOIS 39,642 3.4 17
INDIANA 10,644 1.8 36
IOWA 12,026 4.2 13
KANSAS 7,639 3.0 21
KENTUCKY 28,948 7.6 6
LOUISIANA 1,362 0.3 580
MAINE 2,026 1.6 39
MARYLAND 9,605 1.9 35
MASSACHUSETTS 17,902 3.0 22
MICHIGAN 23,584 25 28
MINNESOTA 7.924 1.7 37
MISSISSIPPI 4177 16 41
MISSOURI 15,214 2.9 24
MONTANA 2,100 25 29
NEBRASKA 9,196 5.7 8

NEVADA 2,886 2.0 34
NEW HAMPSHIRE 1178 1.0 46
NEW JERSEY 13,174 1.7 38
NEW MEXICO 4317 26 25
NEW YORK 63,626 3.5 16
NORTH CAROLINA 11,281 1.6 40
NORTH DAKOTA 978 1.5 43
OHIO 59,436 5.4 9
OKLAHOMA 16.614 51 10
OREGON 41,944 13.6 1

PENNSYLVANIA 36,541 3.0 20
RHODE ISLAND 3,048 3.1 19
SOUTH CAROLINA 8,861 2.4 30
SOUTH DAKOTA 8212 8.6 3

TENNESSEE 29,733 5.7 7

TEXAS 23,544 13 45
UTAH 6,955 36 156
VERMONT 904 1.6 42
VIRGINIA 4,286 0.7 48
WASHINGTON 45,309 8.5 5

WEST VIRGINIA 8,891 49 1
WISCONSIN 14,707 2.9 23
WYOMING 2,028 4.3 12
50 STATES 752,265 2.9

DC 0 0.0

UNITED STATES 752.265 2.9

Source: CQ's State Fact Finder 1997 -- Rankings Across America

-
—
-
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Estimated Expenditures for Public Schools, 1996-97

Total eurrant expanditures fer publie
elementary and secondary day schools

Amount Per pupil Per pupil
Region and state {in 000s) in ADA in ENR
1 2 3 4

50 states and D.C. 266,307,241 5,327 5,885
New England 15,351,697 7.760 7,207
Connscticut 4422108 ° 8,855 8,376
Maine 1,365,444 6712 5,368
Massachusatts 6572562 * 7828 7.089
New Hampshire 1,183,305 * 8557 5074
Rhedse Island 1106458 * 7878 7,284
Vermont 701,820 *© 7,561 5,503
Mideast 55,303,895 8,841 8,020
Dalawars 783,317 7.680 7.086
Dist. of Columbia 573,026 * B187 7175
Maryland 5,359,585 7.082 5,547
New Jersey 11,486275 ° 10,133 9.455
New York 24,531,980 8,702 8,564
Pennsylvania 12,569,712 = 7.565 6,955
Southeast 56,087,856 5,607 5,192
Alabama 3387970 * 4737 4,544
Arkansas 1,904,364 * 4,488 4172
Florida 12,163,196 6,049 5,429
Georgla 7378518 * 6,030 5,585
Kentucky 3,570,158 * 8,229 5875
Louisiana 3,658,889 * 4,878 4,527
Mississippi 2,151,260 * 4,581 4,269
North Carelina 5826788 * 5247 4,902
South Carolina 3,331,100 5,347 5172
Tennessea 4,366,704 5,272 4,898
Virginia 6488860 * 6370 5,920
Wast Virginia 1,979,051 7.036 6,522
Great Lakes 43,818,027 6,511 5,976
lllinois 10,699,488 * 6,048 5,455
Indiana 5,784,322 6,433 5,893
Michigan 11,206,769 * 7318 8,750
Ohia 10,187,318 5,809 5,627
Wisconsin 5,940,132 7.369 6,701
Plains 17,567,888 5848 5,402
lowa 2,876,842 6,063 5,705
Kansas 2,577,884 6170 5,628
Minnasota 5019164 * 5,401 5877
Missouri 4371416 * 5,370 4,949
Nabraska 1,637,667 5651 5,286
Narth Dakota 552,741 4,844 4,667
South Dakota 632,374 4,857 4,682
Southwest 28,248,580 5,552 5111
Arizona 3,196,656 *  4.387 4,048
New Maxico 1,638,510 * B9800 5310
Oklahoma 2,600,000 4,526 4,187
Texas 20,813,414 5,936 5,466
Rocky Mountains 7,869,286 5,087 4,740
Colorado 3465963 * 5550 5147
Idaho 1,108,827 * 4735 4,500
Montana 885,696 5,873 5381
Utah 1,834,000 4,088 3,837
Wyoming 580,000 5,293 5,872
Far West 42,060,212 5,620 5,498
Alaska 1,156,241 ° 10,393 8,813
California 20,636,726 5,327 5,338
Hawail 1,078,175 6,211 5,720
Nevada 1,404,200 5516 4,977
Oregon 3,215,700 6,500 5,988
Washington 5,669.170 6.223 5,805

*Data estimated by NEA
Nota: Galifornia ADA count includes excusad absences.

Source: 1996-1997 Estimataes of School Statistics
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Performance  measurement  against a
predetermined standard or criteria. One of the
fundamental questions associated  with
performance measurement is, “how much
performance is good enough, or conversely,
not acceptable™? Sometimes this question is

partially answered by a predetermined
standard, or benchmark. The performance
benchmark may arise from a policy

determination (e.g., embodied in statute), a

management decision (e.g., program strategic
plan), or a third party source (e.g., federal
regulations or court determination).

The following example uses the Federal
Participation Rate as a criteria or benchmark
to evaluate a particular performance
dimension of the state’s Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families (TANF) caseload over
time.

IL Statewide TANF Cases in Work Participation Programs
Compared to Federal Work Participation Rate

40.0%-

35.0%

30.0%

25.0%
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Federal
Participation
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SEP'97

Source: Department of Human Services

Another critical framework is  what
economists call cost/benefit, and GASB refers
to as efficiency -- the relationship between
resources used and results produced. In the
most elemental version of this framework,
resources used translates into the financial
cost to generate particular outcomes. The
framework can be employed at different levels
of aggregation. For example, program cost --
the cost of all programs intended to control
groundwater pollution, or functional cost --
the cost of resurfacing secondary roads, or
activity cost -- the cost of an agency's
application intake process.

x|

This framework presents multiple challenges.
Not only are valid performance measures
required, but matching cost information is also
necessary. But government financial systems
are typically designed to capture cost data, by
fund. by appropriation, by object of
expenditure, not by program, function, or
activity.

The following example illustrates unit cost
measures over time for road and bridge inputs,
they have to be matched with output or result
measures in order to be considered SEA.



AVERAGE UNIT COSTS OF COMMON MAJOR BID ITEMS

1992 - 1996
ITEM UNIT 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996
EARTH EXCAVATION CuYd 442 4.48 4.34 4,49 474
BITUMINOUS CONCRETE SURFACE, MIX D, TYPE 2 Ton 29.15 30.78 32.91 34,52 33.42
BITUMINOUS CONCRETE BINDER, CLASS B, TYPE 2 Ton 23.24 26.50 29.23 29.13 30.95
EPOXY COATED REBAR Ib 0.60 0.61 0.67 0.68 0.67
CONCRETE STRUCTURE Cu¥Yd 314.58 374.95 380.82 370.57 375.73
CONCRETE SUPERSTRUCTURE CuYd 428.44 463.37 516.00 461.81 498.55
CONTINUQUSLY REINFORCED CONCRETE PAVEMENT, 8° SqYd 24.49 27.04 17.20 33.29 30.00
CONCHRETE PATCHING, CLASS B, TYPE 2, 10" SqgYd 75.23 78.47 88.88 100.15 82.84
CONCHRETE PATCHING, CLASS B, TYPE 3, 10" SqYd 58.58 69.88 71.00 58.05 89.12

- Unit costs are a reflection of the average low bidder's costs. These costs vary due to size, quantity and area.
- Concrete structures is for piers, abutments, walls, etc. Concrete superstructure is for decks and parapets. Decks
and parapets require more equipment, materials and labor, thus unit costs are higher.
- The 1994 unit cost of $17.20 per square yard for continuously reinforced concrete is due to a high quantity of this item.
- Type 2 patching is an area of 5 square yards or more, but less than 15 square yards. Type 3 patching is an area of
15 square yards or more, but less than 25 square yards. Typically the larger the patch the lower the unit cost.

NOTE: Individual State average unit prices may not be truly representative of long-term price trends

because of comparatively low volumes of work for the period reported, or because of unusual
projects awarded during the period. Also, differences in bid item specifications among the
states might account for some differences in unit prices In the various states.

This information should not be compared state to state.

Source: Department of Transportation

A final consideration worth noting for the
readers is what GASB calls “providing a clear
frame of reference” and evaluators refer to as
“environmental conditions” or “exogenous
variables.”  Perhaps the briefest way to
describe this necessary awareness is with a
simplistic example. A job placement rate of
better than 50% for a worker retraining and
referral program is  probably positive
performance if the unemployment rate is 9%.
It is far less impressive if the unemployment
rate is 4%. To interpret the performance
measure you may also need to know the
“environmental factor” -- the unemployment
rate,

In the course of our efforts to compile and
present SEA performance measurement data
for this experimental effort, we encountered
several methodological issues that should be
disclosed to the reader, and which ment
consideration in the larger GASB discussion
of SEA. Among these issues are:
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GASB has indicated that it sees its role as
providing guidance on the reporting of
performance measures. But GASB believes
that agreement on the specification and choice
of measures, particularly those where inter-
jurisdictional ~ comparability — might  be
desirable, should come from the governmental
jurisdictions themselves. We have found that
even within just the boundaries of the Illinois
state government reporting entity it is quite
difficult to achieve agreement on measures for
similar government activities, or similar
performance purposes. This experience causes
us to be concerned that broad,
interjurisdictional agreement may be even
more problematic than expected.

We acknowledge a widely held expectation
that SEA reporting should be comprehensive
and consistent.  These two assumptions
suggest that all agencies. or all programs, or
all functions on the operating statement




should have associated performance measures
(comprehensiveness). The assumptions also
suggest there should be similarity of format
and content across agency, program, or
function presentation (consistency). We have
experimented with such an approach in our
illustrations in the Statistical and Economic
Data section of this CAFR.

However, our experience with satisfying these
two assumptions suggests they can be very
demanding and burdensome to accomplish. In
addition, we concluded that complete
compliance with the assumptions may very
well create such extensive volumes of data as
would overwhelm the reader, without
necessarily communicating useful
accountability information.

As a result, we are inclined to conclude that
selective presentation may hold more promise
of user value. Perhaps a given year's CAFR
and popular report should just focus on
selected agency, program, or function
grouping. Another alternative would be to
focus each year on government activities
currently relevant in policy decision making or
the public dialog. A final alternative might be
to focus on a particular issue or issues, which
might cut across the perspective of agencies,
programs, or functions.

The most reader useful choice may be a
varying mix of the alternatives. However,
such an approach would probably be a threat
to wide interjurisdictional SEA comparability.

Information timeframes has been a continuing
bedevilment. A CAFR and related Popular
Report are inherently associated with a given
fiscal year. And like all other issuers, we
attempt to provide the reports as soon after the
close of the fiscal year as possible.

We found that in only some few instances was
it possible to access SEA performance
measurement information for the CAFR fiscal
year. Typically, the most current performance
measures deriving from within the reporting
entity were at least a year older than the CAFR
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fiscal year. Comparative performance
information  sourced from outside the
reporting jurisdiction was usually two and
three years older than the CAFR fiscal year.
We expect this experience would be typical
for other issuers.

The problem of the timeframes of the
performance data creates an additional SEA
issue. We agree that for a variety of SEA
objectives, the performance measures must be
matched with resource use, typically cost to be
most useful. If the performance measures are
one or two years old, it can persuasively be
argued that the appropriate cost measures
should also be one or two years old. The
result is that this fiscal year 1997 CAFR
includes SEA illustrations where the cost
measures are from one or two prior fiscal
years in order to match them with the time
dimensions of the performance measures.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
WILLIAM G. HOLLAND

. . AUDITOR GENERAL
Honorable James “Pate” Philip, President of the Senate

Honorable Michael J. Madigan, Speaker of the House
Members of the General Assembly

Honorable Jim Edgar, Governor

Honorable Loleta Didrickson, Comptroller

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the State of Illinois as of and for the
year ended June 30, 1997 as listed in the foregoing Table of Contents for Section II. These general-purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-
purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the general-purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general-purpose financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements listed in the foregoing Table of Contents for Section II
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of Illinois as of June 30, 1997, and the results of
its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds for the year then ended, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 10 to the financial statements, the State of Illinois adopted, in Fiscal Year 1997,
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The required schedule of funding progress for pension trust funds, the combining and individual fund
and account group financial statements, and budgetary schedules, listed in the Table of Contents for Section II, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements of
the State of Illinois. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-
purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material resp€cts in relation to the general-purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The statistical and economic data and ice efforts and accomplishments data
listed in the Table of Contents for Section III were not audited by us, and ge€ordingly, we do not express an opinion
thereon.

AL;di-tor General
State of Illinois

Springfield, Illinois
Deceml%.er 31, 1997

FFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL * ILES PARK PLAZA * 740 EAST ASH * SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62703-3154 « 217/782-6046

RECYCLED PAPER - SOYBEAN INKS
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GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Purpose Financial Statements provide a summary overview of the
financial position of all funds and account groups and of the operating
results by fund type. They also serve as an introduction of the more
detailed statements and schedules that follow.



State of Illinois

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types, Account Groups

and Discretely Presented Component Units
June 30, 1997 {Expressed in Thousands)

Proprietary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Types
Special - Debt Capital Internal
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Service
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assels: L SRS R EEET L LA e ' .
Cagh and cashequwalents R T 764624 G 2821189 1B 524,901 8 1 1B1,696° S 97925 § 91,144
i investments: SRR Dot b AR L R R T 0,879 131,780 :
Recsivables, net:
Taxes 775,983 327,410
Imergovemmental 549,084 1,362,330 2,272 11,826 385
Qe L 485928 142429 i pgeT 86 87273 ' 1,274
'..Duefromotherfunds L210,834 L cayga0q v gliel o G oeoed . 04097
V..Duefromcomponemunus 40,840 SB02 . 8,035 i B el
Due from primary government
Inventories 26,113 40,900 4,720 11,536
Prepaid expenses 1,218 504
" Leans’and notes raceivable : N 47,094 s 5p0 - 746,396 S
Hestricted asséts ($175934 gash equivalents) pramn s ' L 209,731 108
Propeity, plant.and equipment, net =~ ‘ A : . o 4112 49,710
Other assets 11,515 162,156 2
Other debits:
Amount available in debt service funds for:
L Retirement of general obligation bonds i
‘Retirement of special-obligationbonds ™~
.. Retirementof other pbifigations ™ "2 1.7l n e o
" Amount to be provided for:
Retirement of general obligation bonds
Retirement of special obligation bonds
. Retirament of Gther obhgatmns : :j: jjj
= Pengion liahilities - PSR ‘ e : - R
Toml ‘assete and other debits : ¥z 2997548 _::$:4.547 474 . 5 640,231 % 202,548 . § 1,360,272 . § 253,799
LIABILITIES, EQUITY and OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,816,394 $ 415761 $ 18 § 4700 $ 51,773 $ 97,019
Intergovernmental payables g 08694 geeaTE e T BARTIA s e
. Dus to-other funds: - 286,998 7. 257,387 S ¢ 1325 CUBABO 228
' Due 1o’ component units’ 1495088 1 118,665 B84 14887000 k|
Due to primary govemment
Deferred revenues 240,891 279,873 6,286 10,798
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
- Depasitory and othiar. Ilabllmes ' 1,446 " Lpet 196. 19,585 24,270
“:Notes.payable.- i o ‘95,054
" Acerued refiremant costs :
General obligation bonds payable
Special obligation bonds payable
Revenue bonds payable 950,993
‘=_Otherobligat|ons - e nt i L I S i : 85836 78,926
o Totelhiabilities .o . 3449,005 - 1,964,507 A0 5o 67,848 01,109,824 . 132 500
Equﬂyandoﬁiercredws PR R L R G i S el e
Contributed capital 19.123
Investment in fixed assets
_ Retained eamings:
FResarved s b COOTB82.
“Unreserved : i 52.986: 102,176:
Fundbalancas{deﬁeﬁs} """" L :
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 84,681 1,552,538 209,204
Unemployment compensation benefits
Employees penslonbenaﬁts : RN PR
el e oesoar 25500
Unreserved: Y
Designated 613541
Undesignated (604,185) 231,071 (74,499)
Total eqUIty (defICIt) and other cred!’(s (451,457) 2,682,967 639,041 134,705 160,348 121,299
Fotal lisbilities, eqully andoﬂmcredm 0§ 2007548 S ABATATA - $:640231.$ 202548 5 1,360272 " § 253,799

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fiduciary Total Total
Fund Type Account Groups (Memorandum {Memorandum
Trust General General Only) Only)
and Fixed Long-Term Primary Component Reporting
Agency Assets Obligations Govemment Units Entity
$ 4,810,948 T 8,792327 8 . 678423 % 9465750
36271618 i 36940443 - 1. 048. 757 . BB.BE3,200
324,119 1,427,512 1,427,512
14,268 1,940,165 71,479 2,011,644
1255662 £ 11,544,899 127,938 1,672,638
31,343 635,476 41,329 676,805
1,368 CIBBOMY L T ..B5,041
210,869 210,869
83,269 52,583 135,852
1,722 38,690 40,412
CUI8E3ARS B4R 2,597,902
e Sl UU299.889. 00 800,083 601,902
20,738 $ 4,838,871 4,908,431 ~7ATEAG1 L 12,083 822
963,254 ' 1,136,927 T 94,522 1,231,449
3 412,700 412,700 55 AT
e 102,820 182,929 . - S.192.829.
: 7.912. 7912 7,912
5,241,697 5,241,697 5,241,697
1,692,238 1,692,238 1,692,238
5 © 16138 1,613,874 1,613,874
: E 0 10:556,544. 10,556,544 oo, 10,556,544
$ 43,693,213 - $ 4833871  § 19717804 § 7B346,850 ' 12525942 ¢ & 90,872,782
$ 1,006,561 $ 3434622 $ 695425 $ 4,130,047
g0 408 4,821,808 LLDARDI 4803808
83,348 St 635,476 1,829 676,805
' 53 +11210,860 s £ 210,869,
55,041 55,041
2,241 540,089 79,636 619,725
26,222 26,222
5,972,396 eS0T 178144 196,318
S G 05,954 g145. 1 102,009
S 0 556,544 i 10,556,544 S LR 0.556,544
| 5,654,397 ' 5,654,397 5,654,397
1,885,167 1,885,167 1,885,167
16,144 967,137 3,720,839 4,687,976
A L L NB21,786 L 1,696,348 ¢ 141284 1,837,632
‘9,483,042 A9 TI7 894 36,016,105, '~ 4,946,545 ' 40,962,650..
18,123 33530 52,653
$ 4,833,871 4,833,871 4,709,051 9,542,922
----- 107,862 000 BAD gDl R0 334
otsB162 o 1272483 - 1427315
4,637 1,851,060 71,719 1,922,779
2,000,531 2,000,531 2,000,531
32,188,796 L 328BT06 . 82,188,796
SR e R ,994208 . . 1997435 . . 21091730
613,541 9,964 623,505
14,617 (432,996) (57.427) (490,423)
34,209,971 4,833,871 42,330,745 7,579,397 49,910,142

$ 43693213 =

'$ 4833871 § 19,717.804 8 78346850 § 12505040 § 00,872,700




State of lllinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund

Types, Expendable Trust Funds and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Fiduciary (Memorandum
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type Only)
Special Debt Capital Expendable Primary
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Government
REVENUES
incame taxes 5 $ 7,266,888 & eeaTE4 0 +$. 7,031,847
-$a!estaxes Crr 4963996 S 858161 6,823,157
“Motor fuel taxes ‘ L 198,754 . 1,281,754
Public utifity taxes ' 869,960 222721 1,092,681
Other taxes 1,232,872 431,705 $ 1,190,073 2,854,650
Federal government 4,422 256 4461731 & 380 $ 2,240 23,072 8,909,679
Licenses andfees . . COBHBEZ L HGRE ARG g e 1,078,001
interest and other mvestmentmcome 151096 . 65687 - . 28189 3446 . 111,026 359,404
Other 77184 00882505 1,578 16,331 2891770 1305405
Total revenues 19,769,859 10,506,126 30 378 22,017 1,348,088 31,676,468
EXPENDITURES
Current: - AL Sl R g
Health and social setvnces 867,182, 22297 R 4387 0 0.080 837
" Education _ ABTOS64 2004956 0 152085 SRR 8B T
General government 998,826 " 3,946,640 110 18794 22481 4,986,851
Socia! assistance 1,374,649 1,256,525 1,242,213 3,873,387
Transportation 33,817 2,548,923 114,780 2,697,520
‘Public protection.and justics o L 1267.067 7 0345.848 il SA30 613,845
- Natural resources and recreation S Los, 136 G ORBADE o BA7TB A77 5 AR 567
Debtsemce : : B b S i s
Principal 16,285 4,169 480,845 501,209
interest 59,526 16,301 366,751 442 578
Capital outlays 94,446 84,240 195,771 246 374,703
?rotalaexpendi'mres : 1:4:16,980,548 (AG799404 7 BAZZ0B 438,218 . 1,265,985 30,329,861
Excess(deﬂciency)ofrevenues ' Sheaile A ; SN R
over (under) expenditures 2,789,311 (293,278) (817,328) (414,201) 82,103 1 346 607
OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL
RESOURCES : o
{Proceeds from notes and general/speclai s B IREE
" obligation bond issues 406,473 406473
Proceeds from general/special
obligation bond refunding issues 84,803 84,803
Operating transfers-in 1 ,058,954 2,468 421 927,016 4,393 1 670 4,460,454
- ‘Operating transfers from oompcnentunlts ‘ AL TR e S 0 FLLTTE
iDperating transfersout Lo i (2056 038‘) C(1798196) it (400) o (9,926) (13911) S8,876.480)
. -Operating transfers 16 ¢omponent umts ------ :41,307,206) - {46.959) i “{68;867) L {1423,032)
Operating transtfers to primary government o '
Capital lease financing 14,833 4,416 19,249
Paymem to refunded bond escrow agent {84,803) (84,803)
Net other sources (uses) of . B e e
L ﬂnanciaf resoun:es 1 LN (2,289 453)‘ L B30,486 926,607 382,078 (122410 v (412,5589)
“Excess (deflclency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures and net
other sources (uses) of
financial regsources =" 499858“ i *109279*' ---5:(82_..128)“' 69862 G 934048
Fund:balances (deficit), July 1,1996 - (951 315) i 529, 762 A 1947 903 - 4088973
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JUNE 30,1997 § (451,457) $ 2682967 $ 639,041 $ 134705 $ 2017765 $ 5,023,021

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Total
(Memorandum
Only)
Component Reporting
Units Entity

§ 7831647

88 chi

1,231,754

1,092,681

$ 19,585 2,874,235
10,892 8,920,571
L0800 0 1,079,109,
SUABAT T 361,081
6607 1402102
39,839 31,716,307

1,280 0 829417
288 15,132,042
13411 5,000,262
3,873,387

2,697,520
T
Cleazil i a19214
501,299

442 578

5 374,708
A5811 ... 30,346,472

24,228 1,370,835

84,803
4,480,454

S el
L7388 (3.883,863)
St +(1;423,032)
(8 (8)

19,249

(84,803)

a8 (419,950)

STE.837 -.-850,885:

127088 4216062

$ 143926 $ 5,166,947




State of lllinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
All Budgeted Fund Groups (See Note 2)

Far the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

General Funds Highway Funds
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Income taxes $ 6,897,000 $ 7,223,752 $ 326,752
Sales {axes : : : 17, 5,020,000 . 4,991,844 0 (28,156) :
Motor fuel taxes ‘ : ) : $ 1,166,676 $ 1,172,368 $ - 5692
Public utility taxes 795,000 872,439 - 77,439
Federal government 3,199,000 3,206,998 7,998 747443 630,430 (117,013}
Other 1,222,000 1,413,236 191,236 786,694 829,245 42,551
Less: : Lo L
Ré_funds : 12,526 9,517 {3,009) ©21,403 - 12,235 (9.168)
Total revenues . ‘ 17,120,474 17,698,752 578,278 2,679,410 2,619,808 (59,602)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health and social services : E 6,887,904 6,703,477 (184,427)
Education 6,061,168 6,047,800 {13,359) o ' ,
General government ; : 1,113,562 1,078,543 . . {35,019) 269467 “. 242,457 L {17,010)
Transportation i 100,287 . 75,283 (25,004) 3,998,399 2,180,846 (1,817,553)
Social assistance 1,611,465 1,415,589 (95.876) 1,440 1,440 - -
Public protection and justice 1,293,306 1,275,492 .{(17.,814) 52,733 52,732 )
Natural resources and recreation : 134,859 126,919 {8,940) : :
Debt service: ' ‘ ‘
Principal
Interest
Capital outlays 174,385 119,195 (55,190) 33,727 32,536 (1,181)
Total expenditures 17,276,936 16,841,307 (435,629) 4,345,766 2,510,011 (1.835,755)
Excess:{deficiency) of revenues over (under) : : ‘
expenditures {156,462) 857,445 1,013,907 (1,666,356} 109,797 1,776,153
. OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Proceeds from general and special obligation bond issues
Operating transfers-in ‘ S 2,864,000 2,735,690 (128,310) 1,247,213 1,279,326 32,113
Operating transfers-out ' (3,225,000) .. .(3,256,039) .(31,039) {1,392,412) (1:422,334) (29,922)
Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expenditures, other sources (uses) of
financial resources and budgetary funds- C i b
nonbudgeted accounts : (517,462) 337,096 854,558 (1,811,555) (33,211) 1,778,344
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1996, as
previously reported (292,380) (292,380) - 578,141 578,141 -
Reclassifications between budgetary/nonbudgetary : : : i i
funds-net : )
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1996, as
reclassified (292,380) (292,380) - 578,141 578,141 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1997 §  (B09,842) § 44716 § 854558 § (1,233414)3% 544,930 § 1,778,344

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



University Funds

Special State Funds

Bond Financed Funds

Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
$ 1534720 § 1534729 § -
T 483,165 501,038 17,873
63,438 59,901 (3,587)
219,100 220,417 1,317
$ - $ 28 § 28 1,397,104 1,474,215 77,11
43,927 43,980 &3 3,654,808 3,561,650 (93,158)
2 1 ) 844,759 829,799 {14,960)
43,925 . 44,007 82 6,507,635 6,522,151 14,516
o . . o 2,499,700 ©2,201,143 {298,557) ‘
436,238 .- 44706 - (391,532) 175826 - = 139,146 36,680y $ 116,312 § 31,264 $  (85,048)
‘ S 3,678,897 . - 3,364,375 {314,522) 101,931 28,701 (73,230}
247,377 208,229 "~ (39,148) 340,311 122,394 (217,917)
657 1 (656) 300 14 (286)
213,049 184,140 (28,909)
684,474 ¢ 329112 1355,362) 283,888 64,848 {219,040)
39,164 102 (39,062) 43,622 37,255 (6,367) 921,455 227,614 (693,841)
476,059 44,809 (431,250) 7,543,245 6,463,414 (1,079,831) 1,763,897 474 821 {1,289,076)
 (432,134) . (802) 431,332 (1,035,610) 58,737 1,004,347 (1,763,897) (474,821) 1,289,076
500,000 406,473 - (93,527)
- 80 80 © 1,375,025 1,352,832 - {22,193) e 25,000 . :258,000
(500" (519) (19) (1,548,249) " (1,459,919} - 88,330 - (25,000) * (25,000}
(99,726) (99,726) -

(432.634) (1,241) 431303 .(1,308560) (148076). 1160484 . (1,263,897 (68,348) 1,195,549
1,386 1,386 - 560,332 560,332 - 196,882 196,882 -
1,386 1,386 - 560,332 560,332 - ae 196,882 196,882 -

$ (431,248) % 145 § 431,393 $ (748,228) $ 412256 $ 1,160,484 $§ (1,067,015 % 128,534 § 1,195,549

(continued)



State of Hlinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
All Budgeted Fund Groups (See Note 2)

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)

Debt Service Funds

Federal Trust Funds

Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES

Income taxes

Sales taxes

Motor fuel faxes

Public utility taxes

Federal government 3 300 $ 354 § 54 2,299,951 § 2,079,884 $ {220,087)

Other 16,202 18,997 2,795 93,499 160,120 66,621

Less:

Refunds . . . 2,793 477 {2,316)
Total revenues 16,502 19,351 2,849 2,390,657 2,239,527 {151,130)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Health and social services 672,869 546,287 (126,582)
Fducation 1,048,780 871,564 {177,216)
General government’ 612:938 286,750 (326,188)
Transportation 571,086 166,393 (404,693)
Social assistance 368,147 184,503 (183,644)
Public protection and justice 232,771 88,488 (144,283)
Natural resources and recreation 78,846 32,544 .. (46,302)
Debt-service: R . : ’
Principal 721,697 718,898 (2,799)
Interest 258,575 255,578 (2,997)

Capital outlays 20,481 14,116 (6,365)
Total expenditures 980,272 974,476 (5.796) 3,605,918 2,190,645 (1,415,273)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures {963,770) {955,125) 8,645 (1,215.261) 48,882 1,264,143

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Proceeds from general and special obhgatlon bond issues 84,800 84,803 3

Operating transfers-in . 895,197 916,985 21,788 44.816 45572 756

Operating transfers-out . (3,500) - 3,500 (8.495) {9,250) {755)

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (33,588) (33,588) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures, other sources (uses) of

- financial resources and budgetary funds~ ‘

nonbudgeted accounts 12127 46,663 33,936 (1,212,528} 51,616 1,264,144
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1996, as
previously reported 376,290 376,290 - (134,249) (134,249) -
Reclassifications between budgetary/nonbudgetary f : : : b
funds-net 215 215 . -
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1996, as
reclassified 376,290 376,290 - (134,034) (134,034) -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1997 § 389,017 § 422,953 § 33,936 (1,346,562) $ (82,418) $ 1,264,144
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Total

Revolving Funds State Trust Funds (Memorandum Only)
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
$ 84317290 % 8758481 % 326,752
$ 306921 % - 306921 § o ~5,810,086 5,799,803 (10,283}
23,230 123,230 e 1:253,394 1,255,499 = -2,408
1,014,100 1,092,856 78,756
267,606 207,784 (59,822) 7,911,404 7,599,693 (311,711)
$ 242681 $ 255678 § 12,997 548,722 561,647 12,925° 6,608,533 6,844,553 236,020
11 7 ) _ 881,494 852,036 (29.458)
242,670 255,671 13,001 1,146,479 - 1,099,582 (46,897} 30,147,752 30,498,849 351,007
6,998 2503 " {4,496) 10,067,472 ' 8,453.410 (814,062)
5,793 2,594 (3,199) . 206,916 174,787 - (32,129) 8,051,033 7,311,870 " .(739,163)
214 936 172,247 (42,689) " ° 168,429 © 115,159 {53,270) 6,150,160 5,288,232 % "(861.928)
700 569 (131) 5,258,160 2,753,714 (2.504,448)
118,171 91,491 (26,680) 2,000,180 1,693,038 (307,142)
45,945 38,651 (7,294) 2,911 1,020 (1,891) 1,840,715 1,640,523 (200,192)
7,908 4,530 (3.378) - 1,189,975 . 556,953 .{633,022)
721,697 718,808 (2,799)
258,575 255,578 (2,997)
16,876 14,632 (2,244) 1,115 746 (369) 1,250,825 446,196 (804.629)
284,250 228,693 (55,557) 512,449 390,236 (122,213) 36,788,792  30,118.412  (6,670,380)
(41,580) - 26,978 68,558 634,030 709,346 © 75,316 : (6,641,040} 380,437 7,021,477
584,800 491,276 (93,624)
- 103 103 : ‘ 6,426,281 6,355,588 . . (70,663)
—— (382) - (382) (72,894): . - {(72,970) = ATB) : 6,251,050) {6,246,413) i 4 63T
(647,867) (647.,867) - (781,181) k (781,181) e
(41,580) . 26,690 88,279 (B6,731) - (11,481 75,240 '(6,662,220) 109,707  6.861.927
6,874 6,874 - 82,315 82,315 - 1,375.591 1,375,581 -
43,462 43462 - - 43,677 43,677 -
6,874 6,874 - 125,777 125,777 - 1,419,268 1,419,268 -
$ (34,706) % 33,573 § 68,279 § 39,046 3 114,286 $ 75,240 $ (5,242952)% 1,618,975 § 6,861,927
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State of Illinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained
Earnings/Fund Balances - All Proprietary Fund Types, Nonexpendable

Trust Funds, and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Total Total
Proprietary Fiduciary (Memorandum {(Memorandum
Fund Type Fund Type Only) Only})
Internal Nonexpendable Primary Component Reporting
Enterprise Service Trust Government Units Entity
OPERATING REVENUES _
“Charges.for sales and services 3 1796054 870256 . % S18.05 2,666,328 §1:346,899 % -8013,227°
interest and other mvestmentmcome 76870 T2 182 00 7724 L2150 108,646
Other; h 116,229 454 s “16,690 1 162,688 179,373
Total operating revenues 1,889,153 870,782 207 2,760,142 631,104 3,391,246
OPERATING EXPENSES N
. Costs of sales’and genvices. : 160,461 .. .~ 168,551 1326,012: 152,274 378,286
-Benefit payments and-refunds. . 120,862 ;436,224 556,586+ . . 33,840 0 ' 580,426
:-Prizes and claims™ 827414 s 827,414 : 827 414
interest 51,995 825 52,820 58,159 110,979
General and administrative 111,881 28,385 21 140,287 257,070 397,357
Depreciation 1,492 17,130 18,622 128,190 146,812
“Other 18,022 14,537 51 27,610 . .@48. 28458
: Total operatlng expanses 1,286,627 662,652 72 1,949,351 .530,381 2,479,732
Operating income 602,526 208,130 135 810,791 100,723 911,514
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
+Investment income ; L3800 2. 2778 LH6ET8 T5442° 82,020
Interest expense (2,408) o {443) T (2,849) T (141,831) -{144,680)
+ Cther.revenies . 4200 ABTT 5,087 i 498 5,583
Other expenses (428) (1,860) (2,288) (785) (3,073)
Income betore operatlng transfers 603,912 213,222 135 817,269 34,045 851,314
Operatmg ’transfers-m : s ogge el gRge i BTV 7,486 8,057
Operating. transfers from primary govemment L : oo sh e e : 17,597 17,897
Operating transfers-out (584,263) (227) (55) (584,545) (103} (584,648)
Operating transfers to component units (178,534) (178,534) (178,534)
Operatmg transfers to primary govemment (194) (194)
Neuncome e 19,662 35,019 80 .5a7el 58831' 113,592
Retained earnings/fund balances, July 1, 1996 140,686 67,157 3,330 211,173 1,566,294 1,767,467
RETAINEDEARNINGSIFUNDBALANCES GRS Bl i L 0 T L T
JUNE 30,1997 “' gt 160,348 8 102176 . $ 3410 % - 265934 % 1615125 % 1,881,059

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Illinois

Combined Statement of Cash Flows - All Proprietary Fund Types,
Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Ysar Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Total Total
Proprietary Fiduciary  (Memorandum (Memorandum
Fund Type Fund Type Only) Only)
Internal  Nonexpendable Primary Component Reporting
Enterprise Service Trust Govemment Units Entity
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACT1VITIES
-Cash received from sales:and services’: $ 1,793,654 °§1.920,589 1§ b 18 3 STMMR7 0§ 718361 $13,285.632
Cash payments 10 suppliers for:goods and: semces i Lr(2eeRAY (639 7oty : {926 432) Ce8,781) . - {1.020,163)
‘Cash payments lo:émployees for seivices " FLN100.826)1 7 (B3979) LLEI163,905) ©{96.818) "+ 1(260,723)
Cash payments for lottery prizes (813,584) (813,584) (813,584)
Cash receipts from other operating activities 159,629 122 25 159,776 1,779,369 1,939,145
Cash payments for other operating activities {194,764) (891) (73) {195,728) (2,002,468) (2,198,1 9_(_5_)_
Net cash provided (Used) by operating activities, ... 548,368 ;. SA80): o TRAB08 0 L 1BT T8 932,111
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPE’I’AL HNANCING ACTIVI'I‘IES T TR ‘ il e
Proceeds from: bofmwing : 167,211 CI6F211 0 2140800 1 1381,281
Principal paid on borrownng (68,600) (68,600) (196,197) (264,797)
Interest paid on borrowing (1,985) (1,985) (132,571) (134,556)
Operating grants received 39 39
Operating transters:in from othar fundg: " . 558 G A Eeh S 4BE " 8,046
Operating ransfers:from primary govemment - S i ’ Pl i 17,897 17,597
" Operating ransfers:out 1o:other funds L(E83,988) (151) ' {86y {(584,172) AA03). L (BB4,275)
Qperating transfers to component units (178,534) (178,534) (178,534)
Operating transfers o primary govemment (194) (194)
Other noncapital financing activities 146 53 199 {2,173) (1,974)
Neticash tised in Honcapital financing activities.’ : “(AB7,199) - v{178,074) v {58) - {665,321} (92,036) ; (757.357)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED ﬂNANCI AC’I‘IVITIES o D : : i ¥ B
Proceeds from sale ol revenue bonds | : S RN R b e e e .348285 ' 148285
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1 179) """ (12,734) (13 913) (140,023) (153,936)
Principat paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (7,570) (16,928) (24,498) (174,826) (199,324)
Interest paid on bond maturities and equlpment contracts (443) (443) (54 568) (55,011}
Prcceedsfmmsaleafaqutpment : S SIEEA T R (IR i (o L2, 2,875
Other capital and rejated tindncing activities e s o4 29,329,
Net cash used incapital.and related financing activities BRI (8,748) {30,105) t38,854) .1 (1 B8,828) . 1. {227,682)
CASH FLLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities (322,505) 13) (322,518) (1,844,884) (2,167,402)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of mvestment secunt:es 314,898 10 314,908 1,884,654 2,199,562
- Interest and dividends off investments . . s LRB9A R TIS 2 166 6,883 74,324 000 80,857
“Net cash provided (used)byinvesmgacﬂvmes 14,013) R ER L 1B3 (1.077) 114,084 113,017
* “Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash aquivalema TABATA. | 20,654 .78 £9,146 @057 ... 60,089
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 1996 186,391 70,490 2,178 259,059 442,447 701,506
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 1997 $§ 234805 § 91,144 § 2,256 § 328205 $§ 433390 $§ 761,595
Recondlhﬁmnlcmandcashequlvalmmmebnlancashaet.‘ e P o e SR e et D
Total cash'and casti equivalents per the balance shaet iR SUIATE25 80 91,1440 08 4,810,948 5,000,017 1§ 673,423 151 5,673,440
Add restricted cashy squivalents 186,880 : LRELI1368807 T IB0.064: 176,934
Less: expendable trust, pension, and non- propnebary componem umts (4,808,692) (4,808,692) (279,087) (5,087,779)
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 1997 $ 234805 § 91,144 § 2256 § 328205 $ 433390 $ 761,595
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by tmgactxvrl _ e L L . RS T
OPERATING INCOME:: YR 602,526) 8 BOBIB0 g g8 g 810,791 $ 100,723 7% 911,514
Adjustments to reconcils operatlng income to netcash """ s : Bl : i : R i
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,492 17,130 18,622 128,190 146,812
Provision for uncollectible accounts (40) 1,187 1,147 499 1,646
‘{increase) decrease in accounts reeivable ! ¢ (43.973).. 0 D98 (43,079) 1(83.524) 1 1 :(126,608)
{increase) decrease in diie from other funtis {8;939) " 48,890 39,6861 P (AB0Y - i 86,121
{increase) decrease in due from component units: e 1,142 1,142 : s L1042
(Increase) decrease in due from primary govemmen: 4,004 4,094
(Increase) decrease in inventories 1,876 1,001 2,877 404 3,281
{Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (684) (73) (757) (1,763) (2,520)
increase (decrease)-m-sccnunis payable and accmed iiabilmes FECHE ST :{56,695) AR 1B0,840) HTDBD, L (5%,790)
¢ i 4 _.:mrgovemmemazpayables i sl (BR) FRnE e o 4eR) 100y (162)
Increase (decrease) in due'to other funds . 1 L 2 i(718); ¢ N ran)) 141 (600}
Increase (decrease) in due 1o componant units (2) 2) ' 3]
Increase (decrease) in due 10 primary government 56 56
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 544 3 (1,124) (677)
Increase (decrease) in.other fiabilities” i EE 4299 5884 : 7.792 s il loes
o5 1ncrea5e (decrease mbmm payable fmm restncled assets Ba e & ; 4.3 Yii44,850)
CHDIRE R i R CR(eTy ki)
Total adjustments (54,158) 17,930 (165) (36 293) 56 990 20,597
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 548368 §$ 226,060 $ (30) $§ 774,398 $ 157,713 § 932,111
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND F!NANONG AG‘NVmES . SlEE
< Capital leases {initial year)' : j ‘ il
Fairmarnetvakie, . .. [ P56
Transters from General Fixed Assels
Fair market value $ - 219

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Hlinois

Pension Trust Fund Trial Balance

Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

General State State
Assembly Judges' Employees’ Teachers' Universities
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement
System System System System System
ADDITIONS
Contributions: s
Employer - T $ 2787 % 13,757, % 158,180 .§ 395,348 3 182,041
Plan members : ) Lo 1,254 10,497 145,683 416,739 202,181
Other 32 32 25,831
Total contributions 4,073 24,280 303,863 837,918 384,222
Interest and other investment income 2,235 12,167 230,435 859,323 277,038
‘Net appreciation (depreciation) of investments - - : 6,912 38,352 735,594 1,929,166 1,226,039
Investment expense ‘ ' ‘ L (128) “t{700) .. {13,418) “{143,862) (13,047)
Total investment income - ‘ 9,021 49,819 . 952,611 2,644 827 1,490,030
Total additions 13,094 74,099 1,256,474 3,482,545 1,874,252
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments and refunds -7 - : 7575 36,321 381,381 ¢ 1,182,643 449,050
interest s . : ' : : 1,125
GGeneral and-administrative : ) 212 312 5,515 - 9,791 5,900
Depreciation 2 4 221 530 1,646
Other 400
Total deductions 7,789 36,637 387,127 1,193,364 457,721
.. Net additions ° : % 5,305 37,462 869,347 2,289,181 1,416,531
Fund balances reserved for employees'
pension benefits, July 1, 1996 42,625 232433 4,396,969 13,829,711 5,082,891
Restaternent of fund balances 8,780 44,666 781,711 1,274,216 1,876,925
Fund balances reserved for employees’ . . :
pension benefits; July 1, 1996, as restated 51,405 277,099 5,178,680 . 15,103,927 6,959,816
FUND BALANCES RESERVED FOR EMPLOYEES'
PENSION BENEFITS, JUNE 30, 1997 $ 56,710 § 314561 $ 6,048,027 $ 17,393,108 § 8,376,347
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State

Board of

Investment Eliminations Total
3 752,107
776,354
25,895
1,554,356
$ 622162 $ (622,162) 1,381,198
399,804 ©1{399,804) . 3,936,083
(14,245) 14,254 L (171,144)
1,007,721 {1,007,712) 5,146,117
1,007,721 (1,007,712) 6,700,473
116,400 . "~ (116,400 T 2,056,980
) N 1,125
A o 21,730
6 (6} 2,403
400
116,406 (116,406) 2,082,638
‘891,315 . ~(891,306) 4,817,835
4,601,679 (4,601,645) 23,584,663
835,157 (835,157) 3,986,298

5436836  (5436.802) 27,570,961

$ 6,328,151 § (6,328,108) § 32,188,796
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State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Changes in Fund Balances -
University and College Component Units

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed In Thousands)

Component Unit

Chicago Eastern Western lilinois Northern Southern
State lllinois lllinois State llinois Hlinois
University University University University University University
REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS
Unrestricted current fund revenues. $....22702 . % - B0613 .S - BO084 $ 116680 F 134725 '§ 215830
_Federai and-local grants and contracts-restncted 14,454 5,175 8343 8812 - 12667 40,504
Stafe grants and contracts-restricted . 1,983 1,559 735 6069 ... 3,156 '7.852
Other state sources 251 2,608
Private gifts, grants and contracts-restricted 282 3,263 3,661 5213 6,954 22,061
Investment income 29 778 587 1,412 2,147 3,130
Realized gain (loss) on mvestmen:s-resmcted (net) ‘ SR T ey LI S R s £ i 1244
‘Interest and fees on loans receivable : 190 g 39 223 17T 326_
‘Expended for plant facilities: ' ' i IR e
Current funds 5,109 4,545 3,359 7,875 18 993
Plant funds 4 1,358 5,829 4,683 13,410 22,497
Other 32,997 838
. " ‘Retirement of. Iong-term obhgahons [ ;355 5,808 3,670 1,935 2159
- Qther _ et 28 13,658 2,878+ BA18 4,422 44,265
Total ravenues and otheraddltions 39,854 98,255 95,701 .- 159,865 220,485 379,799
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS
Educational and general expenditures 68,401 92,750 113,446 184,393 216,520 465,089
Auxiliary enterprisas expend:tures _____ 3,572 20,197 24593 " 34598 46,445 47,262
Hospital expenditures : ' S e : : o Lo . ‘
“lndépendent operations expend:tures iy i i o i o R
Foundation expenditures ' 694 1,289 2,465 4,014 4,385 12,189
Indirect costs recovered 608 291 544 851 1,827 4,490
Refunds of grants and adjustments to grants 421
‘Loan cancellations and write-oHs : 18 61 42 STAB - 40
“Change iri allowance for uncollectible notes i {81) @n - 1 {200): .08
' “administrative and collection costs LT 50 36 2R 237
Expended for plant facilities {including h
noncapitalized expenditures of $30,914) 2,599 7,588 4,852 11,338 29,246
Retirement of long-term obligations 1,756 6,648 3,360 4,789 7,765 4,867
Digposal-of plant facdmes 183 2,896 Rt - 986 e 4,657
Other - 982 17,053 ST GRT #5134 42,148 .. 42688
Total expendltures and Other deduotkorts. 76,214 143,811 154,161 239,729 330,221 ..811,284°
TRANSFERS-ADDITIONS(DEDUCTIONS)
Nonmandatory:

.. Operating transfers-in.. - A0 HABE L . 426
.. Qperating transters from pnmary govemment 239,817 180,241 .. 68,779 107:129 ... 123,168 264,054
Operating transfers-out ae s e @By 9)

Operating transfers to primary govemment (33) (31) (22) (41) (48) (126)
Other 13 (881)
Total transfers 39,794 60,315 68,743 107,060 123,111 263,473
Neuncrease(decrease) 23504 0 4T T 10,288 U BTGB L AB,868 31,988
Fund balances July1 1996 73,115 137,982 199,911 358,238 393,814 790,320
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1997 $ 76649 § 152,741 $ 210,194 § 385,434 407,169 & 822,308

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral parn of this statement.
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Component Unit (continued)
University Non-Major
of Component
llinois Units Total

980569 §
oL Btle4r
29862

S apars § 1,598,287
16,706 . 419,508
LB e 51,272
249 3,108
223,010 1,473 265,917
29,953 230 38,266
@018 0 36,848
S ABE e BR L 245

110,539 3,087 154,407
50,535 114 98,430

1,814 1,550 37,199

G 230860 i B 0 37,387
. d7see88 . 397 . 250,550
1926390 o BB138 T .2.088,562

1,752,539 123,504 3,016,642
182,097 0 13,063 . 332,727
LBABBIT 0 DABBIT
Lo BOBE T mia i BgsE
T2g847 1,809 49,492
71,734 394 80,439

1,133 1,554
P86 BT 68T
L0y BB (1B2)
CU1139 L2150 1est

70,745 1,442 127,810
40,962 256 70,403
U4y’ 8119 0 56,810
130,632 12,486 . 261,100

_ 2550380 148407 ~ 4254216

Bas830 73951 . 1583969

(162 d12) 7 (579)
11 (857)
846,191 73.850 1,582,537

 amae (eamsy g

3337374 171,307 5,462,061

$ 3559566 $ 164,883 §$ 5,778,944




State of Illinaois

Combining Statement of University and College Current Funds -
Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes

University and College Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Unrestricted
Chicago Eastern Western lllinois Northern Southern
State lllinois llinois State Hiinois lllinois
University University University University University University
REVENUES
“Tuition and fees el DA7,8660 % 33818 § 0 2/948 1'% 89,977 $7. 60454 5 BO 303
i Federal and local grants and eentrasts 825 408 00 : “687 BB BT I - . )
State grants and contracts i i 1280 e 824 293 “hog03
Private gifts, grants and contracts 480 219 63 66 3,003 1,357
Investment income 7 1,038 1,516 724 771 3,918
Sales and servnces 3,595 24,198 35,727 47,666 64,703 113,722
_'.Other bl A28 1607 g 3830 6,745 (4026 i 4655
- Total revenuas "::::: : 22,702 '60,613 69,084 .. 116689 134725 215,930
EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS
Educational and general:
Instruction 29,418 42,370 39,056 58,015 87,032 163,878
“ Resedreh D oaR CoriTag 3,081 3,550 19,932
© Public service G878 0BT e T 2 6,231 4,968 15,079
“Academic support 4,096 8,483 . 22879 12,777 7 23,090 69712
" Student services 3,568 9,950 10,886 .21,697 9,764 35244
Institutional support 9,064 8,624 14,919 38,837 44 572 60,362
Operation and maintenance of plant 6,201 8,393 9,868 16,350 16,042 41,806
/' Scholarships and fellowships 1205 3488 2707 . 7849 - 10,046 ‘5,759
Total educatmnat and generai 58073 . 83283 0 1:0‘-%,-8'55" S 104,887 0 199 964 . A 772
Auxmary éh'te'r'pnses 3,672 20,197 24,593 34,389 46,431 486,600
Hospitals
Independent operatlons
‘ Total expend:tures 187,845 0 108,430 126,448 . . 198,726 -:246,395 " 448,372
.Mandatowtransfers e S i g
Retirement of long-term obllgatlons 5,835 2,761 4,046 5,312 3,865
Student loan maiching grants 329 15 2 21 113
Renewals and replacements 998 4,446 2,401 57
Other | v’ 00 o e A o 167 . -
Total mandatory fransfers ' 4817 BG4 3941 _ ~B,494 7784 4,035
Total expenditures and mandatory transfers ‘s9.162 109,594 130,389 207,220 254129 452,407
OPERATING TRANSFERS AND
ADDITIONS (DEDUCT_I_QN_S)
‘Operating transfers-in. : Beaie e DU e D TR
** Operating transfers from primary govemment ‘87,801 51366, .. 62746 92752° . 118273 239,445
" Operating transfers-out
Operating transfers to primary government (33) (31) (22) (41) (48) (126)
Other transfers 23 (1,167) (1,497) 180 (1,014) (4,092)
i =Excess {deficiency) of restricted: recesms over T s Sl
. {under) transfers to revenue - = e G e
-'Other additions (deductions).: e AB) e 0 e18) L a 578 80
Total operating transfers and addltlons ) ~ -
(deductions}) 37,881 50,153 61,227 92,276 120,787 235,307
TOTALINCREASES{DECREASES)N el T i e T DU i
 FUND BALANCES ' 1421 $: 1172 . % ey s 1745 -8 1383 8 (1170)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integra! part of this statement.
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Unrestricted (continued)

University Non-Major
of Component
lllinois Units Total

$ 277,050 $ 24,337 ' $ 560,838
62511 . 4120 68601

SRTA2 0 e T 4,808
8,282 325 13,795
1,663 371 10,008

548,902 4,015 842,528

20419 435147 - 64,124

930,569 42975 1593287

385,236
85,298
£110,045"

845,568
103,032
‘ 141,404
122 589 - 270,005
51,717 149,548
127,671 36,679 340,728
131,895 11,287 241,842
CEUIO8i678 Lo w8880 1BT,688

1,109,129 7105502 2,219,765

152990 3,050 331,822
248,817 248,817
5956 5,956

1,516,802 " .. 108552 - 2,806,360

32,388 203 54,410
212 73 765
4,561 50 12,513
LEanans 9,924

376 i 466 69,672

1554053 100018  2,875.972

802,845 66353 1471671

(10) . (10)
(156) (70) (527)
 (22,409) 542 (29,434)

400 T am0
BBy (B8) 2,833

780,575 66,817 1,445,023

$ 157,001 $ - 774§ 162,338

{continued)
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State of Illinois

Combining Statement of University and College Current Funds -
Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes

University and College Component Units

For the Year Ended June 30, 1897 (Expressed in Thousands)

Restricted
(continued) Chicago Eastern Western lllinois Northern Southern
State lilinois llinois State Ilinois lllinois
University University University University University University
REVENUES
Tuition andfees 1 : dn T e . T R LT S T S : e
" Federal andJocal grants and comracts woeooo 8 138438 5054 $ 9056 $ 0 9851 o 11802 $ 37 621
State grantsand contracts = e s Ll L BBE P 65,0690 2515 . 5654
Private gifts, grants and contracts 282 2,778 2,176 5,571 5,453 19 495
Investment income 29 647 297 594 58 1,155
Sales and services 169 40
Other T R L R e A8t 461 e iag U IgRR
' Total revenues _ it Coo14,154 CegAgt o o A2B79 . 22,346 19,867 65,787
EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS
Educational and general:
Instruction 1,054 878 2,712 2,851 1,697 9,108
Research ' S casn B I8 e R0 R L g R R 19,738
“Publicservice’ L R R L e i 27&0- sl 54RO 3515, . 428 73,820 ... 19,810
Academic supporf = S e e P 288 4560 08T i e L4812
Student services 1511 23 3 1,483 ' 803
Institutional support 339 166 a5 1,873 337 1,530
Operation and maintenance of plant 101 33 34 124
- 'Bcholarships and fallowshlps L 07 L DgRs 5468 o 8916 8,144 o 9,-28£'_
... Total educational and general | 2154220 0 10,816 0 H4,585 23977 .. 2060277 75308
Auxnllary enterpnses ’ 209 14 662
Hospitals
Independent operations
Total expenditures. ...l s 15,122 10,8167 - 14,585 v 24,186 20,618 75,870
Mandatory transfers: . i . _
Retirement of long-term obligations 114
Student loan matching grants ‘ (312)
Renewals and replacements
Other "0 2 i : s (167). ..
Total mandatory transfers R SR R : G T ORY e (167)‘.
Total expendltures and mandatory transfers 15,122 10,618 14418 24186 20,616 75,970
OPERATING TRANSFERS AND
ADDITIONS(DEDUC‘I’IONS) LR D R R s T ik s y L
. Operating transfers-in . EURTI e e B OB e R R e e a0
. Operating transfers from primary.government ~ © 1,002 7" 1854 2058 2698 | 1134 12087
Operating transfers-out (27) (28) 9)
Operating transfers to primary government
Other transfers 28 {313) (40) (394) 26 660
! “Exvess (deficiéncy) of restricted raceipts ovier bl S B R i T LR A
' (under) ransfers to revenue ~ el e b B0R e 28 e gaR e D B (3Y)
:":Omeraddmons (deductigns) L S SR (29) e BELL L (915)
' Total operating tranéféi's and additions ~
{deductions) 1,040 2,219 2,229 3,209 1,305 12,177
TOTALINCREASES{DECREASES)’IN SRS o o Lt LA
FUND BALANCES © 1 D e T7R 08 1,092 '8 690 % 1369 %0 00586.08 1,094
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Restricted (continued)
University Non-Major Total
of Component Current
lllinois Units Total Funds

I fepniil o i$e 89,838
$ 246210 =% 15156 $ 348,393 416,994
06,065 BB 41,767 . 48,160
153,028 1,197 189,980 203,775
14,364 143 17,287 27,205

209 842,737

Uig02e4 308 103,341 = 167,465
- 538,931 - . 17,482 700,977 . 2294264

114,770 743 133,811 979,379
241,087 399 279,375 382,407
98727 0 . 5424 0439610 . 281,023
63078 . 1,146 . 73765 . 343,770
2,011 6,977 12,811 162,359
2,503 587 7,430 348,158
760 1 1,053 242,895
37,318 4534 0 192591 220,229
560,234 19,811 740,455 2960220

7 13 905 332,727
248,817

5,956

(560,241 - 18,824 741,360 3,547,720

1,368 o 1,482 55,892

(312) 453

12,513

S (o) T Eeny ey
TA,868 . (140). 863 70,475

‘561,608 19,684 742,223 3,618,195

SR . 541 .. . 541
19661 . 1285 41,839 - 1513510
(467) ‘ (531) (541)

(6) (42) (48) (575)
(4,168) (542) {4,743) (34,177)

o7se . 205 29570 _
(988) .8 (1goh) .. g3

41,624 924 64,727 1,509,750

$ 18946 S (1268) 3. 23481 '§ 185819



STATE OF ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 1997

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of the State of
Illinois have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) as
prescribed in pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The State of Illinois is a “primary government” whose
financial statements consist of the primary government,
organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable, and other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the primary government are such that exclusion
would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete.  The financial
statements include all funds, account groups, elected
offices, departments and agencies as well as boards,
commissions, authorities, and universities and colleges
for which the State’s elected officials are financially
accountable. Financial accountability exists when the
State’s governing body appoints a majority of an
organization’s governing board and (1) the State can
impose its’ will upon the organization or (2) there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefit to, or impose specific financial
burdens on the State.

The State’s governing body consists of the legislative,
executive, and judicial branches of government. The
legislative function is controlled by an elected General
Assembly composed of a 59-member Senate and a 118-
member House of Representatives. The executive
branch consists of the Governor, the chief executive of
the State, the Lieutenant Governor, Attorney General,
Secretary of State, Comptroller, and Treasurer. The
judicial branch is composed of a seven-member
Supreme Court, five districts of Appellate courts and
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twenty-two Circuit Court judicial districts including
Cook County.

The financial statements distinguish between the
“primary government” and its “component units.” The
State’s participation in a joint venture, related
organizations, and jointly governed organizations are
separately disclosed below. The primary government
which consists of organizations that make up the State’s
legal entity, is the nucleus of the State’s reporting
entity, and is generally the focal point for users of the
financial statements. Component units are legally
separate organizations for which the State is financially
accountable. An overview of the State’s component
units is presented in the financial statements by
“discrete” presentation (i.e., columns presently
separately from the primary government). Condensed
financial statements for the State’s discretely presented
component units are displayed in note 18.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Component units are reported in separate columns to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the State.
Complete financial statements of the individual
component units can be obtained from the respective
component unit administrative offices (as listed in
parenthesis below). Except for the Board of Trustees
of the University of Illinois whose current board is
partly elected, the major component units presented
below have governing bodies appointed by the
governing board of the State. The State is financially
accountable for these component units, and, therefore,
they are reported in separate “discrete” columns in the
State’s financial statements.

1. Minois Grain Insurance Corporation
(“Corporation”). The board of directors of the
Corporation consists of five State officials who
administer the Illinois Grain Insurance Fund. The
State can impose its will on the Corporation and is
obligated to provide funding to satisfy claims when
corporate funds are insufficient. (Administrative
Offices: PO Box 19281, Springfield, Illinois
62794-9281).



Minois Conservation Foundation
(“Foundation”). The Foundation was created to
promote, support, assist, sustain, and encourage the
charitable, educational, scientific, and recreational
programs, projects, and policies of the Ilinois
Department of Natural Resources. The State has
the ability to impose its will on the Foundation.
(Administrative Offices: 524 South 2™  Street,
Springfield, Hlinois 62701-1787).

East St. Louis Financial Advisory Authority
(“Authority”). The Authority was created to
provide a secure financial basis for and to furnish
assistance to the city of East St. Louis. The State
substantively approves the Authority’s budget.
(Administrative Offices: 10 Collinsville Ave., East
St. Louis, Illinois 62201).

lMlinois  Medical  District = Commission
(“Commission”). The Commission was created to
maintain and expand a designated ‘“medical
district.” The State substantively approves the
Commission’s budget. (Administrative Offices:
600 S. Hoyne, Chicago, Illinois 60612).
Comprehensive Health Insurance Plan
(“CHIP") Board. The CHIP provides an alternate
market for health insurance for eligible Illinois
residents having a preexisting health condition.
The State provides significant operating subsidies
to the CHIP. (Administrative Offices: 400 West
Monroe Street, Suite 202, Springfield, Illinois
62704).

llinois Farm  Development  Authority
(“Authority”). The Authority provides loan
programs for acquisiion and development of
agricultural facilities. The State guarantees certain
debt of the Authority in the event of default by the
debtor. (Administrative Offices: 427 East Monroe
Street, Suite 201, Springfield, Illinois 62701).
fllinois Health Facilities Authority (“IHFA”). The
IHFA provides assistance and alternative methods
of financing to health institutions to aid them in
providing quality care. ITHFA issues tax-exempt
debt to finance its operations. (Administrative
Offices: 180 North Stetson Avenue, Suite 1100,
Chicago, Illinois 60601).

Mllinois  Development Finance  Authority
(“IDFA”). The IDFA provides funding for
industrial, commercial and  manufacturing

development in areas of Illinois with critical
unemployment. The State appropriates funds for
certain IDFA programs. (Administrative Offices:
233 South Wacker Drive, Suite 5310, Chicago,
Illinois 60606).

Minois  Housing Development  Authority
(“IHDA”). The THDA issues notes and bonds to
make loans for the acquisition, construction and
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

rehabilitation of housing and to make loans to
encourage home ownership. The State approves
bonds and notes issued by the IHDA and is
secondarily liable for its debt if there are not
sufficient ITHDA monies to pay principal and
interest.  (Administrative Offices: 401 North
Michigan Avenue, Suite 900, Chicago, Illinois
60611).

linois Rural Bond Bank (“Bond Bank”). The
Bond Bank provides assistance to rural
governmental units by providing adequate capital
markets and facilities for borrowing money and
financing public improvements at low interest
rates. The State is secondarily liable for payment
of principal and interest on the Bond Bank debt.
Excess reserves of the Bond Bank must be
returned to the State’s General Fund.
(Administrative Offices: 427 East Monroe Street,
Suite 202, Springfield, Illinois 62701).

Winois State Toll Highway Authority (“THA”).
The THA operates a toll highway system to
promote the public welfare, and to facilitate
vehicular traffic by providing convenient, safe,
modern and limited access highways within
Illinois. The State approves new toll highways and
issuance of bonds. (Administrative Offices: One
Authority Drive, Downers Grove, Illinois 60515).
Southwestern illinois Development Authority
(“Authority”). The Authority was created to
promote and enhance economic development in
Southwestern Illinois. The State approves bonds
issued by the Authority. (Administrative Offices: 1
Eastport Plaza Dr., Collinsville, Illinois 62234).
Quad Cities Regional Economic Development
Authority  (“Authority”). The Authority was
created to promote industrial, commercial,
residential, service, transportation and recreational
activities and facilities in the northwestern part of
the State. The State approves bonds issued by the
Authority. (Administrative Offices: 1830 2nd Ave.,
Suite 200, Rock Island, Illinois 61204.

Upper lllinois River Valley Development
Authority (“Authority”). The Authority was
created to promote industrial, commercial,
residential, service, transportation and recreational
activities and facilities in the Upper Illinois River
Valley in north central Illinois. (Administrative
Offices: 321 West Main St., Ottawa, Illinois
61350).

Boards’ of Truslees of Eastern [Minois
University (“EIU"), Western lllinois University
(“WIU”), Chicago State University (“CSU”),
Northeastern  Illlinois  University  (“NEIL"),
Governors State University (“GSU”), llinois
State University (“ISU”), and Northern lllinois



State of Illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

University (“NIU”) ("boards”). The boards of the
respective universities operate, manage, conirol
and maintain the schools. Until January 1, 1996,
these universities were legally controlled by the
Board of Governors and Board of Regents which
have been abolished. The State provides significant
financial support to the boards of the universities.
(Administrative Offices:

® (CSU, 9501 South King Dr., Chicago, Illinois
60628

® FEIU, 113 West Old Main, Charleston, Illinois
61920

e

GSU, Route 54 & Stuenkel Rd., University
Park, Illinois 60466

® NEIU, 5500 N. St. Louis Avenue, Chicago,

Hlinois 60625
® WIU, 1 University Circle, Macomb, Illinois
61455
® ISU, Campus Box 1200, Normal, Illinois
61790-1200
® NIU, Altgeld Hall 104, DeKalb, Illinois
60115).
16. Board of Trustees of Southern IMinois
University (“SIU Board”). The SIU Board
operates, manages, controls and maintains

Southern Illinois University. The State provides
significant financial support to the SIU Board.
(Administrative Offices: Colyer Hall, Carbondale,
Nlinois 62901).

Board of Trustees of the University of lllinois
(“U of | Board"). The U of I Board contains both
elected and appointed trustees who manage the
University of Illinois. As existing board members’
terms expire, they will be appointed by the
Governor. The State provides significant financial
support to the U of I Board. (Administrative
Offices: 346 Administration Building, 506 South
Wright Street, Urbana, Illinois 61801).

17.

Condensed financial statement information is presented
in note 18 for each of the State’s discretely presented
component units.

Joint Ventures
The State is a participant with the states of Michigan,

Minnesota, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, and
Wisconsin in the Great Lakes Protection Fund
(“Fund™), an Illinois not-for-profit corporation. The

nation’s first multi-state environmental endowment
was established in 1989 for furthering Federal and State
commitments to programs that restore and maintain the
Great Lakes water quality. This purpose is achieved by
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providing grant money for projects that promote the
objectives of the regional Great Lakes Toxic
Substances Control Agreement and the binational Great
Lakes Water Quality Agreement.

A state becomes a member of the organization by
agreeing to contribute an amount set forth in the articles
of incorporation. Illinois’ required contribution is $15
million of which $10.8 million has been paid. Illinois
currently is in default under the articles of
incorporation and is subject to various sanctions. The
required contributions from all member states at
December 31, 1996 was $81 million of which $76.8
million has been paid. The Fund’s net assets on that
date were $81 million.

Once a state agrees to make the required contribution,
that state’s governor becomes a “member” of the
corporation. Each member is entitled to elect two
individuals to the board of directors. Budgetary and
financial decisions rest with the board of directors
except where restricted by the articles of incorporation.
Two-thirds of the Fund’s income is used to finance
projects compatible with the organization’s objectives
as set forth in the articles of incorporation. The
remaining one-third of income is paid to member states
in proportion to the amount and period of time that
each state’s contribution was invested with the Fund
(“state shares™). Illinois’ state share was $36 thousand
in 1996 and nearly $1.1 million since the Fund’s
inception. The affirmative vote of all of the members is
required for all actions of the Fund. Complete financial
statements of the Fund can be obtained from the Fund’s
administrative offices at 35 East Wacker Drive, Suite
1880, Chicago, Illinois 60601.

Related Organizations

The State’s officials are also responsible for appointing
the majority of the boards of other organizations, but
the State’s accountability does not go beyond making
the appointments. The State, generally the Governor,
in certain instances with the advice and consent of the
Senate, appoints the members of the following boards:

® (Central Midwest Interstate Low-Level Radioactive
Waste Commission

Havana Regional Port District
Kaskaskia Regional Port District
Mt. Carmel Regional Port District
Shawneetown Regional Port District
Southwest Regional Port District
Tri-City Regional Port District

Waukegan Port District
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® White County Port District

® llinois Community College System Foundation

The State maintains accounting records for the Central
Midwest & Interstate Low-Level Radioactive Waste
Commission. The Illinois Community College Board
provides nominal support services for the Illinois
Community College System Foundation. These are the
only related-party activities that the State has with the
above organizations.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The State’s officials, in conjunction with various other
state and local government officials, are members of
the boards of other organizations. However, the State
has no ongoing financial interest or responsibility
except the role of a participant in the organization’s
purpose and, in certain instances, pays annual dues or
assessments. The Governor, sometimes with the advice
and consent of the Senate, appoints the number of
board members (as indicated in parenthesis below) of
the following organizations:

® Bi-State Development Agency of  the
Missouri/Illinois Metropolitan District (5 of 10)
® Education Commission of the States (7 of

approximately 350)

Ilinois/Indiana Bi-State Commission (2 of 12)
Illinois/Indiana Bridge Commission (5 of 10)
Illinois Valley Regional Port District (2 of 5)
Interstate Mining Commission (1 of 17)
Jackson/Union Counties Port District (4 of 23)
Joliet Regional Port District (3 of 7)

Lawyers Trust Fund (3 of 9)

Midwestern Higher Education Commission (5 of
60)

® Northeastern Illinois Planning Commission (5 of
33)

® Ohio River Valley Water Sanitation Commission
(2 of 18)

® Southwestern Illinois Metropolitan & Regional
Planning Commission (8 appointed)

® Wabash Valley Interstate Commission (7 of 14)

The State has no significant related-party activities with
the above organizations.
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C. Fund Accounting

Financial activities of the State are organized on the
basis of individual funds and account groups, each of
which is a separate accounting entity segregated for the
purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining
certain objectives in accordance with specific
regulations, restrictions or limitations. The financial
activities of the State accounted for in the
accompanying financial statements have been classified
into the following fund categories and account groups:

Governmental Fund Types

General - Transactions related to resources obtained
and used for those services traditionally provided by a
state government which are not required to be
accounted for in other funds are accounted for in the
General Fund. These services include, among others,
social assistance, education (other than institutions of
higher education), and health and social services.
Certain resources obtained from federal grants and used
to support general governmental activities are
accounted for in the General Fund consistent with
applicable legal requirements. The State’s General
Fund contains four primary sub-accounts (General
Revenue, Education Assistance, Common School, and
Medicaid Provider Assessment Program) with
numerous secondary sub-accounts.

Special Revenue - Transactions related to resources
obtained from specific revenue sources (other than for
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes
are accounted for in special revenue funds. Special
revenue funds account for, among other things, federal
grant programs, taxes levied with statutorily defined
distributions, and other resources restricted as to

purpose.

Debt Service - Transactions related to governmental
resources obtained and accumulated to pay interest and
principal on general long-term obligations (other than
capital leases, compensated absences, workers’
compensation, and unfunded retirement costs) are
generally accounted for in debt service funds.

Capital Projects - Transactions related to resources
obtained and used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities, including those provided to
political subdivisions and other public organizations,
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which are charged to expenditures (other than those
financed by proprietary, fiduciary, and university and
college fund types) are accounted for in capital projects
funds. Such resources are derived principally from
proceeds of general and special obligation bond issues.

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise - Enterprise funds account for operations
where the intent of the State is that the cost of
providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges, or where periodic measurement
of the results of operations is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

Internal Service - Internal service funds account for
the operations of State agencies which render services
and provide goods to other State agencies or
governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust -

Expendable - Expendable trust funds account for assets
held by the State in a trustee capacity where the
principal and income may be expended in the course of
the funds’ designated operations.

Nonexpendable - Nonexpendable trust funds account
for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity where
only the income may be expended in the course of the
funds’ designated operations.

Pension - Pension trust funds account for transactions,
assets, liabilities and fund balances reserved for
employees’ pension benefits of the various State public
employee retirement systems.

Agency _
Agency funds account for the various taxes, deposits,
deductions, and property collected by the State, acting
in the capacity of an agent, for distribution to other
governmental units or designated beneficiaries.

Universities and Colleges

University and college funds account for the operations
of State universities and colleges, including their
related foundations and associations (referred to as
university related organizations or “UROs”). The
UROs are component units of their related universities
and the universities are, in turn, component units of the
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State. The discrete presentation of the universities and
colleges within the State’s financial statements is in
accordance with NACUBQ accounting and reporting
principles. The universities are reported in the financial
statements based upon their legal ownership as follows:

® Chicago State, Eastern Illinois, Governors State,
Northeastern Illinois, Western Illinois, Illinois
State, and Northern Illinois are managed, operated,
controlled, and maintained by individual boards of
trustecs at those universities.

Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University -
Southern Illinois University at Carbondale,
Edwardsville, and the Medical School at
Springfield are operated, managed, controlled, and
maintained by the SIU Board of Trustees.

® University of Illinois Board of Trustees - The
University of Illinois at Champaign-Urbana,
Chicago, Springfield, and the Medical Center at
Chicago, are managed by the University of Illinois
Board of Trustees.

Account Groups

General Fixed Assels. General fixed assets
acquired or constructed for use by the State in the
conduct of its activities, other than those accounted
for in proprietary, fiduciary and university and
college fund types are accounted for in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group.

General Long-Term Obligations. Unmatured
general and special obligation bonds, unfunded
retirement costs, and other long-term obligations
not recorded in proprietary, fiduciary and universi-
ty and college fund types are recorded in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

D. Basis of Accounting and

Measurement Focus

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Governmental Fund and Expendable Trust Funds.
The accounts of the general, special revenue, debt
service, capital projects and expendable trust funds are
reported using a current financial resources
measurement focus and modified accrual basis of
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accounting. Under this measurement focus only
current assets and current liabilities are normally
included on the balance sheet. Fund balance
represents a measure of “available spendable
resources.” Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible
to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and
available to finance expenditures of the fiscal year).
“Measurable” means when the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred. Significant revenue sources
which are susceptible to accrual include individual and
corporate income taxes, sales taxes, public utility taxes
and motor fuel taxes.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to
intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs are
used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two
types of these revenues. In one type, monies must be
expended on the specific purpose or project before any
amounts will be paid to the State; therefore, revenues
are recognized based upon the expenditure recorded.
In the other type, monies are virtually unrestricted as to
purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only
for failure to comply with prescribed compliance
requirements.  These resources are reflected as
revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the
susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting
include:

® Sclf assessed taxes, principally income, excise and
wealth taxes, are recognized as receivables and
revenues in the period to which they apply subject
to their availability.

Fines, penalties, licenses and other miscellaneous
revenues are recognized when received since they
normally are only measurable at that time.

® Interest on long-term obligations reflected in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group is
recognized in the debt service funds when it
becomes payable.

Proprietary Funds, and Nonexpendable and Pension
Trust Funds. The accounts of the enterprise, internal
service, and nonexpendable and pension trust funds are
reported using the capital maintenance measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this
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measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated
with the operation of these funds are included on the
balance sheet. Fund equity is segregated into
contributed capital and retained earnings components.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when incurred.

As permitted by GASB Statement 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting, generally, the State has elected to apply
only statements and interpretations of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of
the Committee on Accounting Procedure issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless: those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements,

Agency Funds. The accounts of agency funds are
reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting
as described above for governmental and expendable
trust funds. Agency funds do not measure nor report
operations. Instead, changes in assets and liabilities are
presented for agency funds.

University and College Funds. The accounts of the
university and college funds are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting with the following
exceptions:

® Depreciation expense related to plant fund assets
generally is not recorded.

® Revenues and expenditures of an academic term
encompassing more than one fiscal year are solely
reported in the fiscal year in which the program is
predominantly conducted.

E. Eliminations

Eliminations have been integrated into the report to
eliminate those items which would significantly
overstate the financial activities of certain funds and
intrafund accounts within the related fund type.

F. Total (Memorandum Only)
Columns

Total columns represent an aggregation of the fund
type and account group financial statements. They are
presented for informational purposes and do not
represent consolidated financial information.
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G. Budgetary Process

The State Constitution requires the Governor to prepare
and submit to the General Assembly an Executive
Budget for the ensuing fiscal year. The budget covers
most funds held by the State, but excludes all locally
held funds and various treasury held funds which are
not subject to appropriation pursuant to State law. The
General Assembly enacts the budget through passage of
specific line-item appropriations (i.e., personal
services, contractual services, equipment, etc.), the sum
of which must not exceed estimated revenues pursuant
to the State Constitution. The Governor has the power
to approve, reduce or veto each appropriation passed
by the General Assembly. Transfers in/out contained in
the Executive Budget are not a part of the General
Assembly’s appropriation process. The actual amounts
are determined either by State law or by discretionary
action available to the Governor. The Comptroller’s
Uniform Statewide Accounting System (“CUSAS")
controls expenditures by line-item as established in
approved appropriation bills and insures that
appropriated expenditure amounts are not exceeded.

The level of legal control is reported in a publication
titled Illinois Detailed Annual Report of Revenues and
Expenditures. A separate document is necessary since
the State has over 9,200 appropriated line items.
Administrative transfers between certain appropriation
line-items within the same treasury held fund cannot
exceed 2% of the aggregate amount appropriated to an
agency from that fund. Legislative action is required
for more substantial transfers. Unexpended
appropriations at June 30 are available for subsequent
expenditure to the extent that encumbrances have been
incurred at June 30, provided they are presented for
payment during the succeeding 2-month “lapse period.”
Certain appropriations referred to as “reappropriations”
represent the continuation of a prior year's program
which requires additional time for completion.

Budgeted revenues in the accompanying Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources
and Uses of Financial Resources and Changes in
Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-
GAAP) represent original estimates, while budgeted
expenditures represent original appropriations modified
by supplemental and amendatory and continuing
appropriations aggregating $808 million. Final budget
expenditures include accounts reappropriated to the
subsequent fiscal year. Budgets are essentially on the
cash basis, modified for expenditures during the lapse
period (beginning and end of year) as described in the
preceding paragraph.
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CUSAS establishes the following budgetary fund
groups to account for the State’s budgetary activities:

General - funds established to account for those
services traditionally provided by a state
government which are not required to be accounted
for in other funds;

Highway - funds established to receive and
distribute assessments related to transportation,
and to support the construction and maintenance of
transportation facilities and activities of the State;

University - funds established to receive revenues
such as fees, tuition and excess income from
auxiliary enterprises at State-supported institutions
of higher education;

Special State - funds designated by statute as
special funds in the State Treasury and not
clsewhere classified;

Bond Financed - funds established to receive and
administer the proceeds of various bond issues of
the State;

Debt Service - funds established to finance and
account for the payment of principal and interest
generally associated with the general and special
obligation bond issues of the State;

Federal Trust - funds established pursuant to
grants and contracts or under statutory authority
between State agencies and the federal
government;

Revolving - funds established to finance and
account for intra-governmental services; and,

State Trust - funds established by statute or under
statutory authority for nonfederal programs which
are not deemed to be a traditional governmental
activity or elsewhere classified.

H. Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible to cash with
original maturities of three months or less. Cash
equivalents consist principally of certificates of deposit,
repurchase agreements, U.S. treasury bills and food
stamps, and are stated at cost.

L Investments

Investments are stated on the basis of cost except for
those of the State Employees’ Deferred Compensation
Fund, and investments in mutual funds and investments
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of the State’s pension trust funds which are stated at
fair value. Generally, the State’s pension systems’
marketable securities are valued at closing prices listed
on national securities exchanges and quotes from
independent pricing services as of June 30. Real estate
and venture capital are valued based upon appraisals
and discounted cash flow analysis.

Investment income is recorded as revenue in the
General Fund, except for resources of retirement
systems and certain other individual funds which are
statutorily authorized to be separately invested and
specifically credited with the income realized thereon.
The State financial statements contain certain
investments that meet the definition of “derivatives”.
Derivative investments are included in the pension trust
funds as disclosed in note 4.

GASB Statement 28, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Securities Lending Transactions, 1is
effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after December 15, 1995. The State has implemented
the standard in fiscal year 1997.

J. Inventories

Inventories for governmental funds are valued at cost,
principally on the first-in, first-out consumption
method.

K. Interfund Transactions

The State has the following types of interfund
transactions:

Quasi-external transactions - Charges for services
rendered by one fund to another are treated as
revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or
expenses of the disbursing fund.

Reimbursements - Reimbursement of expenditures
made by one fund for another are recorded as
expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a
reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed fund.

Residual Egquity Transfers - Nonroutine or
nonrecurring transfers between funds are reported
as additions to or deductions from fund equity.

Operating Transfers - Legally authorized transfers
other than residual equity transfers are reported as
operating transfers.

L Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixed assets are recorded at cost or, for donated assets,
at fair market value at date of acquisition.
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General Fixed Assets - Fixed asset records are
used by the State primarily to assure
accountability. Historical cost records for certain
general fixed assets are incomplete or not
available. Accordingly, estimated historical costs
have been used. Public domain (infrastructure)
general fixed assets such as highways, bridges, and
lighting systems are not capitalized. Depreciation
is not provided on general fixed assets and interest
expenditures incurred during the construction
period are not capitalized.

Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Types - It 1s the

State’s policy to capitalize interest expense
incurred on significant assets during their
construction. Generally, property, plant and

equipment, excluding land, are depreciated on the
straight-line method over the estimated service
lives of the respective assets as follows:

Years
Land improvements 20-50
Buildings and building improvements  20-50
Equipment 3-10

University and College Funds - Generally, public
domain (infrastructure) assets such as streets,
sidewalks, and lighting systems are not capitalized.
Depreciation generally is not provided on property,
plant and equipment.

M. Retirement Costs

Substantially all State employees, including members
of the General Assembly and Judicial Branch,
participate in one of three State public employee
retirement systems (see Note 10). The State also
maintains and funds public employee retirement
systems for employees of the various State supported
universities and colleges, and for public school teachers
in cities other than Chicago. It is the State’s policy to
fund retirement costs without regard to amounts
calculated under the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 8. Based on
actuarial consultations, the State’s contributions have
been less than the retirement benefits paid during the
year for the last fifteen fiscal years. Prior to fiscal year
1982, the State had funded the retirement costs at a
level at least as great as the retirement benefits paid
during the year.

Effective July 1, 1996, the State adopted the provisions
of GASB Statement 27, Accounting for Pensions by
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State and Local Governmental Employers to determine
pension cost. Accordingly, calculated pension cost
comprises the employer’s annual required contributions
(i.e., the “ARC”) which equals normal cost plus interest
on unfunded prior service cost and amortization of
prior service cost over forty years, one year’s interest
on the net pension obligation, and an adjustment to the
ARC to offset the effect of actuarial amortization of
past under or over contributions. For the period of
change, the pension liability previously recorded in the
general long-term obligations account group has been
restated in accordance with GASB Statement 27,

N. Capital Appreciation

(“deep-discount”) Bonds

Capital appreciation bonds are those bonds which are
issued at stated interest rates significantly below their
effective interest rate, resulting in a substantial
discount. The implicit interest (i.e., discount) is not
paid until the bond matures. Therefore, the net value of
the bonds “accretes” (i.e., the discount is reduced) over
the life of the bonds. For general and special obligation
bonds, the accreted amounts are included in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

0. Compensated Absences

The amounts of vested unpaid vacation and sick leave
accumulated by State employees are accrued when
incurred in proprietary and university and college
funds, which use the accrual basis of accounting. In the
governmental funds, only the amounts that normally
would be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources are accrued as current-year expenditures.
Employees are charged for the earliest sick leave
carned when the leave is used, and they are
compensated for one-half of sick time accumulated
after January 1, 1984 which is unused upon termination
of employment. The State’s liability for unused vested
sick leave and vacation time, including salary related
costs (e.g., social security and medicare tax), is
recorded in the accompanying financial statements at
the employees’ current salary level. Unless it is
anticipated that compensated absences will be used in
excess of a normal year’s accumulation, no additional
expenditures are accrued. Therefore, the entire unpaid
liability for the governmental funds is recorded in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

P. Workers’ Compensation Liability

The fund liabilities of the General Fund, Road and
Mental Health (Special Revenue) Funds include the
amount of workers’ compensation claims that would
normally be liquidated with expendable available
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financial resources. The remaining liability, based on
the State’s workers’ compensation laws, is reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
and University and College Funds.

Q. Encumbrances

The State employs encumbrance accounting for all
governmental fund types. All contracts, purchase
orders and other commitments for goods or services
that have not been received/rendered by June 30 are
reported as reservations of fund balances, not as
expenditures.

R. Reservations/Designations of
Fund Equity
Reservations

Governmental and Fiduciary Funds - Fund balances of
governmental and fiduciary fund types which are
legally restricted to a specific future use or that are not
available for appropriation or expenditure are reported
as reservations of fund balances.

University and College Funds - Fund balances of
university and college  funds which are legally
restricted by outside sources to specific future use are
reported as reservations of fund balances.

Proprietary Funds - Reserved retained earnings of the
proprietary funds are legally restricted for the payments
of capital maintenance and debt service related to
revenue bonds and bond anticipation notes and for
other purposes.

Designations

Designations of unreserved fund balances in
governmental, fiduciary and university and college
funds indicate the State’s plan for use of financial
resources in future periods.

S. Risk Management

Insurance in force on State-owned assets is limited
except for certain university facilities. Further, the
State makes no provision for anticipated losses in the
event of involuntary conversions. The State’s liability
exposures, including workers’ compensation, vehicle,
employee fidelity and surety, legal representation and
employee indemnification, general liability, and other
tort liability are retained. Liabilities for claims,
including claims incurred but not reported, are recorded
in the funds or the General Long-Term Obligations
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Account Group as appropriate. The State has met its
financial obligation associated with losses sustained
from its current resources in the past, even though
limited insurance coverage is purchased. .

The State administers two public entity risk pools for
non-state employers - one for local governments and
another for school districts. The Local Government
Health Insurance Reserve Fund offers a health
insurance program to local governments and its
employees and retirees and the Teacher Health
Insurance Security Fund offers health insurance for
school district teachers and retired teachers. These
funds are included as enterprise funds in the State’s
CAFR. Detailed information on these programs can be

obtained from the Department of Central Management
Services which administers both plans. Separate audit
reports are issued for both plans and include the
required pool supplementary information.

T. Financial Reporting Standards

For periods beginning after June 15, 1997, GASB
Statement 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting
Jor Certain Investments and for External Investment
Pools”, is effective. The statement will require
reporting investments at fair value except for pension
plans and section 457 plans which are currently
reported at fair value and will be implemented in the
fiscal year 1998 CAFR.
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Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances-
2 BUDGETARY BASIS VS. GAAP Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP), All Budgeted Fund
Groups, presents comparisons of the legally adopted
budget (more fully described in Note 1-G) with actual
data on a budgetary basis. Since accounting principles
applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary

The accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
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basis differ significantly from those used to present
financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles, a reconciliation
(amounts expressed in thousands) of resulting basis,
perspective, entity and timing differences in the excess

(deficiency) of revenues over (under) expend-
itures/expenses and other sources (uses) of financial
resources for the year ended June 30, 1997 is presented
below:

Primary Government:(Continued) Component Units
Federal = State - : Fi
Trust " Revolving " Trust =~ "
ek ' : S Neme o _
‘Internal : L Expendabile Expendable  Govern- _ University
“Servige: 'Enterprise Trust Trust merital  Proprietary ‘& College |
| $51,616° $26699  $(11,491)
(46,480) 1,534 (661,893) oo o
118219« 6995 710,435
(102,040) () (8674)
21,315 35227 28377
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65 17,665 60,915 a4 1320 58,832 318,189
.

33



State of Illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

RESTATEMENTS OF FUND
BALANCES

3

The pension trust fund balances reserved for
employees’ pension benefits have been restated to
reflect the adjustment of investments to “fair value” as
required by GASB Statement 27 which was
implemented in the current fiscal year.

The General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
balance was restated to reflect the State’s net pension
obligation at transition in accordance with GASB
Statement 27.

The July 1, 1996 fund type and account group balances
(amounts expressed in thousands) have been restatcd as
follows:

Primary Government

- Statement 27 : ‘
Fund BalancelAccount Group halance, '
July 1,1996, as restated = ‘

To adjust pensnon mvestmems 1o fasr vaiue m
- ‘accordance with GASB Statement. 27

To adjust the net pension obligation at .
transition in accordance with GASB

Fund Type Accouni Group

s General
' Pension Long-‘!‘erm
_ Trust_ 0bl|gat|ons
$ 23 584, 663 $ 20 ,203,765

$ 27570961 § 18,351,900

I 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS I

The State Treasurer is the custodian of the State’s cash,
cash equivalents, and investments for most funds
maintained in the State Treasury. Funds maintained
outside the State Treasury (locally held funds) have
independent authority to manage their own cash and
investments. As described later, the funds of the
State’s retirement systems are invested separately.

Investment Policy -

General

Statutes authorize public agencies, including the State
of Illinois Primary Government and its Component
Units, to engage in a wide variety of investment
activities. These include bonds, notes, certificates of
indebtedness, treasury bills or other securities
guaranteed by the United States; interest-bearing
savings accounts, certificates of deposit, or
interest-bearing time deposits or any other investments
that constitute direct obligations of any bank;
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short-term obligations of certain qualified United States
corporations; short-term discount obligations of the
Federal National Mortgage Association; shares or other
securities legally issued by certain state or federal
savings and loan associations; insured dividend-bearing
share accounts and certain other accounts of chartered
credit unions; certain money market mutual funds;
Public Treasurer's Pool; and repurchase agreements
that meet certain instrument and transaction
requirements. Statutes require that investments
purchased must mature or be redeemable prior to the
date they will be needed to pay expenditures.

The investments of the State’s five retirement systems
(classified as pension trust funds) are governed by the
State Pension Code. Authorized investments consist of
bonds, equities, real estate, venture capital and other
activities that are consistent with the “prudent person”
rule. The “prudent person” rule, as adopted by the
Illinois General Assembly in 1982, states that
fiduciaries must discharge their duties with the care,
skill, prudence and diligence which a prudent person
acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters
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would use under conditions prevailing at the time.

In addition to statutory requirements, Primary
Government agencies and Component Units have
adopted their own supplemental investment practices
which further regulate such activities.

Derivatives

Certain  State agencies, principally Teachers’
Retirement System (TRS) and State Universities
Retirement System (SURS), invest in  derivative
securities. A derivative security is an investment whose
payoff depends upon the value of other assets such as
commodity prices, bond and stock prices or a market
index. 1In general, a derivative is used to modify
exposure to undesirable risks, to increase portfolio
liquidity and flexibility, or to enhance investment yields
within the level of risk defined in the agency’s
investment guidelines.

Derivative transactions involve, to varying degrees,
credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the possibility
that a loss may occur because a party to a transaction
fails to perform according to terms. In order to
eliminate credit risk, all derivative securities of TRS
and SURS are done through a clearinghouse which
guarantees delivery and accepts the risk of default by
either party. Market risk is the possibility that a change
in interest or currency rates will cause the value of a
financial instrument to decrease or become more costly
to settle. The market risk associated with derivatives,
the prices of which are constantly fluctuating, is
regulated by TRS and SURS by imposing strict limits
as to the types, amounts and degree of risk that
investment managers may undertake. These limits are
approved by governing bodies and senior management,
and the risk positions of the investment managers are
reviewed periodically to monitor compliance with
limits.

TRS and SURS invest in the following types of
derivatives: foreign cumrency forward contracts,
collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO’s), financial
futures, and financial options.

Foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge
against the currency risk in agencies’ foreign stock and
fixed income security portfolios. Foreign currency
forward contracts are an agreement to buy or sell a
specific amount of a foreign currency at a specified
delivery or maturity date for an agreed upon price.
Fluctuations in the market value of foreign currency
forward contracts are not recognized until the maturity
or the settlement date of the contract. Foreign currency
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forward contracts represent an off-balance sheet
obligation because there are no balance sheet assets or
liabilities associated with those contracts. As of June
30, 1997, SURS foreign currency forward contracts
purchased were off-set by foreign currency forward
contracts sold, resulting in a net book value of $0. As
of June 30, 1997, the net unrealized gain on foreign
currency forward contracts totaled $838 (expressed in
thousands). As of June 30, 1997, TRS had a net
unrealized gain on the foreign currency forward
contracts totaling $10,065 (expressed in thousands).

Financial futures are an agreement to buy or sell a
specific amount of an asset at a specified delivery or
maturity date for an agreed-upon price. As the market
value of the futures contract varies from the original
contract price, a gain or loss is recognized and paid to
the clearinghouse. Financial futures represent an off-
balance sheet obligation because there are no balance
sheet assets or liabilities associated with those
contracts. The cash or securities to fulfill these
obligations are held in the investment portfolio.

Financial options are an agreement that gives one party
the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a specific
amount of an asset for a specified price, called the
strike price, on or before a specified expiration date.
As writers of financial options, TRS and SURS receive
a premium at the outset of the agreement and bear the
risk of an unfavorable change in the price of the
financial instrument underlying the option. Premiums
received are recorded as a liability when the financial
options are written, and gains or losses are recognized
at the time the options are exercised or when they
expire. As purchasers of financial options, TRS and
SURS pay a premium at the outset of the agreement
and the counterparty bears the risk of an unfavorable
change in the price of the financial instrument
underlying the option. Premiums paid are recorded as
an asset when the financial option is purchased and
gains or losses are recognized when the options are
exercised by the agency or they expire.

As of June 30, 1997, SURS book and market values
(expressed in thousands) of option contracts written
were (85) and ($5), respectively. As of June 30, 1997,
TRS book and market values (expressed in thousands)
of option contracts written were $6,348 and $6,920,
respectively. The book value of option contracts written
represents the premiums received, and the market value
represents the amount to be paid to close all positions
as of that date.
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Contractual Principal Outstandmg
: (ex_pressed in thousands) i

i Type of DerwatWe Contract

5 'fDomestsc Interest Rate Products - ;
' Fixed income futures. purchased

. Fixed

iy »thed

wcome futures sold.
come wr?tten put optlons

i =‘lntema’tsonaf lnterest Rate Products
intematlonal fixed i income bond call options:

- Intemational fixed income written put Optxons
Eurodollar purchased put opﬂons i

: -Domes’ac Equuty Products
“'SRPB00 index firtures: purchased

-‘Ztntemattona! Equnty Praducts
‘Index {utures purchased :

: QF reign Currency Products
" Currency futures:

_ Wnttencai! options.
' H‘Wntten put: ophons

baiance sheet values

oy Teachers Umversstues _
..... " Retirement :.Retirement " -
‘ ' . System

‘International fixed income futures: purchasea e

Intemational fixed income written bond put options

~ Written S&P 500 index call opttons S

' “*“Fhe contractual prmcxpal amoums Essted above represent the market value of the underlymg
! assets the derivative contracts contre! Contractual prmclpal values do nct raprasant actual

189912

o 78402

As of June 30, 1997, SURS book and market value
(expressed in thousands) of option contracts purchased
were ($5) and $4,617, respectively. The book value of
option contracts purchased represents the premiums
paid, and the market value represents the amount to be
received to close all positions as of that date.

The above table represents the derivative positions held
by TRS and SURS at June 30, 1997 in financial futures
and financial options (expressed in thousands).
Additional information concerning the derivative
investments of TRS and SURS can be obtained from
their separately issued annual reports.

Contractual principal amounts are often used to express
the volume of these transactions but do not reflect the
extent to which positions may offset one another.
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These amounts do not represent the much smaller
amounts potentially subject to risk.

Deposits -

Primary Government

On June 30, 1997, the carrying amount of the State’s
Primary Government cash deposits (amounts expressed
in thousands) was $1,872,412 and the bank balance was
$2,250,811. Of the bank balance, $2,084,935 was
covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral
held by the State or the State’s agent in the State’s
name, $2,242 was covered by collateral held in the
pledging bank’s trust department or by its agent in the
State’s name, and $163,634 was uninsured and
uncollateralized.
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Component Units

On June 30, 1997, the carrying amount of the State’s
Component Units cash deposits (amounts expressed in
thousands) was $273,263, and the bank balance was
$316,819. Of the bank balance, $233,403 was covered
by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by
the State or the State’s agent in the State’s name,
$78,319 was covered by collateral held in the pledging
bank’s trust department or by its agent in the State’s
name, and $5,097 was uninsured and uncollateralized.
At June 30, 1997, the State Treasurer held $335 of the
component unit agencies bank balances. By statute,
public monies deposited in financial institutions must
either be collateralized; insured by an agency of the
federal government; or not exceed 75% of the capital
stock and surplus, 75% of the net worth, or 50% of the
unimpaired capital and surplus of a financial institution.

Investments -

Investments (amounts expressed in thousands), are
categorized below to give an indication of the level of

custodial credit risk assumed by the State at June 30,
1997. Category 1 includes investments that are insured
or registered or for which the securities are held by the
State or its agent in the State’s name. Category 2
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the securities are held by the counterparty trust
department or agent in the State’s name. Category 3,
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by
a trust department or agent but not in the State’s name.
All of the amounts shown below in category 3, pertain
to the enterprise fund type.

The master repurchase agreements utilized by the
Treasurer require the broker or financial institution to
maintain the market value of collateral securities at
102% of the agreement. The carrying amount,
including accrued interest, was approximately
$1,446,499 and the market value of the collateral
securities to be resold based on commitments under the
repurchase agreements was approximately $1,480,568
as of June 30, 1997.

Primary Government . . SRR B e
Sl : -‘cay_goryﬁ el Carrying Market -
o : i G 3 ~_Amount = Value
Repurchase agreements : $ 2953 148 1§ 2953148 '$ 2,953,148
U.S. Treasury.and Agency obilgatlons 7.234; 827 sl $59 086 172093913 . 8245261
Commercialpaper . .. ... . 1,734,801 saesa 1,737,654 1,737,554
Corporate debt securities 4,334,141 4,334,141 - .: 4,334,141
Corporate equity securities " . 118,440,103 : ‘!3 440,103 ° 13 440,103
. i : o ::$29,696,820 $2 953 $59,086 129,758,859 30710 207 :
Investment contracts- -1 ' & P 410,290 - 411228
Tangible property 2619620' 2619620
Investments in mutual funds 011,370,058 11’;-‘37_0;653
_______________ o 544,158,827 C$45 111,118
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_Category

Céffviﬁe :  : _

i Market
LN a2 g Amount Value
P 5104 $219644 $ 19320 5 244068 $ 244,068
Uis. Treasury and Agency obhgatlon's o 813616 . 18,094 ' 24861 856571 . 862,242
Commercial paper . 78,680 - 6,387 - 15536 95.503 - 95,938
Corporate debt securities = = ‘ __1:91,:185 7790 ";‘5,252 204,227 - 204,100
Corporate equity secunmes 50,762 3528 48813 73,403 1 9B162
i o s1 134 297 s'255,393 § 83782 1 473,472 . 1504510

lnvestment contracts’ ' ' 433694 433,693
Tangible property ST 111,136, 32,282
Investments in. mutual funds L 502,610 - 674,564

T$2510,912 $2.645,040

Of the amounts shown above in category 3, the
university funds constitute 73%.

Reconciliation to Balance Sheet

The balance sheet account cash and cash equivalents
contains certain short-term investments (included as
investments above) to reflect their liquidity. In
addition, the disclosures related to deposits and
investments above include certain items that the
balance sheet shows as restricted assets or other assets.
A reconciliation is provided below.

Securities Lending Transactions

The investment policies of certain State agencies,
principally the retirement systems and certain
universities, permit them to enter into securities lending
transactions. In these transactions, the agency loans
their securities to broker-dealers and other entities for
collateral with a simultaneous agreement to return the
collateral for the same securities in the future. The
agencies’ securities custodians are agents in lending the

market/fair value of the securities. Collateral can
consist of cash, cash equivalents, government
securities, commercial paper or irrevocable letters of
credit. Depending on their nature, securities on loan at
year end are presented as classified or unclassified in
the preceding schedule of custodial credit risk.
Generally, at year end, agencies had no credit risk
exposure to borrowers because the amounts they owed
to the borrowers exceeded the amounts the borrowers
owe the agencies. Policies regarding indemnification
vary among agencies. Some agencies’ contracts with
custodians require them to indemnify the agency if the
borrowers fail to return the securities (and if the
collateral is inadequate to replace the securities lent) or
the borrowers fail to pay the agency for income
distributions by the securities’ issuers while the
securities are out on loan. Other agencies have no
provisions for indemnification.

As of June 30, 1997, agencies had outstanding loaned
investment securities (amounts expressed in thousands)
having a market value of $2,921,077 against which they
had received collateral having a market value of
$3,012,152.

securities for collateral of at least 102% of the

S R e e Deposits  Investments
Amount'Per:Note; s A G T e T Ry
Prirnary Govemment S $1,872.412 .'$44,~158,827-"
Component Units - .. .- - 273,263 '251’0’912’
Gash Equivalents 0 7434385 (7 434,385)
Restricted Assets iji: f,ﬂ D {1 14, 204) (382 154)
Other Assets .~ _(106

Amount Per Balance Sheat i :

Total (Memurandum Only) Reportmg Entlty___ﬁﬁﬁﬁ $9,465,750 $38 853,200
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I5 TAXES RECEIVABLE I

Taxes receivable (amounts expressed in thousands) at
June 30, 1997 consisted of the following:

Saies taxes

Motor fuel: taxes

Public utility taxes

Unempioyment
compensatlon taxes

Othertaxes . . . =

uncollectiple taxes

Fund Types

- General

.Specwl Expendable

Fleven_ue_ 'fru_st -A_gen'c_y .

Total . ©

' (Meinoranddﬁi:- :

only)

% 650,193 ' 86,454

710,601, 263,410 e 58,327

opsnn R BT U R B i
21767 om7sa0 o 4B

sosean

' '120092}}7 LA7A18 e G agY

'$ 746,645

1,032,338
139,323

258424 -
143488

Less: Allowancefor -

Taxes Receivable,net =

1,511,653 668,604 ‘258_,4'2:4 65,695

735, 670 341,284 -

2,504,466 -

1076954

"8 775, 983 _ $ 327,410 s 258 424 $ 65,695

$ 1, 427 512 e

39

184,548
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6 DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS

The following balances

(amounts

expressed in

thousands) at June 30, 1997 represent due from/to

AND COMPONENT UNITS balances among all funds and component units:
L ..-Due'From ... e _'DueTo B Lt
- Other - "‘Component -~ "Primary . Other Component . Primary. .-
Fund TypeIFund ‘Funds ' " Units Government - ‘Funds “Units - Government
i rPrrr— ‘ e e - .
‘ General ; ! $§ 210,534 3 40840 FE 286008 i $11105.088
Spec;aI ﬂevenue . '
State Construction Accnunt 33,832 S e
- "Local Govermment Distributive -/ 93,217 g25.
Public Transportation ™. 35,028 :
“Motor Fuel Tax . i 21,149 52,989« i
Road ' 30,980 : 30 258 12,289,
TouriSm Promotion o ‘6,592 97 N
Unemploymert Compensation 5 :
Special Administration: 113,266
“Title 1l ‘Social Security and (e BT L
S Emiployinent Services’ : 499 B0 e
Personal Property Tax Replacement. = : 80,408 :
Staté and Local Sales Tax Reform 32976
County and Mass Transit District o 41,118,552
Build filinols : 79,450 i
Downstate Public Transportanon : L B,006 1
State: Gamlng : S 8,667
Child:Support Enforcamem Trust L7047
Metro-East Transportation . 3,308 e
Rate Adjustment ; : i 4,833
‘Resment‘s&Employee Beneﬂt 3,448 S i 5 1700
Other i L 32495 . 882 oo oo 15,321 11374
i 273,304 662 : k 257,387 . . 13,665
Debt Service“ ] ] K G i 7. L= N
Capital Prqects S
ESCQCOP Capttal Pro;ects 8.035°
Other g = 825 1,168
_ _ 8,035 "325 1,166
E:n'terprise:_ ; g gt -
State Lattery 25,103 7
Catmmissary = 178 FOEARRERNA: ih

Other

Internal Service: s
Communications Revolving
Statistical' Services Revolving

. State Garage Revolving
““Health Insurance Reserve
S Workmg Capital Revolwng
. Other.
Trust and Agency
“Expendable Trust- -
Unemployment Gompensahon Trust
OCther

Pens:on Trust-
State. Employee S Fle’ufement System
Other.

25‘239

19,379 1,202
23270 11
5,820 g 2
41,809 2,908 "
4,370 A el 2
390 3 i i
94,997 4141 2,231 13
2356 - 7B 3,282 ‘
631 e 20 53
2,987 78 3,302 53
e 184
B2 118200 ‘103
7,700 1,152 - 287
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Note 6 (continued)

L DueFrom...- - : 5 Due To &
: i EERRANE fow Other - Component: . Primary . . Other Component - - .Primary
Fund Type/Fund S L ‘Funds Units - Government . Funds - Units Government.

Agency s L : : : A5
Sports Facilities Tax - L PR - e 3,224
" Public Assistance Recoveries Trust R T SRR L L 63,740 L A
- RTA-Sales Tax Trust # 5w S 18,552 sebi ' ST e
Social Services .- . Lo G Fai 13,399 1 G
©Other B BEE - 2:104 1380 9,396 - .
_Total Trust and Agency : oo BTRAR - 1883 83,348 53

'Total (Memomndum Only] i S : S : . i
_ Pﬁmgfysovernment IO T el 635,476 _ 55,041 s : “';__335,476 210,869

¢ dtUnits ey __ _ : ‘ o
Govemnmental DI R % 147 I T TR R N 72
Proprietary: : ’ : s : : : it
‘Housing Development Authoﬁty : : AG765 T . 18,778
“industriat Revelving Fund i S 3,362 T O S L 1,401~ L S
Other. + ¢ i e el ST RN im0 1,068 3. 698
Umversityandcmiege . L e ey “ L L : ‘ o :
EastemHlinois University = ©° 7 e < C G ST TI,A9E" SRS IR TR 802
- ‘Northemn lilinois University: .-~ {0 2,586 - L 5004 2,508 42
Southem lllingis University. .. W8 g deeti e i aAng - 6 087 B2
Unlversttyofillmms g e e Y 144 e 183818 11,606 00 44,180
Other '+l BUBEARE0. T 78R 1, 90T i 1,236
Total Componentumt _' i 41,329 ‘210,869 41,329 - S 56041

. Total (Memorandum Only) - .

Reporting Entity . . . . $ 676,805 5 55041 $ 210,869 ¢ 676805 § 210869 § ':5'5,0'41'

In the accompanying financial statements, the General
7 LOANS AND NOTES and Special Revenue fund types reflect loans and notes

RECEIVABLE receivable of $91.2 million. Fund balances in the
amount of $78.8 million have been reserved to indicate
their long-term nature and that they are not available to

Loans and notes receivable (amounts expressed in meet current appropriation or expenditure needs.
thousands) at June 30, 1997 consisted of the following:

Fund Types CHE Total .
& : {Memorandum
i & e onlyy LT
R Special ' :Debt - it i Primary - Component
_ S General - Revenue 'Service =~ 'Enterprise = Government " Unitg -~ -
‘Mortgagedoanprogram e G T B4 S TARB T T g e R0 8 710667,323
Student loan programm e TTBR T CU$ 748,921 . IB7,I70. - 105,488
‘Business loan program’ T 00 47,482 00 14,,697‘ I 6279 .. 243
‘Port districts construction o0 IS8 o G 15878
Other i R L 2@74 36 391 $ 25,500 ' : : 64,765 2,157 -
‘ o0 TTU3PE0 52833 25500 . 748921 . 000504 . 1,769.217 .

.l._ess Alloﬁancefbf : TR o : : R i T
_uncollectlbleaccounts __ 29185 . 5739 i i e 2BR6- o0 0 37,3690 34414 ¢

Loans and notes recewable net

41



State of Illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

A portion of the General fund type business loan
programs ($34.2 million) represents various funds’
pooled resources that the State has invested in a pilot
mortgage program since fiscal year 1983. The
programs are categorized as commercial and hotel
loans as discussed below.

Commercial Loans - During fiscal year 1989, two of
the remaining business loans outstanding, with balances
aggregating $6.0 million, were restructured. During
fiscal years 1993 and 1994, the Treasurer recorded
write-down provisions totaling $1.9 million (i.e., $1.7
million and $150 thousand, respectively). On August
24, 1994 one of these loans, with an original loan
balance of $3.3 million was declared in default, and as
such, has been classified as a nonperforming asset. At
the balance sheet date, June 30, 1997 the Pilot
Mortgage program trustee (“trustee’) continues to
move ahead with foreclosure action. On October 28,
1994, the other business loan was restructured.
Subsequent to the end of the June 30, 1997 fiscal year,
on August 11, 1997, the Treasurer received a payoff of
$2.3 million representing the unpaid principle and
interest.

Hotel Loans - Effective January 12, 1987, two of the
program’s outstanding mortgage loans aggregating
528.9 million were restructured. In the accompanying
financial statements, the General and Special Revenue
fund types reflect loans and notes receivable of $91.2
million. Fund balances in the amount of $78.8 million
have been reserved to indicate their long-term nature
and that they are not available to meet current
appropriation or expenditure needs.

One of these loans with an original balance of $15.5
million was restructured again effective January 1,
1990. The remaining loan totaling $13.4 million in
original value was restructured effective January 1,

1991. Through June 30, 1997, the Treasurer recorded
a provision for the write-down of $17.1 million for
these two properties based on independent valuations,
These two loans have been classified as nonperforming
assets.

In 1995, the Treasurer authorized the trustee to sell the
mortgage notes. However, the Attorney General
opined that both his and the Governor’s consent were
required, which was not provided, Affiliates of the
owners of the hotel loans filed a lawsuit against the
trustee and the Treasurer seeking specific performance
of the buy-sell agreement on the agreed to terms. This
lawsuit is still pending and the ultimate outcome of this
proceeding is not presently determinable.

Subsequent to June 30, 1997, the trustee filed suit
against the Hotel ventures for making improper
deductions in determining payments due, creating a
default and making the loan balances due upon
demand. At the time of the filing of the suit, letters of
credit with a value of $2.7 million, which serve as
collateral for the loans of one of the propertics were
presented by the trustee for collection. A restraining
order has been issued to prevent the collection of these
letters of credit. The outcomes of the ruling on the
restraining order and related litigation is not presently
determinable. The write-down of the above Hotel and
Commercial loans is not considered forgiveness of the
obligations and collection efforts will continue for the
entire loan balance, including principal and interest.

Student loans made by the lllinois Student Assistance
Commission make up the entire loans and notes
receivable balance in the Enterprise fund type. The
Illinois Housing Development Authority’s mortgage
loans of $1.6 billion comprise nearly all of the
Component Unit Mortgage loans.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND

8

Property, plant and equipment (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1997 consisted of the following:

EQUIPMENT
i g ﬁFundTypes : N
General R Total .o ol
o :Fixed ; : (Memorandum
ol AsEets g Nnm e i Dnity): : .
i Account s internal E.xpendable ‘Pension . Primary Componem
Group Enterpnsa Service Trust “Trust Government .Units: .
Landand!and-improvements *$ 585369 ;és--_'s-' 335 $ . 1'64 s 11,850 s; 588658 5 3035574 :
‘Buildings dnd bmldmg o B e 3 { :
improvements . - '2851 786 16,801 o _'13 703 2882380 2,061,779
Equipment : 1,301,806 $ 12,029 196048 19,762 11,520,645 2,054,885
Constructlo m,_-_progress L e Pl e Lo 83010 434418 1
, iy T4,833871 12,009 _213,1.34- 104 85405 . 5004503 8,484,656
-Less Accumulated L : Lo T e
‘depreciation. . e 7OIT 1B3ATA 14,7715 186,162 . 1,309,185
£ .S 4833871 5 4112 § 49,710 s 104§ 20,634 $ 4,908,431 $ 7175491

Changes in general fixed assets (amounts expressed in
thousands) for the year ended June 30, 1997 are

presented below:

. Balance Deletions/ Balam;e___j'-_
“July 1, Net June 30,

i L 1996 Additmns Transfers o 1g97

Land and land 1mprovements B 566 307 12 905 7, 157) % 586 369': :
Buildmgs and buﬁdmg Sk - - .
lmprovements il ”'2 671 526 (o 82 662 "(97,598) : 2851 7861 “

Eqmpment 11,270,154 : 131,575 99,923 . 1,301 806_
Censtmctuon in progress S .. BO227 201,320 187,637 . 93,910
. . $4588214 $ 428462 $ 182,805 $ 4,833,871
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Construction in progress (amounts expressed in component units as of June 30, 1997 is composed of
thousands) for  genmeral fixed assets, and the following:
‘Expended s
----- Project - through : Available
iject “Authorization ' June 30 1997 Commmed Authorization
General Fixed Assets Account Group- : S S L et
Medium SecuntyCorrectlonal Center B 89,0000 § e S I 69,000 |
TAMMS Super Maximum Facility . 61445 ' 50,447 . B688 2,310 -
Forensic Unit, Elgm MHC - .. 33975 . 21,529 ... 4,902 . 7,544
:Other : 469,059 21,934 135485 - .311 ,630
Total_ e 683479 % 93,910 ° $ 149,085 $ 390,484
COmponent Units - ST S I e e
State Toll: Highway Improvements S 333725 % 205 725 % 128,000 % i
Chemical Life Sciences Laboratory - Uofl © BB760 . . 58107 .- . . 'B53
Ambulatory Care- Faciﬂty ol . 55,600 e B 3707 30,184 0 17,046
Science Building - 1ISU 29,400 e1927 LA73 50 i, 2
Faraday.Engingering Building - NIU S 28,138, ¢ 26,744 626 768
Faraday Hall Addition -NIU™ ‘26840 . 25700 1,082 0 . 49
Assembly Hall Addition & Hemodelmg U ofl 11,616 1,601 8895 1120
" Total : i 8 544079 . 354,183 .$ 170,260 '$ 19,636
Pro;ects less than $10 000 : . 80,235 '
Total ' G $ 434,418

I 9 NOTES PAYABLE I

The State agencies listed below generally issue

revenue sources, to provide temporary financing.
QOutstanding notes payable (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1997 were as follows:

short-term notes, normally secured by specific
: gt ‘Amount - Interest . Annual. .
Fund TypeiAgency Outstanding = Rates Maturity To
| Primary Government - ' :
Eﬂterpnse : i SRR e
- Hiinois Student Assustance Commlssmn o '8 7'95954 " SeeBelow . Demand:’
Component Unit- ‘ '
Southwestern Hinois Devetopment Authority 100 - 2008
Universities and Col!eges o i S
“Narthern Tlinois University - s 2481 B% o 75%-‘-‘ 2002
Northeastem lllinois University .~ 48 . 6% . 2000
- Southem lllinois University . G BT 8% 2009
- University af Hiinois i 1,865 6% to 9% 2000 -
6,045 . e <
| Toml component Umbs e i 6,145 _
et Tota! (Memorandum Only) Reporting Entity”- S 102,008 s e
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Hlinois Student Assistance
Commission (ISAC) -

The Commission is authorized to issue Student Loan
Revenue Notes. The notes and related interest are
payable solely from the revenues and other resources of
the Commission. On June 30, 1997, the Commission
had $96 million of notes outstanding due 2005 or upon
demand. The interest rate is 69.875% of the weekly
91-day U.S. Treasury bill rate, with 2 minimum interest
rate of 3.38% and a maximum interest rate of 11.725%.

Southwestern lilinois Development

Authority (SWIDA) -
The SWIDA has obtained a note payable from the

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs in
the amount of $100 thousand, the proceeds of which
were used for start-up costs. This note is non-interest
bearing and matures on July 1, 2008,

Universities and Colleges -

Universities and colleges have issued notes payable
aggregating $6.0 million at June 30, 1997. The notes
are generally secured through revenues (i.e., lease
payment agreements) derived from the operations of
the projects constructed, although portions of the notes
outstanding are unsecured.

|10 RETIREMENT SYSTEMS I

Plan Descriptions. The State of Illinois sponsors
five defined benefit public employee retirement
systems (“PERS”) that are included in the State’s
financial statements as pension trust funds. The State
Employees’ Retirement System (“SERS”), General
Assembly Retirement System (“GARS”), and Judges’
Retirement System (“JRS”) are the administrators of
single-employer defined benefit pension plans. The
SERS, GARS, and JRS are governed by articles 14, 2,
and 18, respectively, of the Illinois Pension Code (40
ILCS 5/1, et. al.).

The Teachers’ Retirement System (“TRS”) and the
State Universities Retirement System (“SURS”) are the
administrators of defined benefit pension plans with
“special funding situations.” The State of Illinois is
legally mandated to make contributions by
appropriations to the TRS and SURS. The TRS
provides coverage to teachers employed by public
school districts in Illinois (excluding Chicago) even
though most covered employees are not State
employees. The SURS provides coverage to faculty
and staff of State universities, community colleges and
related agencies even though some covered employees
are not State employees. Because the State contributes
most of the TRS and SURS employer contributions, the
single employer provisions of GASB Statement 27
have been followed for reporting those systems in the
statewide CAFR. The TRS and SURS are governed
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by articles 16 and 15, respectively, of the Illinois
Pension Code.

Each of the five State-sponsored retirement systems
provide retirement, death and disability benefits to
members and beneficiaries. Each plan also issues a
publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary
information for that plan. Those reports may be
obtained by writing or calling the plan as follows:

¢ State Employees Retirement System, 2101 S.
Veterans Parkway, Springfield, Illinois, 62794-
9255, (217)785-2340.

¢  General Assembly Retirement System and Judges’
Retirement System, 2101 S. Veterans Parkway,
Springfield, Hlinois, 62794-9255, (217)782-8500.

e Teachers Retirement System, 2815 W. Washington
Street, PO Box 19253, Springtield, Illinois 62794-
9253, (217)753-0311.

e State Universities Retirement System, 1901 Fox
Drive, Champaign, Illinois 61820, (217)378-8800.

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost.
Member contributions are based on fixed percentages
set by statute ranging from 4% to 11.5%. The State’s
funding requirements have been established by statute
(Public Act 88-593) effective July 1, 1995 and provides
for a systematic 50-year funding plan with an
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ultimate goal to achieve “90% funding” of the systems’ The statutory funding requirement discussed above

liabilities. In addition, the new funding plan provides differs significantly from the annual pension cost
for a 15-year phase-in period to allow the State to adapt (“APC”) because the statutory plan does not conform
to the increased financial commitment. Once the 15- with the GASB Statement 27 accounting parameters.
year phase-in period is complete, the State’s The State’s APC for the current year and related
contribution will then remain at a level percentage of information for each plan (dollar amounts expressed in

payroll for the next 35 years until the 90% funded level thousands) are included in Table 1.
1s achieved. As illustrated in Table 1, the State met its
funding requirement established by statutory law for The net pension obligation at transition (“NPO”)

the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. The current reported in Table 1 was computed in accordance with
statutory law includes a ‘“continuing appropriation,” GASB Statement 27. The State’s beginning accrued
which means that the State must automatically provide retirement costs recorded in the General Long-Term

funding to the pension systems based on actuarial cost Obligations Account Group was reduced $1,852
requirements and amortization of the unfunded liability million from $11,026 million to $9,174 million to
without being subject to the General Assembly’s reflect the new GASB standard.

appropriation process.

TABLE| (dollaramountsm thousands) VSO i ST T T
B OGERG LTRSS L BURS U gRe e GARS_ "
Actuarally requuedoontnbutlun{‘ARC“) Lo SRl 097 84D oo S68481 T 8e6,0090 1,184,080
Plus; Interast onnezpensmnobngaum (‘NPD‘) U HR0eE iV AOBDART L papday L 12073 0 2961
Adjustment tothe ARG .- oA oofbEdad) a3y 126,539) : o (1,286)
Annugl pension cost (APGY) LT parget 110897400 “750,729 - T 8,084
Employercontributions .02 15180 (1395348 5 1182041 Y
increase IV NPD vt e T CU70B/626 568688 G Ciiwie il DRy
NPO at transition per GASB. Statement27 . 10seeo7 8403100 pEseo00 150918 " . 1 29516 .
NPOauuneso 1997 B S22, 318 # $5.811.726“’ 83420888 . $16B83G $32773"
Raqutredcumﬁbutionamwr_\_ts_lyates Gl B M7 '/55/";&7
. %Statutory requnred GOntnbuhon-State o $149 070 -.$395,2_39‘ i $I79.847 $13747 £ $2735
‘Members. . i S anesw Gal e ao%-ss% ]_.j:' 1.00% 11.50%
Actyarial valuation date e o oedomr o emoeT 63097 LOEBRRT T esaeT L
Actuarial costmethod ot Proj-Unit Gredit - Proj, Unit Cradit - Proj. Unit Credit. . Proj. Unit Credit  Proj. Unit Credit
Amottizationmethod o Sl L evel %ot pay :““__"Level%ofpéy ‘Level % ofpay - - Level%ofpay  Level % of pay
‘Remaining amonization pedod - 40 years, apen 40 years, open . -‘40yeats, open 40 years, open . . 40 years, open
Actuarial‘asset valuation method Falrvacue Faurvatue -Fawvaiue L Fdinvalug o Fairvalue
Actuanal assumpliohs: ¥ e SRR e e
investment rate of rétum ™~ _.50%- : -8.50%_‘ 8:50% 800% o B.00%
‘Projected salary incraases ~ © G 5%t 4i7% SE088% % uBE0% T ee0%T “s_so'%f_ e
Postretirerent benefitincreases ~  © - 30% CLEO% 0% e B0% B
.inftahomate et CUBBO% A% v HBRE% ‘_4_.'0% S 40%
* F'ublsc Act 88-0593 provides for: so-year funding including 15—year phase—in of emnloyer ccmdbutions asa pememage of.active member
‘payroll inc!easmg until fiscal year 2010 and remazrﬁng at that lavel untl ﬁscal year 2045 when the Systems funded ratxos will be 90%
* Composits, 7%. ; ___ L . i sy : ; ; s ;

Trend Informaﬁon. For the transition year, the contributed for the year and the NPO at the end of the
annual pension cost, percentage of annual pension cost year are presented in Table II, below:

frAaLEﬂ(doaaumaunrsinrhousands) e i

b Annual Pensinn V_NetPensmn _
Year Je:iaw_; Cont ("APCY) ﬂfsaﬁ., on
B - §2a1, 891_*“-_5“ | es3e% | siazae
.$1_,_103.97_4j 5 :\““.'].535.-31%, 85811726

sa4eoaaa, e

* Fiscal year 1997.is the only year that information in accordance with the "parameters’ 'is'g&anabgé.fﬁ B

46



State of Illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

Postemployment Benefits. In addition to pro-
viding pension benefits, the State Employees Group
Insurance Act requires that the State pay the cost of
basic noncontributory health and dental, and life insur-
ance benefits to annuitants who are former State em-
ployees. This includes annuitants of all of the State’s
retirement systems, excluding the TRS.

Effective January 1, 1996, legislation transferred the
administration of the TRS health insurance program to
the Illinois Department of Central Management
Services (“CMS”). The legislation also established a
funding mechanism consisting of a one-half of 1
percent contribution from active teachers and matching
appropriations from the State to pay the subsidy portion
of participating annuitants during fiscal year 1996 and
thereafter. Persons enrolling in TRS managed care or
residing in areas with no managed care receive a 75%
premium subsidy. All others receive a 50% subsidy.
At June 30, 1997, 31,200 TRS annuitants were enrolled
in the health plan, receiving $49.5 million in direct cash
subsidies. The teachers health insurance program is
accounted for in the Teachers Health Insurance
Security Fund, an enterprise fund. TRS will continue
to be responsible for program enrollment and eligibility
determination. CMS will be responsible for providing
- information and consultation to plan participants.

Substantially all of the State’s employees may become
eligible for postemployment benefits if they eventually
become an annuitant. Health and dental benefits
include basic benefits for annuitants under the State’s
self-insurance plan and insurance contracts currently in
force. Life insurance benefits are limited to $5,000 per
annuitant age 60 and older. For fiscal year 1997, the
State did not segregate payments made to annuitants
from those made to current employees for health and
dental, and life insurance benefits. The total cost of all
members including postemployment health and dental,
and life insurance benefits is recognized as an
expenditure in the accompanying financial statements
as claims are reported and are financed on a
pay-as-you-go basis. For fiscal year 1997, the cost of
providing postemployment health and dental, and life
insurance benefits for approximately 59,000 annuitants
was estimated to be $163.9 million and $6.3 million,
respectively.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Public Act 90-
0065 was enacted which changed the retirement benefit
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formula for SERS and SURS from a step rate formula
to a flat rate formula. The increased retirement benefit
formula is applicable to all eligible members with a
retirement effective date on and after January 1, 1998.

11

GENERAL OBLIGATION
BONDS

General obligation bonds have been authorized and
issued primarily to provide funds for acquisition and
construction of capital facilities for higher education,
public and mental health, correction and conservation
purposes and for maintenance and construction of
highway and waterway facilities. Bonds also have been
issued to provide assistance to municipalities for

construction of sewage treatment facilities, port
districts, aquarium facilities, local schools, mass
transportation and aviation purposes, and to fund
research and development of coal as an energy source.
In addition, bonds have been authorized to refund any
general obligation bonds outstanding.

The State Constitution provides that the State may issue
general obligation bonds for specific purposes in such
amounts as provided either by the General Assembly
with a three-fifths vote of each house or by a majority
of voters in a general election. The enabling acts
pursuant to which the bonds are issued provide that all
bonds issued thereunder shall be direct obligations of
the State of Illinois and pledge the full faith and credit
of the State. General obligation bonds are redeemed
over a period not to exceed 30 years, from available
resources in the debt service funds. However, the State
of Illinois has generally issued 25 year serial bonds
with equal amounts of principal maturing each year
except for capital appreciation and refunding bonds
which mature in varying amounts. Additionally,
Ilinois offerings, with the exception of anti-pollution
bonds, generally have call provisions providing for
early redemption at the option of the State, beginning
10 years following the date of issuance, in whole or in
part, in such order as the State shall determine and at a
redemption price not to exceed 102% of par value.

General obligation bonds outstanding and bonds
authorized but unissued (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1997 are as follows:



State of Illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

e e U e Outstandmg " Authorized ..
H,Purpiose' e ‘Interest Rates_ ~Amount _ ‘but Unissued:
Gaprtal development-==-== . 3.25% 109.50% $ 2044262 $ 895486
Transportation ... o _j;j-:a 50% t0 9.50% '~ 1,766,400 194,427
QAnt;-Pon;,mon . . 350%t012,0% 316484 . 35428
‘Schoal construction 1 3,50%107.90% 97,035 42,425°
Coal development ' . 375%t07.10% | 39,025 104,014
Befundmg . 390%10670% . 1,391,191 355911
: il $ 5,654,397 - $ 1,627,691

Changes in general obligation bonds during the year
ended June 30, 1997 are summarized in Note 15.
Future general obligation debt service requirements

(amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1997 are
as follows:

YearEnding" B
- June 30 Pnncipal lntsrést Total '
908 . $ 478825 $ 207690 $ 686,515
.. tese - 453100 190,862 653062
2000 - 458175 . 174955 634130
POt . 465255 150,826 . 625081
Jo2002 417,365 . 144,867 562,232
j Thereaﬂer 4353180 1,046,139 5399329
pi o $ 6636910 $ 1,924,339 s 8561 ,249
Less Unaccreted apprecxatmn i 982 5130 i
Lo $ ‘5,654,397

On February 25, 1997, the State issued $250 million in
general obligation bonds. A portion thereof, $84.9
million, with an average interest rate of 4.67%, plus a
reoffering premium of $ .9 million was used to
advance refund $80.8 million of certain callable
maturities of previously issued general obligation

bonds which had interest rates ranging from 6.1% to

11.5%. The principal of the refunded bonds will be
redeemed on various dates through 2000 at redemption
prices ranging from 101% to 102%. The net proceeds
of $84.8 million (after payment of $1.0 million in
underwriting fees and insurance costs) were used to
purchase U.S. government securities which were
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent
to provide for all future debt service payments on the
refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are
considered to be defeased and the liability for those
bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. At June 30, 1997, the
outstanding balance of the defeased bonds is $22.2
million.
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This advance refunding transaction has reduced the
State's aggregate debt service payments by $4.9 million
resulting in an economic gain or present value savings
(difference between the present values of the debt
service payments on the old and new debt) of $4.2
million over the life of the refunded bonds.

In prior years, the State defeased certain callable
maturities of general obligation bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to
provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the
liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
accompanying financial statements. At June 30, 1997,
the outstanding balance of these defeased bonds is
$227.4 million. These bonds, bearing interest at rates
ranging from 5.8% to 11.75%, are to be redeemed on
various dates through 2001 at redemption prices
varying from 100% to 102%.
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Subsequent to June 30, 1997, the State authorized two
additional general obligation bond issues. On July 31,
1997, $100 million of general obligation bonds were
issued which mature annually from 1998 through 2022
and bear interest at rates ranging from 4.25% to 5.20%.
In addition, on November 13, 1997, approximately
$168.3 million of general obligation college savings
bonds (accretion bonds having a par value of
approximately $301 million at maturity) were issued
which mature annually from 2001 through 2019 and
bear interest (yields to maturity) at rates ranging from
4.20% 10 5.35%.

l 12  SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS I

Special obligation bonds have been authorized and
issued to provide funds for the Build Illinois Program,
the State’s Metropolitan Civic Center Support Program,
and to refund any bonds previously issued under these
programs.

The Build llinois Program was implemented to expand
the State’s efforts in economic development by
providing financing in certain areas. These areas
include construction, reconstruction, modernization,
and extension of the State’s infrastructure; development
and improvement of educational, scientific, technical
and vocational programs and facilities; expansion of
health and human services in the State; protection,

State’s environmental and natural resources; and
provision of incentives for the location and expansion
of businesses in Illinois resulting in increased
employment.

The State’s Metropolitan Civic Center Support Act
(Support Act) was amended on September 3, 1985, to
allow the issuance of bonds to refinance the State’s
Metropolitan Civic Center Support Program and to
provide additional capital for new projects to be
financed under the Support Act. The refinancing of the
State’s Metropolitan Civic Center Support Program is
discussed further in Note 14. The Support Act was
amended further on September 11, 1990, to allow the
issvance of bonds for making construction and
improvement grants by the Secretary of State, as State
Librarian, to public libraries and library systems.
Special obligation bonds are payable primarily from
dedicated portions of the State’s sales tax and the horse
racing privilege tax and are redeemed over a period of
not more than 30 years. Additionally, these bonds have
call provisions providing for early redemption at the
option of the State, beginning 10 years following the
date of issuance, in whole or in part, in such order as
the State shall determine and within any maturity by lot
at varying premiums which decrease periodically.

Special obligation bonds outstanding and bonds
authorized but unissued (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1997 are as follows:

preservation, restoration, and conservation of the

T ‘Outstanding " Authorized

Purpose interest Rates __ Amount __ but Unissued

Bunmlimons. Gl e g
Public infrastructure 3 9% ta75% s 606 055::::$ ‘_ '1.1.;6,;0:0: i
Busunessdevelopment 56%t075% . 1Mz e
Education: . 39%lo75% . 284276 (7817}

. Environment . 38%1075% . 11499 . 1,305
‘Remn‘dsh'g' © B0%1070% 804,336 Unlimited
T . e 1,713,578 109,979 |
Csvchenter Ho e aige (0 R e
~ Civie centers 55% togz%\\»_ ooTEet '“"‘.1‘1‘5-892_;::‘
Libraries @ 5% 1t064% i - @283 . 747
" ‘Refunding 600% to?35%‘ ‘85,075 Unlxmited
s : 171589 116,639
$ 1_,385,157;"$ - 226,618 |

Bonds issued in excess of authorized amounts for
Education will be eliminated through reallocations from
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future bond sales.
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Changes in special obligation bonds during the year
ended June 30, 1997, are summarized in Note 15.
Future special obligation debt service requirements

(amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30,1997, are
as follows:

- YearEnding . oo cbnsie L G 0
June30 - Principal  Interest :]f‘_‘ Total ..
1998 $ 7151078 100,004 $ 171,514

1,99_9” o 74090 0 096,134 0 170,224

ogoo0 76310 93335 169,645

2001 77,5557 90,460 168,015

G002 78,955 . B7A419 | 166,374 .

L Thereafter - 1,622,855 793941  2416,796

o 52001275 $ 1,261,293 § 3,262,568

“Less: Unaccreted appreciation 116108 L D e

pTEE e e ilm,:sas,wr b

In prior years, the State defeased certain callable supported by fees, rentals, tolls assessed to users and
maturities of Build Illinois and Civic Center bonds by loan repayments. Issuing agencies of the primary
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable government include the Illinois Student Assistance
trust to provide for all future debt service payments on Commission (Student Loan Revenue Bonds) and the
the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets State Universities Retirement System of Illinois (State
and the liability of the defeased bonds are not included Universities Retirement System Special Revenue
in the accompanying financial statements. At June 30, Bonds). Component unit issuing agencies include the
1997, the outstanding balance of the defeased bonds is Nlinois Housing Development Authority (Housing
$492.2 million. These bonds have interest rates Development, Multi-Family Housing, Residential
ranging from 5.6% to 8.0% and their principal is to be Mortgage, Multi-Family  Program, Homeowner

redeemed on various dates through 2008 at redemption
prices varying from 100% to 105%.

13 REVENUE BONDS

The State Constitution empowers certain State agencies
and authorities to issue bonds that are not supported by
the full faith and credit of the State. The bond
indentures include a pledge from these agencies and
authorities that income derived from acquired or
constructed assets be used to retire the debt and service
related interest. In addition, certain authorities have
issued debt which is classified as “conduit” debt of the
State. Revenue bonds issued by individual agencies are
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Mortgage Revenue and Affordable Housing Program
Trust Fund Bonds), Illinois State Toll Highway
Authority (Construction Revenue Bonds), Illinois Rural
Bond Bank (Bond Bank Revenue Bonds), and
universities consisting of Chicago State University,
Eastern Illinois University, Northeastern Illinois
University, Western Illinois University, Illinois State
University, Northern Illinois University, Southern
Illinois University and the University of Illinois
(University Revenue Producing Facilities Construction
Bonds).

Bonds outstanding (amounts expressed in thousands) at
June 30, 1997, net of unamortized discounts, are as
follows:
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- “Amount . Interest.. . . Annual
Agency s Outstanding Rates Maturity To
Primary Government- ot L
Enterprise: . - . : ‘ L
llinois Student Ass;stance Gommissaon ‘ w08 0950,993 1 4,10% to:18.000% - 2031
Trust; © ' R _ I _
State Unwersmes Retarement System 16144 7.25% to  7.450% 2005
Total (Memoran_d_um Only) Primary Government 8. 967,137
Component Unit o
Proprietary: . : . . : :
Iifirois Housing Deveiopment Authenty '$ 2,027,502 - 3.65% to. 15.000% 2031
llinois State Toll Highway Authnrlty 930,850 " .3.50% to' '6.375% 2017
llinois Rurai Bond Bank 64,600  4.10% to  7.300% 2027
A e 8023042
Un_iversiti_es_-anq Cnlle_ges:--’_ T T R e
Chicago State.Unive}Sity : .. 23,385 - 4.75% to, - 6.150% - 2023
Eastern ilinois University 43,826 4.15% to-  7.100% - 2018 .
" ‘Northeastern lllinois Umversﬂy """ 6505 ' 395% to 6200% 2017
Western Illinois University - 39,437 - .4.10% 1o . '6.850% . 2020
lllinois State University _ 62,584 4‘.30% 1o 7.350% . 2016
* Northern iflinois University 84,976 450% to 10050% 2022
Southern lllinois University < o 68,257 . 4.45% to . B.750% . 2023
University of fllinois 368,827 8.00% ‘to 9.700% . 2026
i 697,797 o '
Total (:omponent Unit : 8,720,839
Total (Memorandum Oniy) Reporting Entity i $ 4,687,976

Changes in revenue bonds during the year ended June
30, 1997 are summarized in Note 15.

Revenue bond debt service requirements, principal and

interest, (amounts expressed in thousands) as of June
30, 1997 are as follows:

g PR R St anaryGovernment .
" YearEnding - - __Enterprise “Trust Total
June30  Principal - interest . Prmclpal Interest  Principal - Interest
1098 - $ 27,785 $ 112218 $ .- . § - . $ 27785 § nzeis
1999 41183 07T <o 41,183 110,771
2000 . 41,394 - 108545 .0 . 0 41304 108,545
20017 0 aBA15 T 106,146 . e 35,415 - 106,146
2002 34,155 103,900 . - .- . 34455 103,900
Thereafter . 91,392,341, 25825 . .803715 1,392,341
‘ % 957,822  $ 1933921 $ 25825 - $ - $ 983647 $ 1,933,921
Less: : ' ' T e N R
Unaccreted A i
appreciation 11015 9,681 10,796
' i - .5 956,707 - $ 16,144 .$ 972,851 . .
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: £ S S _Component Units = "
 Year Ending . - ‘Proprietary. University and College LT i Total _
June30 . Principal ' interest . Principal = Interest . Principal Interest
1998 6 71,740 § 188024 ' § 28795 5 21996 $ 100535 $ 210,020
1999 65230 . 185457 32175 .. 22737 97405 - - 208,194
2000 74640 182,230 33,945 | 22,087 . 108585 205217
P00t 79960 178,134 35820 22,003 115780 © ' 200,137 -
2002 ... B7470. . 173869 . 20065 . 20,801 . ‘116535 . . 184,770 -
Thereafter 2818575 2,117,583 835814 241870 3654389 2350453
. $3197615 . $ 3025297 $ 995614 § 352,404 $ 4,193,229 -~ §$ 3,377,791
Less: Ah L g st B R e G T R
Unacereted S L e T L 4 -
appreciation -~ - 156,887 - . . . 203886 - ..o4s0723
o 83040778 8701728 § 3,742,506

Total principal debt service requirements for the
primary government include bond discounts of $5.7
million for enterprise funds. Component unit bond
discounts include $17.8 million for proprietary funds
and $3.9 million for university funds.

lllinois  Student Commission
(Commission) -

The Commission issues student loan revenue bonds, the
proceeds of which are used to purchase student loans
from eligible lenders and to issue Stafford subsidized
and nonsubsidized loans to Illinois residents. = The
bonds mature annually in varying amounts, bearing
interest ranging from 3.9% to 18%. Bonds outstanding
exclusive of refunding issues may not exceed $1,150
million ($951.0 million was outstanding at June 30,
1997, net of $5.7 million of unamortized discounts).
All student loans purchased by the Commission and all
loans financed from the proceeds of bonds issued,
along with all revenues received from or on account of
these bonds, are pledged as collateral for the bonds.
Any losses are guaranteed as to principal and interest
by the Commission’s Guarantee Loan Program, which
can be subrogated to the United States Department of
Education.

Assistance

The bond resolutions provide for ecarly retirement for
various bond issues at rates ranging from 100% to
102.5% of par value, with premiums decreasing
periodically until unmatured bonds can only be retired
at par value. Pursuant to the bond resolutions, reserves
for bond retirement and interest payments aggregated
$79.4 million at June 30, 1997. '

Included in the $951 million of outstanding revenue
bonds are $314 million of taxable revenue bonds,
(Series B, Series C , Series D, Series 1996A and
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1996B, and Series 1997B and 1997])), the proceeds of
which were used to purchase student loans. The bonds
mature at various dates, bearing interest rates as
determined by the remarketing agent that would enable
the bonds to be sold at a price equal to their principal
amount, but not to exceed 18% per annum for the
Series B and Series C bonds, 15% per annum for the
Series D and Series 1996B bonds, 12% per annum for
the Series 1996A bonds, 15% per annum for the Series
1997B bonds and 17% per annum for the Series 1997JJ
bonds.

The bonds, if in a weekly or monthly mode, are subject
to purchase on demand of the holder at a price equal to
principal plus accrued interest on seven days’ notice
and delivery to the remarketing agent. The remarketing
agent is authorized to sell the repurchased bonds at a
price equal to their principal amount by adjusting the
interest rate.

Irrevocable letters of credit have been issued by various
credit facilities in order to permit the Trustee to draw
amounts to pay the tender price of the taxable revenue
bonds tendered for payment under early redemption
and demand provisions of the bond issues. Under
these letters of credit, the various credit facilities,
acting as tender agent, paying agent, and bond registrar
for the respective bond issues are entitled to draw the
amount needed (a) to pay interest on the bonds on each
interest payment date; (b) to pay principal and interest
on the bonds called for redemption; (c) to pay principal
and interest on the bonds resulting from an acceleration
of maturity due to an event of default; and (d) to pay
the tender price of bonds tendered or required to be
tendered for purchase which is not to be paid from
remarketing proceeds or from certain funds held under
the indenture. The letters of credit have variable
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interest rates ranging from the Federal funds rate plus
5% to 20% per annum and expire at various dates
from December 1, 1997 through February 25, 2002, If
the remarketing agent is unable to resell any bonds that
are ‘“put” within 180 days of the “put” date, the
Comumission is required to repay the amounts drawn on
the letters of credit for the redemption of these bonds.
Repayments of amounts drawn on the letters of credit
will be made by the Commission from the trustee
accounts.

The Commission is required to pay to the credit
facilities an origination fee based on the line of credit
amounts and thereafter, a quarterly commitment fee
based on the available amount of the letters of credit.
Quarterly commitment fees currently in effect range
from .45% to .60% of the available amount of the
letters of credit.

State  Universities  Retirement
(System)-

The System issued revenue bonds to finance the design,
acquisition, construction and equipping of a new
permanent administrative office building. The bonds
are capital appreciation bonds with interest rates
ranging from 7.25% to 7.45%. These bonds are
payable solely from and secured by a pledge of and
first lien on the net revenues derived from investments
of the System. They are not payable from any
employer or employee contributions to the System.
The bond resolutions do not provide for early
redemption prior to maturity. At June 30, 1997, bonds
outstanding were $16.1 million.

System

Hlinois

(IHDA) -
The THDA was created in 1967 to increase the
production of low and moderate income housing in
Illinois by providing mortgage loans. The IHDA is
authorized to have bonds and notes outstanding in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed 3$3,600
million exclusive of refunding issues. Bonds issued
must mature within 50 years from the date of issue,
bearing interest rates as determined by the IHDA.
Subsequent to July 1, 1983, the maximum interest rate
cannot exceed 11% or 70% of the prime rate,
whichever is greater. All revenue bonds issued to
provide mortgage loans are secured by first mortgage
liens on the related developments.

Housing Development Authority

In the event that IHDA determines that funds will not
be sufficient for the payment of the principal of and
interest on its bonds during the next succeeding State
fiscal period, the Chairman of IHDA shall certify to the
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Governor on or before September of the then current
State fiscal period the amount required by IHDA to
enable it to pay such principal and interest. The
Governor shall include the amount so certified in the
State budget; however, the General Assembly has no
obligation to appropriate funds for IHDA.

At June 30, 1997, bonds outstanding aggregated
$2,045.2 million, before unamortized discounts of
$17.7 million. Sinking funds established pursuant to
bond resolutions at year end aggregated $95.6 million.
The bonds mature annually through 2031, bearing
interest from 3.65% to 15%. The bonds provide for
early redemption at the option of IHDA, in whole or in
part, in inverse order of maturity at varying premiums

_which decrease periodically.

Included within the $2,045.2 million of outstanding
revenue bonds are $354 million of Multi-Family
Program Bonds, $500.1 million of Homeowner
Mortgage Revenue Bonds and $104 million of
Affordable Housing Program Trust Fund Bonds which
are not a debt of the State of Illinois and, therefore, the
State of Illinois is not liable for them. However,
$308.2 million of the Multi-Family Program Bonds are
direct and general obligations of the IHDA and the full
faith and credit of the JHDA is pledged for their
repayment. The remainder of the bonds are special,
limited obligations of the IHDA with a claim for
payment solely from pledged property.

The IHDA has also issued $69.8 million of Housing
Revenue Bonds, Series 1985 which are secured by a
joint and several guaranty of the Metropolitan Life
Insurance Company, Pittway Corporation and Metro
Properties, to provide construction and permanent
financing for one development with 600 dwelling units.
On May 13, 1987, this guaranty was replaced by a
guaranty from Fuji Bank and approved by the
bondholders of the Housing Revenue Bonds. In
addition, the IHDA has issued $12.4 million of Multi-
Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1989 which
are secured by a guarantee of the Government National
Mortgage Association, to provide construction and
permanent financing of multi-family  housing
development of which certain units are intended for
occupancy by low to moderate income persons. Also,
the THDA has issued $70.9 million of Multi-Family
Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 1991, Series 1993 and
Series 1995. The Series 1991 and Series 1995 bonds
were used to finance the costs of acquiring,
rehabilitating and equipping multi-family residential
rental housing projects. The Series 1993 bonds were
used to refund on a current basis a portion of the
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IHDA’s Multi-Family Housing Bonds. Additionally,
the THDA has issued $61.8 million of Section 8
Housing Revenue Bonds, the proceeds of which were

used to (1) provide financing for the acquisition of ‘

several developments, (2) pay issuance costs, and (3)
fund debt service reserves. These bonds are special,
limited obligations of the IHDA and can only be repaid
from payments received with respect to the mortgage
loans. The bonds are not a debt of the IHDA or the
State of Illinois and neither are liable on the bonds.
They are, however, included in the IHDA'’s authorized
debt limitation. As of June 30, 1997, $213.8 million of
these bonds were outstanding.

Subsequent to June 30, 1997, the IHDA issued
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 1997 Series B,
in the amount of $126.4 million and 1997 Series C-1,
C-3, and C-5 in the aggregate amount of $52.1 million.
The 1997 Series B bonds bear interest at rates ranging
from 4.1% to 4.15%, and are subject to mandatory
tender no later than July 7, 1998. The 1997 Series C-1,
C-3 and C-5 bonds bear interest at rates ranging from
4.00% to 7.74%, and mature from 1999 through 2029,
The THDA also issued Owner Occupied Housing
Revenue Bonds, 1997 Series A, in the amount of $17.5
million which were redeemed on August 21, 1997. In
addition, the IHDA issued Multi-Family Housing
Revenue Bonds Series 1997A and 1997B in the
aggregate amount of $12.6 million. These bonds are
special limited obligations of the IHDA, and do not
constitute an indebtedness or an obligation of the IHDA
or the State of Illinois. They do, however, apply toward
the IHDA'’s authorized debt limitation.

lllinois State Toll Highway Authority (THA) -

The THA issued revenue bonds to finance construction
of the State toll highway system and to refund all
currently outstanding bonds of the Authority. The bond
resolutions provide for early redemption at the option
of the THA, in whole or in part, at a cost not to exceed
102% of par value, declining periodically through
December 31, 2004. All unmatured bonds outstanding
January 1, 2005, are redeemable thereafter at par. In
accordance with the provisions of the bond resolutions,
debt reserves on deposit with and invested by the Bond
Trustee at June 30, 1997, aggregated $148.9 million.

Included within the THA’s outstanding revenue bonds
are $323.6 million of refunding revenue bonds, Series
1993B for $178.2 million and Series 1996A for $145.4
million. The Series 1993B bonds mature in 2010, and
bear interest rates as determined by the remarketing
agent that would result in the market value of the bonds
being 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued
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interest, but not to exceed 22% per annum. The Series
1996A bonds mature at various dates through 2009,
and bear interest rates ranging from 4.7% to 6.0%.

The Series 1993B bonds, if in a daily mode, are subject
to purchase by demand of the holder at a price equal to
the principal amount plus accrued interest on notice and
delivery to the remarketing agent. If the bonds are in
any other interest mode except a fixed rate, they are
subject to purchase by demand of the holder at the
same price but on seven days’ notice and delivery to
the remarketing agent.

If the remarketing agent is unable to resell any bonds
that are “put”, the THA has entered into a
reimbursement agreement with Societe Generale (New
York Branch) to purchase the bonds. The purchased
bonds rate will be equal to the prime lending rate plus
2% per annum, however, not to exceed 22% per
annum. Under an irrevocable letter of credit issued by
Societe Generale, the First Chicago Trust Company of
New York, New York, NY, acting as tender agent, is
entitled to draw an amount sufficient to pay the
purchase price of bonds delivered to it. The letter of
credit is valid throngh December 31, 2009 and such
payment shall be made by the delivery of purchased
bonds.

.

The THA was required to pay to Societe Generale, on
the date of closing of the letter of credit an origination
fee of .05% per annum of the face amount of the letter
of credit. In addition, the THA must pay .20% per
annum of the maximum available amount to be drawn
under the letter of credit. In conjunction with the
issuance of the Series 1993B bonds, the THA entered
into an interest rate swap, with Societe Generale, to
mitigate the effect of changes in interest rates on its
demand bonds. The swap effectively changes the
THA’s interest costs on the $178.2 million Series
1993B bonds due in 2010 to a fixed rate of 4.92% for
the life of the bonds. The THA is exposed to credit
risk of nonperformance by Societe Generale. This risk
could result in the THA’s not receiving the agreed upon
payments from Societe Generale if the variable interest
rate exceeds 4.92%. However, the THA does not
anticipate nonperformance. The amounts shown in the
schedule of revenue bond debt service requirements are
based on the fixed rate effects of this interest rate swap.

Hlinois Rural Bond Bank (Bank) -

The Bank issues revenue bonds and notes whose
proceeds are used for (1) the purchase of securities of
local Illinois governmental units to include the
establishing or increasing reserves in securing the
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payment of the bonds and/or interest on the bonds and
(2) to pay, fund or refund any bonds issued by the
Bank. The Bank is authorized to have bonds and notes
outstanding in an aggregate original principal amount
not to exceed $150 million.

In the event that the Bank determines that funds will
not be sufficient for the payment of the principal and
interest on its bonds and notes, the Chairman of the
Bank shall certify to the Governor, as soon as possible,
the amount required by the Bank to enable it to pay
such principal and interest. The Governor shall include
the amount so certified in the State budget as soon as
practically possible; however, the General Assembly
has no obligation to appropriate funds for the Bank.

At June 30, 1997, bonds outstanding aggregated $64.7
million. Sinking funds established pursuant to bond
resolutions at year end aggregated $1 million. The
bonds mature annually through 2027, bearing interest
rates from 3.0% to 7.3%. The bonds provide for early
redemption at the option of the Bank, in whole or in
part, for bonds maturing on various dates between
February 1, 2001 through January 31, 2007 at 102% of
par, with the premium decreasing periodically until
February 1, 2008, after which unmatured bonds can
only be redeemed at par value.

Included within the $64.7 million of outstanding
revenue bonds are $9.1 million of bonds which do not
require the Governor to include in the State budget the
amount necessary for payment of principal and interest.
Payment of principal and interest on these bonds is
guaranteed by financial guaranty bonds issued by
Capital Guaranty Insurance Company for $3.8 million
of outstanding bonds and AMBAC for $5.3 million of
outstanding bonds.

Universities and Colleges -

The Boards of Chicago State University, Eastern
Nlinois University, Northeastern Illinois University,
Western Illinois University, Illinois State University,
Northern Illinois University, Southern TIllinois
University, and the University of Illinois (hereinafter
the “Boards™), as empowered by enabling acts, have
issued various revenue bonds to support construction of
student housing and other revenue producing facilities
at State universities. These bonds do not constitute
general obligations of either the State of Illinois or the
Boards but, together with interest thereon, are payable
solely from and are secured by, subject to the prior
pledge and lien of existing refunded bonds, (i) the net
revenues of the Boards; (i) debt service grants; (iii)
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income received from certain special accounts; (iv)
retained tuition fees (subject to prior payment of related
operating and maintenance expenses); (v) certain debt
service reserves; (vi) certain repair and replacement
reserves; and (vii) the principal of the special accounts
arising on refundings, all as defined in the various bond
resolutions. In accordance with provisions of the bond
resolutions, debt service funds and reserves on deposit
aggregated $165.9 million at June 30, 1997. The bonds
are callable prior to their maturity in accordance with
the provisions of the bond resolutions, including
premiums of up to 5%.

Contingent Liabilities -

Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority
(McCormick Place) -

In September 1991, the State amended the
Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority Act (Act)
to authorize the issuance of $937 million of additional
bonds to finance another expansion of McCormick
Place, to be effective July 1, 1992. The Act also
authorizes the McCormick Place to levy certain taxes
(MPEA Taxes) to secure the additional bonds and for
certain other purposes. The MPEA Taxes would
include (i) a sales tax within portions of the City of
Chicago on food, alcoholic beverages, and soft drinks
sold for consumption on the premises and on certain
sales for immediate consumption off the premises, (ii) a
tax at the rate of 2.5% of the gross rental receipts of
hotels located within the City of Chicago, (iii) a 6% tax
on gross receipts of the business of renting automobiles
in Cook County, Illinois, (iv) a 6% use tax on
automobiles rented outside Illinois for use in Cook
County, Illinois, and (v) a tax on taxis and livery
vehicles ranging from $2 per taxi departure to $27 per
bus having a capacity of over 24 passengers. In
addition, subject to appropriation, amounts of State
sales tax ranging from $64 million for fiscal year 1997
and graduating to $93 million for fiscal year 2004 and
thereafter would be available for the payment of debt
service on the additional bonds to the extent that the
MPEA Taxes are not sufficient for such purpose.

The McCormick Place has previously issued $936.4
million in revenue bonds, the proceeds of which were
used to finance this expansion. On September 15,
1996, the McCormick Place issued $506.8 million of
refunding bonds. The proceeds were used to purchase
U.S. governmental securities held in a trust fund to
defease $446 million of previously issued Series 1992A
current interest and deferred interest bonds. Issuance
of the advance refunding bonds will cause aggregate
debt service refunding payments to be decreased by
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$14.2 million and will result in an economic (present
value gain) of $9.1 million over the life of the advanced
refunding bonds. As of June 30, 1997, the outstanding
bonds of the McCormick Place which the State is
contingently obligated to pay is $1,164 million. These
bonds consist of $513.5 million expansion project
bonds and $650.5 million refunding bonds.

The expansion project bonds consist of $246 million
current interest bonds and $267.5 million capital
appreciation and deferred interest bonds. The current
interest bonds in the amount of $246 million, mature
annually through 2006 and from 2022 through 2027,
and bear interest at rates ranging from 4.25% to 50%.
(As of June 30, 1997, $13.4 million of current interest
bonds remain outstanding bearing an interest rate of
50% which were sold at a premium with yields to
maturity ranging from 5.8% to 5.88%.) The capital
appreciation bonds and deferred interest bonds, in the
amount of $267.5 million, mature anpually from 2006
through 2029, with a yield to maturity ranging from
6.1% t0 6.75%.

In addition, as of June 30, 1997, the McCormick Place
has $497.5 million of revenue bonds outstanding
which have been advance refunded with proceeds
received from the Series 1994 B and Series 1996A
bond issues. Proceeds from the Series 1994B and
Series 1996A bond issues were used to purchase U. S.
governmental securities, which were deposited in an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to satisfy all
future debt service requirements of the refunded bonds.
As a result, the refunded bonds are considered defeased
and the State is no longer contingently liable for them.

Southwestern lllinois Development Authority
(SWIDA) -

SWIDA has issued $116.2 million of revenue bonds,
the proceeds of which were loaned to several
companies for the acquisition of land and construction
of various types of facilities. These companies are
primarily liable for repayment of the bonds, which are
secured by SWIDA loan agreements with the
companies. These bonds bear interest rates ranging
from 4.1% to 9.25% and mature annually through
2020. The State has accepted a moral obligation to
repay the bonds in the event SWIDA and the
companies are unable to meet the bonds’ repayment
commitments.

During 1994, Wood River Township Hospital
deposited $9.1 million of cash into an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to provide for the advance
refunding of $8.2 million of bonds maturing through
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2003. During 1996, SWIDA issued $2.9 million of
refunding revenue bonds which were loaned to
McKendree College. The proceeds of the bonds, along
with $.3 million of reserves from the Series 1990 bond
issue, were deposited by McKendree College into an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for
the advance refunding of $2.6 million Series 1990
bonds maturing through 2011. As a result, the refunded
bonds are considered defeased and the State no longer
has a moral obligation to repay the bonds.

As of June 30, 1997, the outstanding balance of bonds
which the State is morally obligated to repay is $91.4
million. The outstanding balance of the refunde
bonds is $9.3 million. :

The SWIDA has also issued $96.2 million of revenue
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to Shell Qil
Company, Monsanto Company, Robinson Steel
Company, Inc., and Anderson Hospital. These bonds
are special, limited obligations of the SWIDA and can
only be repaid from payments by Shell Oil Company,
Monsanto Company, Robinson Steel Company, Inc.,
and Anderson Hospital. Unlike the bonds in the
preceding paragraph, the State has not accepted a moral
obligation to repay the bonds in the event the SWIDA
and the companies are unable to meet the bonds’
repayment commitments. At June 30, 1997, the
outstanding balance is $92.6 million.

Subsequent to June 30, 1997, SWIDA issued $.8
million of revenue bonds, the proceeds of which were
loaned to the YMCA, which do carry the moral
obligation of the State.

Quad Cities Regional Economic Development
Authority (Authority) -

The Authority has issued $27.2 million of revenue
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to HDC, Inc.
and to Thoms-Proestler Company to provide permanent
financing for the acquisition and construction of
various types of faciliies. These companies are
primarily liable for repayment of the bonds, which are
secured by (i) mortgages and security agreements from
HDC, Inc. and Thoms-Proestler Company to the
Authority, (ii) a leasehold mortgage and security
agreement from HDC, Inc. to the Authority, (iii) an
assignment of leases, rents and revenues from HDC,
Inc. to the Authority, and (iv) a guaranty by HDC, Inc.
to the trustee. The bonds mature semiannually through
2017 and bear interest rates of 8.7% and 9.75% until
February 1, 2004, at which time the 9.75% will be reset
to 10.25% plus a supplemental coupon rate, if required,
whose combined rate is not to exceed the limits of
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Ilinois law. The State has accepted a moral obligation
to repay the bonds in the event the Authority and
companies are unable to meet the bonds’ repayment
commitments. At June .30, 1997, the outstanding
balance is $25.6 million.

The Authority has also issued $2 million of revenue
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to Whitey’s
Ice Cream Manufacturers, Inc. These bonds are
special, limited obligations of the Authority and can
only be repaid from repayments by Whitey’s Ice Cream
Manufacturers, Inc. Unlike the bonds of the preceding
paragraph, the State has not accepted a moral
obligation to repay the bonds in the event the Authority
or the Company is unable to meet the bonds’ repayment
commitments. At June 30, 1997, the outstanding
balance is $1.9 million.

Upper lllinois River Valley Development
Authority (UIRVDA) -

The UIRVDA has issued $4 million of revenue bonds,
the proceeds of which were loaned to Waste Recovery -
[linois (the Company) to finance the acquisition,
construction, equipment and installaion of a tire
recycling and tire-derived fuel processing facility. The
Company is primarily liable for repayment of the
bonds, which are secured by an assignment and a
pledge of revenues derived from a separate loan
agreement between the UIRVDA and the Company. In
addition, the bonds will be secured by (i) moneys held
by the trustee under a debt service reserve fund
established under the indenture, (11) guaranty agreement
from Waste Recovery, Inc., a Texas corporation and a
general partner of the Company, to the trustee, and (iii)
a separate mortgage and security agreement from the
Company to the trustee granting a mortgage lien on and
security interest in the project. These bonds mature
annually through 2004 and bear an interest rate of
6.5%. The State has accepted a moral obligation to
repay the bonds in the event the UIRVDA and the
Company arc unable to meet the bonds’ repayment
commitments. At June 30, 1997, the outstanding
balance is $3.3 million.

Defeased Revenue Bonds -

On October 1, 1996, Northern Illinois University issued
$11.7 million in revenue bonds with interest rates
ranging from 4.5% to 5.75% to advance refund $3.8
million of certain maturities of outstanding Series 1985
CAB bonds, which had interest rates ranging from
9.4% to 10.0%. The net proceeds, together with $1.4
million from the 1985 Debt Service Reserve Account,
were used to purchase U.S. governmental securities,
which were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an
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escrow agent to provide for future debt service
payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the
refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the
financial statements.

The advance refunding increased the total debt service
requirements by $6.5 million (spread over an additional
17.5 years), and resulted in an economic gain
(difference between the present values of the debt
service payments on the old and new debt) of $ .3
million.

Also, in October, 1996, the Illinois State Toll Highway
Authority issued $148.3 million of revenue bonds with
interest rates ranging from 4.7% to 6% to current
refund $144.3 million of revenue bonds with interest
rates ranging from 6.05% to 6.85%. The proceeds
were used to purchase U.S. governmental securities
which were deposited in an irrevocable trust which,
with interest thereon, will be sufficient to pay all future
debt service requirements of the refunded bonds.

Although the current refunding resulted in the
recognition of an accounting loss of approximately $5.1
million based upon the required deposit to the
irrevocable trust and the write off of related
unamortized deferred bond issuance costs, the
Authority has reduced its aggregate debt service
payments by approximately $9.1 million over the next
12 years and obtained an economic gain (or present
value savings) of approximately $8.5 million.

In addition, the Illinois Student Assistance Commission
issued $68 million of new bonds to current refund a
like amount of outstanding bonds having interest rates
ranging from 3.9% to 7.5%. The refunding bonds are
variable rate bonds. Although the variable rate bonds
have minimum and maximum rate limits, ISAC
estimates that the rate will average 4.4% over the life of
the bonds.

The current refunding resulted in a difference between
the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of
the old debt of $1 million. This difference is being
amortized on a straight line basis over the remaining
life of the old debt as a component of interest expense.
As a result of the current refunding, ISAC estimates an
increase in its debt service payments of $47.2 million
over the life of the new debt and an economic present
value gain of $1.9 million. This debt service increase
could range from $18.7 to $137.4 million, depending
on interest rate fluctuations applicable to the variable
rate debt; likewise, the economic gain could range from
$5.6 million to an economic loss of $7.2 million.
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The State Toll Highway Authority, the Illinois Housing
Development Authority, and State universities
consisting of Chicago State University, Eastern Illinois
University, Western Illinois University, Northern
Illinois University, Illinois State University, Southern
Illinois University, and the University of Illinois had
previously defeased outstanding bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to
provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and
liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
financial statements. On June 30, 1997, $400.7 million
of bonds outstanding are considered defeased. These
bonds have interest rates ranging from .05% to 10.8%
with principal maturing until 2021.

in financial

Conduit Debt (not included

statements) -

The State of Illinois by action of the General Assembly
created various authorities for the express purpose of

providing private entities with an available low cost
source of capital financing for construction of facilities
deemed to be in the public interest. Fees are assessed
to recover related processing and application costs
incurred. Bonds issued by the authorities represent
limited obligations payable solely from payments made
by the borrowing entities. The majority of the bonds
are secured by the property financed, Upon repayment
of a bond, ownership of acquired property transfers to
the entity served by the bond issuance. The State has
no obligation for this debt. Accordingly, these bonds
are not reflected in the accompanying financial
statements. At June 30, 1997, recorded amounts of
revenue bonds, net of defeased bonds, and notes
outstanding (amounts expressed in thousands) as
reported by authority officials are as follows:

“Amount Interest - . .Annual
Authority Qutsmndmg - Rates Maturlty To .
lumms Health Famimes Authonty ‘ $ 6,254 946 Variable .. :___:. 2031
Hiinois Development Fmance Authority R B R T :
‘Environmental facilifies i 81,565,880 S Vardable: oo 02082
501 (¢} 8 not for profit 1,381,684 0 ~Variable 0 2037
mdustr%iéijdevelapmem v 063884 Variable c2082
‘-_Infrastmcture CoasTIOr 27% 16 9.625% L2021
‘Housing - .. 206060 vt CVariable o v 2028
insured jﬁdustnat revenue 28933 . :: Variable L2021
Financially distressed oity . 120,300  53% o 75% ..2013
'-'Leases and certificates of pamcxpanon B,7EE VVariable.' G017
L s 4707998 0 ’
lllmcns Educauonai Facflhties Authonty 1,426,588 “Nariable ' 2028
_Hiinois Housing Development Authority. ‘ 213,780 .. .. 43% to. 250%. . 2034
Southwestem lllinois Development Authority 92635 65% 10 150% . 2025 .
l!!mms Farm Development Authonty _____ 75257 45% to o 115% 0 2038
4870 .. Varable ... ..2010.
C$12778ATA -
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OTHER LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS

Other long-term obligations reported in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group and disclosed
below are as follows (in millions):

- Description . Reference ' Amount
Metropohtan Pler and Expos:tlon Authontyw SERIEE N .
‘{McCormick Place) Ilabmty ; ' S A 83358
Compensated absences G L (B 5146
Regional Transpurtatxon Authonty llabmty B ©y -491.3
- Workers' compensation: fiability . o o 55:3
* Capital lease obligations i BT
Iinois Sports Facilities Authomy l:ablhty SR 325
Installment purchase obltgatians ey =259
 Certificates-of participation - H) : 131_ 7
Other obligations = i A ' (I) 7.0
Total Other. Long-Term Obligatlons $ 1,621.8

(A)

Metropolitan Pier and Exposition
Authority (McCormick Place) Liability -

In July 1984, and November 1983, the State amended
the "Metropolitan Fair and Exposition Authority Act"
(Act) to authorize the issuance of $265 and $47.5
million, respectively, for a total authorization of
$312.5 million, in additional bonds. Bond proceeds
were used (1) to pay construction costs of completing
the McCormick Place expansion, (2) to pay the
construction costs of projects authorized by the Illinois
General Assembly in the future, and (3) to refund any
outstanding bonds of the McCormick Place that were
issued prior to July 1, 1984. The Act was further
amended in July and August 1986 to authorize the
issnance of refunding bonds either on a parity with or
subordinated to the 1984 and 1985 bonds. In addition,
in July 1989 the Act was amended to change the name
to Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority and to
expand its purposes to provide for the acquisition and
improvement of the Navy Pier in Chicago.

The Illinois General Assembly also amended certain
tax laws in July 1984 and November 1985 to provide
for 1.75% of total State sales tax revenues, 3% of 94%
of total hotel room rental receipts, and $1.7 million per
year out of 7% of State racing tax revenues to be
deposited into the Build Illinois Fund, which replaced
the Tourism Fund, as collected. The legislation
provides for credits to separate accounts within the
Build Illinois Fund of which the "McCormick Place
Account” is one and has first priority credit of the
amounts collected.
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In August 1984, the McCormick Place issued $252.5
million of bonds at interest rates ranging from 7% to
10.375% and maturing annually through 2014.
Additionally, in December 1985, the McCormick Place
issued $60.1 million in bonds at interest rates varying
from 6% to 8.875% and maturing annually through
2015.

During 1986, the McCormick Place issued 1986 and
1986A Series refunding bonds. The 1986 Series bonds,
issued in the amount of $324.2 million with interest
rates ranging from 4.9% to 8% and maturing annually
through 2014, were used to defease the remaining 1984
Series bonds. The 1986A Series bonds, issued in the
amount of $62.6 million, were used to defease certain
callable maturities of 1985 Series bonds. The 1986A
Series bonds have interest rates ranging from 3.75% to
7% and mature annually through 2015. In addition, in
March 1992, the McCormick Place issued 1992 Series
refunding bonds in the amount of $182.1 million at
interest rates ranging from 4% to 6.75% and maturing
annually through 2010. The 1992 Series bonds were
used to defease certain callable maturities of 1985
Series bonds and 1986 Series bonds. The proceeds of
the 1986, 1986A, and 1992 Series bonds were placed in
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt
service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the
trust account assets and the liability for the defeased
bonds are not included in the financial statements. As
of June 30, 1997, the entire amount of 1984 and 1986
Series bonds outstanding are considered defeased.
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In July 1995, the McCormick Place issued $54.1
million in bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.3%
to 6.25% and maturing annually through 2011 to
advance refund $51.6 million of certain callable
maturities of 1986 Series bonds and 1986A Series
bonds which had interest rates ranging from 6.6% to
7.6%. The net proceeds were used to purchase U. S.
governmental securities which were deposited in an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all
future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.
As a result, the refunded bonds are considered defeased
and the liability for those bonds has been removed from
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
As of June 30, 1997, the outstanding balance of the
defeased bonds was zero.

The refunding transaction saved the McCormick Place
approximately $4.2 million in aggregate debt service
payments resulting in an economic gain or present
value savings of $2.9 million over the life of the
refunded bonds.

The outstanding balance of the remaining 1986 Series
refunding bonds, the 1986A Series refunding bonds,
the 1992 Series refunding bonds and the 1995 Series
refunding bonds was $335.8 million and is included as
"Other Obligations” in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. Future McCormick Place
debt service requirements (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1997 are as follows:

" YearEnding oo A DT T gy
" June 30 " Principal " Interest . . Total
1998 8§ 11,505 . -$ 20,585 § 32,090
1999 . . 12,140 19981 - 82121

2000 i 12,8450 019,246 32,091

2001 13830 0 18473 82,103

S 20020 .. 14,485 .. 17,658 . = 32,143
. Thereafter 271,190 . 120,649 391,839
... 87335795 216502  § 552,387

(B) Compensated Absences -

Most employees earn annual leave ranging from 1 to 2
days per month with maximum accumulation ranging
from 20 to 50 days. At June 30, 1997, the liability for
accrued annual leave was approximately $248.8
million, including salary related costs of $15.2 million,
for the governmental funds.

Until January 1, 1984, sick leave, which generally is
earned one day per month with unlimited accumulation,
was paid only when an employee was absent due to
illness or other acceptable circumstances as outlined by
personnel regulations. Effective January 1, 1984, upon
death, retirement, resignation or termination from State
employment, employees are able to receive payment for
one-half of accumulated sick leave ecarned subsequent
to January 1, 1984, or full service credit for such
accurmnulated sick leave under the State Employees
Article of the State Pension Code. At June 30, 1997,
the liability for sick leave earned subsequent to January
1, 1984 was $265.8 million, including $15.9 million of
salary related costs. Thus, the State's liability for
compensated absences reported in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group amounted to
$514.6 million at June 30, 1997. As explained in Note
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1-O, this amount does not include compensated
absences liabilities for proprictary funds and
component units.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Public Act 90-65
was enacted which eliminates compensation for sick
leave accumulated on or after January 1, 1998,
However, the unused sick leave may be used to
establish retirement system service credit as provided in
the Illinois Pension Code.

{(C) Regional Transportation Authority
(Authority) Liability -

The Authority was authorized by the Regional
Transportation Authority Act to issue bonds in the
principal amount of $100 million on or after January 1,
1990 and increasing $100 million per year until January
1, 1994, for a total authorization of $500 million used
for Strategic Capital Improvement Projects (SCIP).
These projects were used to acquire, repair or replace
public transportation facilities in the metropolitan
region as approved by the Governor. Since June 1992,
the Authority has issued $500 million of bonds with
interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 9% and maturing
annually through 2025.
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The bonds are general obligations of the Authority to
which the full faith and credit of the Authority is
pledged. However, for State fiscal years in which the
SCIP bonds are outstanding, the State's assistance shall
be transferred monthly from the General Revenue Fund
to the Public Transportation Fund for payment in an
amount equal to the lesser of monthly debt service on
the SCIP bonds, or one-twelfth of the amount of the
State's assistance as provided in the authorization. The
authorization provided for $40 million for 1996, $50
million for 1997, and $55 million for each year

assistance is measured by the debt service on the SCIP
bonds, the assistance is not pledged for payment of or
security for the SCIP bonds. The State's assistance is
paid directly to the Authority and may be spent by the
Authority at its discretion. As of June 30, 1997, the
outstanding balance included in the General Long-
Term obligations Account Group is $491.3 million.

Future Regional Transportation Authority debt service
requirements (amounts expressed in thousands) at June
30, 1997 are as follows:

thereafter.  Although the amount of the State's
YearEnding .. oo e SR _
June 30 Principal Intéréét . Total
1998 1§ 7490 § 31 043 $ 39433
10809 7875 B1562 0 39,437
2000 8310 31,145 39455
2001 . B770 .. 30,680 39,460
.. 2002 . . ®275 30202 . 39477
Thereafter . 449550 395210 : 844,760
Lt -s 491,270 $ 550,752  $ 1,042,022

(D) Workers' Compensation Liability -

The workers' compensation liability has been
determined using claims outstanding and a projection
of claims to be submitted, based upon prior years'
experience of the State. Claims that will be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources have
been recorded as a liability in the General Fund and in
the Road Fund and Mental Health Fund (Special
Revenue Funds), in the amounts of $30.7, $14.9 and
$20.2 million, respectively. The remaining portion of
the liability, $55.3 million as of June 30, 1997, is
included in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. Of this liability, $28.8, $9.9 and
$16.6 million are expected to be paid from future
resources of the General Fund, the Road Fund and the
Mental Health Fund, respectively. In addition, an $8.9

million worker’s compensation liability has been
included in the University and College fund types
included in component units.

(E) Lease Commitments -

The State leases land, office facilities, office and
computer equipment and other assets. Although lease
terms vary, certain leases are renewable subject to
appropriation by the General Assembly. If renewal is
reasonably assured, leases requiring appropriation by
the General Assembly are considered noncancelable
leases for financial reporting purposes. At June 30,
1997, assets capitalized under capitalized leases
included in property, plant and equipment (amounts
expressed in thousands) are as follows:

:;‘Land and land lmprovements _

; =Equ|nment

- Primary Government - - .o

- Buildings and busldmg fmprovemants' i

: iumpr'mw -*compdnem'

$ 1003 o
$....4 032 e _1,80__8 i aB100
24989 . ...3154 ..33,705 ..

: 4962’ o 39 318:‘}';;

2808
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Future minimum commitments for noncancelable leases 30, 1997 are as follows:
(amounts expressed in thousands) as of June

Primary Government

' e Caprtaiized Leases

ol DR General G -

'Year Ending . Operatmg Long—Tarm Proprietary :
June30 ol Leases ' Obligations ""Fund Types Total

ff:1993':_. L e _.-'85795 - 1{)216 1043 s 97.054

1899 0 66049 -:;.5,450 e 7m0

L2000 BBTE e ,‘.‘5_4:3 . 57,089

SLoB001 oo 30074 836 42,387

2002 . 14339 o210 7110

_ ’Thereafter a4y 0630 31170
Totaimlmmumlease = e R e

payments SEe im0 T BT

Lessamounts representmg N R
_interest B e B02E
Prasentvaluaofnetrmmmum' O R
leasepayments 0§ 27653 § -

'Component Units ¢
""" Capxtahzed Leases
Umvﬁrsny

Year Ending ? - ffbp_e_r_é_ting-' and Ccallege Proprietary

SJune 30 Gl lenses:

S 1998 8 6419
1999 B4 _

2000 o 4340 2

. oot e s
2002 S 2282
Thereafter S e BT Sl

;{Less am°”“ts fepresentmg i C -
| mterest _

:'Presentvalue-o' etmlnumum _ i
S Iaase payments e Vit D

Rental payments (amounts expressed in thousands) for (F) Hiinois Sports Facilities Authority

operating leases charged to operations during the year (Authority) Liability -

ended June 30, 1997 aggregated $247,764 for the

primary government and $9,844 for component units. The Authority is authorized by the Illinois Sports
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Facilities Authority Act to issue bonds in the principal
amount of $150 million to be used for providing sports
stadiums for professional sports teams. On March 1,
1989, $150 million of bonds were issued with interest
rates ranging from 6.8% to 7.875% and maturing
annually through 2010.

The bonds are secured by payments from the Illinois
Sports Facilities Fund which consist of annual
payments of $5 million from the State's Hotel
Operator's Occupation Tax, $8 million from the

million annually, but the State anticipates that $8
million, derived from the Authority's Hotel Tax, will
reduce this liability to $5 million annually. In fiscal
year 1997, receipts from the Authority's Hotel Tax
totaled $19.4 million. As of June 30, 1997, the State's
share of the outstanding principal balance was $32.5
million.

The State (and non-State) share of future Illinois Sports
Facilities Authority debt service requirements (amounts

Authority's Hotel Tax and $5 million from the City of expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1997 are as
Chicago's share of the Local Government Distributive follows:
Fund. The State's maximum liability is limited to $13
YearEnding State Share Non-StateShare -~ Total
: June 0 Prim:ipal f Inierest_ Prfinclpa! - Interest . ‘P}incipal- Interest
-“'_1998 $ 1549 $ 2520-__ $ 4026 $ 3554'; 5 5,575 $ 9074
1909 . 1663 2406 482  B255 . 5985 .. 8,661
2000 0 azer 0 ogper. i4,6_48'_;':fj‘j‘ 5933 6435 8215
2001 .. 1921, 2148 . 4994 . 5585 . . 6915 7,733
. 2002 . 2067 2002 . -5373],;;;” ‘5205;,,- 7440 7207
Thereafter 23501 9048 61,04 23504 84605 33572
: s 32488 s 20,406 $ 84,467  $ 53,086 § 116,955 § 73,462

(G) Installment Purchase Obligations -

The State has acquired certain land, office facilities,
office and computer equipment, and other assets

through installment purchase arrangements. Future
commitments under installment purchase contracts
(amounts expressed in thousands) as of June 30, 1997
arc as follows:

anary Govemment i :Component Units -
------- General G “ 0 CUniversity
Long-Tsrm : Prqptie‘tary; . o ooand
Year ‘r—:nding' o Obligations " FundTypes == = College Funds S
n.lune 300 -'P[I_Eclpal lnterést Principal lntemstj; _ Total Prlnclpal lnterest L Total

”j-:=1993,_:;"_-'- $ 11584 § 5. 9957:' . s gi4. §: 4107
8103 . 51 ' oas12
8219 an a2 _ "3_‘5’341}-

. TR e e | -
commitments $25939 $152 $16844 5 740 ‘$=.4‘5.,049 $ 23,8583- | $.6,400 s_az_,i-t_;v_

(H) Certificates of Participation -

State-issued Certificates of Participation. The State is
authorized to issue certificates of participation
(“certificates™) representing the right to receive a
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proportionate share in lease-purchase or installment
purchase payments to be made for the benefit of State
agencies for the acquisition or improvement of real or
personal property, refinancing of such property,
payment of expenses of such property, or payment of
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expenses related to the issuance. During fiscal year
1996, the State, acting by and through the Bureau of the
Budget, issued $38.8 million of these certificates to
provide for the construction and lease purchase of
certain correctional facilities to be operated by the
Department of Corrections at various sites within the
State. The certificates have interest rates ranging from
4.15% 10 6.375% and maturing annually through 2017.
The outstanding balance of the certificates as of June
30, 1997 included in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group is $38.8 million.

The University of Illinois has also issued certificates of
participation representing the right to receive a
proportionate share of lease-purchase or installment
payments. On August 1, 1990, the University of
Illinois issued $3.3 million of the certificates with an
interest rate of 7.25% and maturing in 2000 to finance
the construction of a facility to house academic units in
Area Studies and International Programs. Also, on
January 1, 1991, $16.8 million of the certificates were
issued at interest rates ranging from 5.9% to 6.4% and
maturing annually through 1998 to finance the
acquisition and installation of and the construction of a
building for an electrical and high temperature hot
water cogeneration system. In addition, on April 1,

1995, $29.9 million of the certificates were issued at
interest rates ranging from 4.1% to 5.4% and maturing
semi-annually through 2005 to finance the purchase of
a firm supply of natural gas from MidCon Gas Services
Corporation. The outstanding balance of the
certificates as of June 30, 1997 is $33.9 million and is
included as "Other obligations” in the component units.

Non-State-issued Certificates of Participation. The
State also finances the purchase of certain state-owned
real and personal property through third party (non-
State issued) certificates. These non-State issued
certificates are sold by private concerns and are repaid
by State agency appropriations pursuant to installment
purchase agreements. The outstanding balance of non-
State certificates as of June 30, 1997 included in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group is
$92.9 million. The outstanding balance of non-State
certificates as of June 30, 1997 included as “Other
obligations” in the component units is $3.6 million.

Future commitments by the State to make installment
payments to pay for the assets acquired and related
financing costs for State and non-State issued
certificates (amounts expressed in thousands) at June
30, 1997 are as follows:

. Certificates of Participation
: General Long-Term Obligations Aecount Group
Year Endmg State Issued . Non-State Issued “Total
fJune 30 _ Principal‘_- : lntereat- 'Principal “interest Principal 'lntereét R
% a5 % 2168' 8 1495 § 4714;;:353$:=;.1950;. $ 6882
1,140 2133 3650 | 5318 © 4790 . 7451
1190 . 2080 . 3840 5125 5030 - 7205
. 1240 2023 4075 4916 ' 53156 ' 6939
L1285 =1.,952;=!== 4328 o a688 -5620_?' 6850 ]
----- 33435 - 18,182 75525 35930 108,960 © 54112 |
""" s 33,755 % .23;548 s szsm -----s so 691 1§ 131,665 s.‘as,zas, :
o " Certificates of Participation =
e " ComponentUnit - - i
_Year Ending - Statelssued . . Non-Statelssued = T.,ta.
| June30 Principal _interest  Principal __lInterest _ Principal |
------ 1998 $ 5070 s 1747;_‘_.;3 221 "';;}_;}.57a5.3 § 19
1999 07,1450 1,395 . 7908
2 '2,955 Cta0e 3785
3435 939 4300
2?355] e . 3310
12,485 1389-”=- o 12,485
$ 33945 s 7353 ------ s 3605 $ 37,550
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(I) Other Obligations -

The State's risk financing of auto liability, determined
using an estimate of claims outstanding, approximates
$3 million as of June 30, 1997. Claims of $1.7 million,
which will be liquidated with expendable available
resources, have been recorded as a liability in the
General Fund. The remaining $1.3 million portion is
expected to be paid from future resources of the
General Fund.

Also, as of June 30, 1997, commitments under service
related contracts aggregated $6.7 million which require
debt service payments of $5.7 million principal and $1
million interest through June 30, 2002.

In addition, the Tax Reform Act of 1986 requires
issuers of state and local government bonds to rebate to

the federal government arbitrage profits eamed on

those bonds wunder certain circumstances. In
accordance with this requirement, it was determined
that there was no arbitrage rebate liability as of June
30, 1997.

The total of “Other obligations” recorded in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group as of
June 30, 1997 is $7 million.

(J) Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium and
Office Building Authorities -

The General Assembly, through adoption of the
"Metropolitan Civic Center Support Act" (Support
Act), created the Metropolitan Exposition Auditortum

and Office Building Fund (Fund) into which 33.5% of
all monies received by the State as horse racing taxes
are deposited. At June 30, 1997, the balance of the
Fund is $18.7 million. The purpose of the Fund is to
secure and retire a proportionate share of locally issued
revenue bonds, the proceeds of which werc used to
construct local civic and exposition centers. The
Support Act was amended in September 1985 to
provide State financial support by issuing direct,
limited obligation revenue bonds for the advanced
refunding of any civic center bond issued before July 1,
1985 and for newly certified applicants after July 1,
1985. It was further amended to increase the limitation
of the aggregate amount of principal issued and
outstanding in State and local bonds subject to State
financial support for all Authorities from $75 million to
200 million. In addition, further restrictions exist as to
the amount to be committed on behalf of any single
taxing authority.

On December 15, 19835, the State defeased previous
State supported guarantees by placing the proceeds of
new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all
future debt service payments on the State supported
guarantees. Accordingly, the trust account assets and
the liability for the guarantees are not included in the
State's financial statements. The bonds used to defease
the State supported guarantees are further discussed in
Note 12, Special Obligation Bonds.

At June 30, 1997, the unpaid principal on State
supported guarantees (amounts expressed in thousands)
are as follows:

oo Amount. o Interest . Annual
_Authority . Defeased . Rates .. . MaturityTo |
DeKab ~  $ 2125  1085% - 2003
Joliet 1,800 9.30%109.40% 2003
Rockiord . 765 7.00% . 1997.
Danville = 230 . 500%.. 1997

Beginning July 1, 1985, the following newly certified
local governmental units have received grants ranging

from $.4 to $20 million through June 30, 1997:

Quad Cities Bureau County Aledo

Rosemont Orland Park Benton

Centre East Knox County Herrin

Quincy River Forest Rockford

Peoria Aurora Bowdre Township
Ogle County Pekin Mason County
Collinsville LaSalle County
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CHANGES IN LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS

15

Changes in long-term obligations (amounts expressed
in thousands) for the year ended June 30, 1997 are
summarized as follows:

:EG&nﬁra’l-Long—Tenh Qbfigaﬁpns Account Group: -

" Propristary and Other -

_____ T . Accrued . General “Special .. ., .Other.
""" Revenue =~ Retirement ~  Obligation " ‘Obligation . Long-Term
yBonds i uliiCeste it Bonds 0 L Bonds +iObligations ..
{Note13) = (Note10) ~ (Notelf) (Note 12) “{Note 14) .

Balancas atJu -1; 1996 a8

onginally reponed B
Adjus:ment xo rocord the State's 'Net ahn
Pension Dbligatim ("NPQ") at transition
atduly1, 1996 in accordance with: :

B . 8 4445026

$ . (1851.861).

S 11026202 8 556509 S 1m08e S 1,640,042

Ga\remmem Accounting standards

BoardStatemant'ﬂ SR s o)
Baiances at July 1, 1996 as: restated $:4,445,028 .
Primary Government: ©* ' "." R

Compensated absences eamed ;.

Excsss ot annugi pension’ cust ("AP_C")
ovar employer conmbmions ;l‘rom

i 9174341 -

% 5,656,529, $:1,880,092 . .§ 1,640,042

. 314,303

Décreaseiin’ wurkers compensamn o Ll
"abimy i g e R e .: i Pl (38,833)
Deb issuies 167,211 e 2 ae o
Increase inlgase and instaumam Car LR

purchase obligahons ! 18 969
Compensa:ad absences mken____ (280 631) :
Amortization aibnnd d|ssounts and S ey

‘bond issuance: casts ; e
Amomzatwn of de‘!erred amouwls on j L

bond refiindings - - Plheei qzEn

lncrease in accreted valueofcapilai B N G ihand

‘dppreclationbonds . L ITEE 107,298 Azaye o oo
Pringipal ratiréments and ten'nlnahons i 5444300 {68,004} L (37.606)

vasepos s IR
st 5572

$ B N 7 R 1,382,203 8 (2,132) 8 4176 . §  (18,256)
campamm Unlts, i ‘ S Sl D :
Debtissues 0 : : 1812 seosoa' :
Amortization. of bond dlscounts and bond :
‘issuance: costs e (786)
Amorﬁzanon afdefemadamuaisonbond A
' L e
. - o sng
Pnnmpak mt{tememaandtermmatons (433,14D) - ik
Total component units (2.0 450,479 ‘ - ‘ FEn T o _
Batanmawune 30,1997 $ 102,009 7§ 4,687,976 $ 10,556,544 . $ 5654397 . $ 1,885,167 ' §1,621,786

*The debt issues amount represents the gross issuance
amounts and not the net proceeds that are
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- displayed separately on the combined balance sheet
I16 FUND EQUITY I (amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1997

consisted of the following:

A. Fund equity reservations and designations not

“Fund Types " s be ol otk
e ' ‘ --.(Me‘mcraliﬂam.‘
S e s gy e T
. .Special :.. Debt . . .. Expendable’ Primary Conmonent' :
‘General  ‘Bevenue - Seryice - Enterprise Trust i/ Govemment . Umts :

Furi Eqwty” i
“'Retained: Eamtngs-' :
Reservedtor: 0
Revenuebondand " ! i ‘ e
noteretitament T iR B g e g

o Highrisk inSurdnes *. Behe i G bR Y il G g
progmmandother ot 27886 27868 G7433
Tolameerved 100 s TR L e D e el g e L
rehinedeammgs U e e e G 07088 = g 1 o gea S adens

Fund Balames
) Resarved forother
Long-term Doﬂmnof
Faderal hlghway UL L e
pmgmm receivable hiin ¢pamzas
Intergovernmental recewables_':; L§ e asseme
' Other recgivableg 7 iE I gy L g g
Loans and noles mceivable S 88,806 ‘39 521§ 25,501
7 Anventories Lol IDEAASE 0,800 e

et 4SBOAT S B ATE
o4z 798m
87,013 5

1. Restricted fund bafances . : 530,312
w Endomemands.muarfums i MR s e 547,766
igtar e G oamo wemin L e el waw o

f Temuundbatanm & R, Ll o SRRy
mmcdforcﬂter 4t U8 68047 §- 809,358

§ 1300 5 994295 "S_ﬁ,isz,#és :

Desvgnatad for
_‘ Debt servica:
: -‘Other‘-:::-’ :

deslsnatad fund balances. i

s s1asel s eee4

As disclosed in note 1-R, the above fund equity asset accounts that are noncurrent. Specifically, the
reservations are not available to finance current $348,245 Federal highway program receivable is due
operations of State government at the balance sheet from the Federal government and will be received upon
date or are legally restricted to a specific future use. In the Federal government increasing their grant amount
governmental funds, the reserves represent portions of to exceed their apportionment authorization.
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B. During the year, contributed capital increased
pursuant to the following schedule (amounts expressed

in thousands):

Pn mary Govemment - .‘

Internal Service; .
Central Management Semces S
Statistical Services: F!evolvmg Fund

.Department of Corrections:: :
: Workmg Caprtal Hevolvmg Fund
Other ‘ oo
Totai lnternal Serwoe

Total (Memorandum Only)
: Primary Government '

component Umt -

Development Fmance Authcmty
Farm Development Authonty .....
Other '

Total CQmponent u nit

Total (Memorandum Dnly)
Reportmg Entlty :

s

‘Contributed . .. Contributed
Capital _ FixedAssets ~  Capital
7/1/96. - Additions Deletions = 6/30/97 = .
B57 i L  gaey
8966 § 163 . - -g129.
1,837 e - 48870
18,960 @ . 163 Lo 19,123
18,960 163 L 19,123
18_508 A . 18508
12282 oo o 12282
vl o 2790 |
33530 i, 33530 .
| $ 52,490 sﬁ['zsa s -3 52653.

I 17  FUND DEFICITS I

Primary Government:

The State’s Genéral Fund, from which a significant
portion of day to day operating expenditures are paid,
has a GAAP deficit aggregating $451 million at June
30, 1997, although the cash basis fund balance at that
date was $806 million. This deficit results from
recognition of fund liabilities significantly in excess of
accrued revenues.

The Drivers Education Fund of the State Board of
Education (reported as a special revenue fund) has a
deficit at June 30, 1997, aggregating $13.7
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million, resulting from reimbursement to school
districts for drivers education program costs incurred in
the current year but not paid until the subsequent year.

The Mental Health Fund of the Department of Mental
Health and Developmental Disabilities (reported as a
special revenue fund) has a deficit at June 30, 1997,
aggregating $8.9 million, resulting from workers’
compensation claims incurred in the current year but
not paid until the subsequent year.

The above Governmental Funds’ deficits will be
eliminated by future revenue increases and/or
expenditure reductions in the following year(s).



State of Illinois Notes to the Financial Statements

Condensed financial statements (amounts expressed in

18 CONDENSED FINANCIAL thousands) for the State’s discretely presented
STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997
PRESENTED COMPONENT are as follows:

UNITS

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:
BALANCE SHEETS

ilineis - lllinois . :....East Develop- i : S Hnols . Shary 3

iGrain o Conger- . St Louis . ment Housm_ ...Medical .. . Non-Major
2 Vinsurance . vation . Fin'l Adv ‘Finance . Development . District - Component
i Corporation - Foundation . Autho (R . r Commission " Units -

Assets

Diss from.ather hmds £
Due from:primary govemment G "

s aw

$ 48797 438 % 265

“Other cu«ent assets . _
7683 189 |

Y
603 - § 4282 § 4724 - $ 131662 § 8318 5§ - 474

__Oiherasseis
_Totalassats
‘-Duetoothetfunds" BN Lt e T P e e R 80 0 M
Dueto primary govermment s on i S
Diher:curtant ltabihtles
Bonds payable T
'otherlong-tetmliabimms e A ] = IR .
d Totalhabdrtias AR RSN SR < ’ 1 ) 2627 i)
CEquity] RN : : RO T g : ; g
Wtf'bmﬁdmi e T e o i S S EEE S
Jrvestmentinfixed asgels o e i 0 i AL L v Sl T BB e Be
'Heiainedeamings e LR : E P : : . Sk Sl R :
Fundbaianee"'--‘--- i

P § 3086 576§ 4202 4723 - A30g82 378 . . 284
S Totakequity i TT3086 . B76. 4200 4728 130,682 ‘B056 ... . 473 |
Total liabilities andequny g 3086860384202 8 4724 8 131,682 $ 8318 . § 474

mw==4

(Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

e L B I . Govarnmental . [
O TTiwow T Wingls East. Oevelow " Miinois
L Graln o Consers | BE Louis ment : Kousing = Medical NonMa]or
i ingurance . vatlon - Fin'lAdv. . Finance Dwelopmam District . Component "0 50
Gpirn : Go@raﬁon Foundatiun Authori_y Authoﬂy *Au_th_of__ity Commission .. Units =~ Total
-Res‘:enu‘es' I s 12n9 $ 786§ 7908 B $ 36171 s- 1068 § 821§ 89839
Cunenl
Gapltalouﬁays
Debtservics
.Transters(mxt) T
CAAB0 T ase . e B e e ot ABIBBR e O EY e BT 018,897
o 1,956 """ 437 24451 478 115,144 . 197 . .127,089"
$ ‘3086 $ 576 $4,202 S 4728 80180682 % 8Ya 8284 . § 143926

e ey 13,250 o 1168 434

(Continucd)
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: BALANCE

SHEETS

Continued)

Proprletary ;

and CQIIeQ _

' Comprehensive .
< Health .. .. Housing .. State Toll_

Non-Major

Insiirance  Development.  Highway . Component

_Units

Sl Board Authority . Authority
Due from other funds S R Lo g 1e785

Due from. pnmarygovernment i o '$ . 326
Othercurrentassets ~ ~«~ -§ - 74838 ° 360,679 . 411208
Property, plant, and eqmpment -- B 720 1 791 680
Otherassets . . = 2059776 148,922

§ 3364

105,900

e

122360

Chicago
‘State
Umversig

% 1071=

1 ,209

9,694
103,885
351

Totalassets o T 74,083 "'&2.437,9:’{0 $ 2352131

$ 131,825

- Ligbilties: = e ‘ TR e G B
Duetootherfunds e 8 5775
-.Due to primary govemment B B LS 6880

Bondspayable . - oo oo ST 2,027,502 0 830,850

'Other long-term ligbilities - s g e 850

5 3364

‘Othercurrent liabililes 16,669 210,181 | - 72,848

4
5,054 -
64,690

e

$:1186,210

$ 1,086

= G
12,715
23,085

2106

- 73,202

Total liabilities =~ 00 16,675 2,253,551 1,004,736
“Contributed capital . C
“Investment in fixed assets : Dt S SEeB R
Retained earnings S BgoBgs 184,379 1,347,395
‘Fund balance rhi pa i ‘ Lo '

- 33530 -

25,003

'39,561

'.-_(2’971)"

Totalequty . EADEA 184379 1,347,005

56623

78,649

Totai habllltles and eqmty 7§ 74933 § 2437,930  $ 2,352.131

$ 131,825

$ 116,210

79620

CONDENSED STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

(Continued)

(Continued)

P R N N T N it "ﬁropriatary

Comprehensive . Housing . State Toll
“Health Ins. . Development . Highway .
..... : Board _' Authbrit_y o Authority

Non-Major '

Component :

Units

Yotal

Operating revenues 10 v odenn 8 v 19,151 $ 286,719 $ 316,029,

Operating expenses: ' o0 T8 = _ _
Depreciation = C o e ERE o 247 SRELTT B0
Other =~ Sl f U ggags 172615 233466

5 0205

132 -

9611,

$ 631 104

78 254 ‘

.452 127

Transfers-in {outy - i e ooTmes
Transfers from {{o) primary govemment ‘_ o i A7 324 i L (194)

Operating income (loss) 0 i TR REGY T 118,867 | 4,754
Other non~operatmg revenue (expense) e lTAARA e {102,822) ""30 005

(538)
i 1,675 :

o730

(66,678)

100 723"

97,983
17403 '

Netmcnmefortheyear B Cmo e 4,438 18,418 . 34585

Contributed capital . . -

‘Equity-beginning & o 538200 165961 1,312,830

1,410
123,683
33,530

58,831

1,556,294
33530

Equity-ending .. 5 ogaes g 184379 $ 1,347,395

“§ 58,623

< $ 1,648,655
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: BALANCE

SHEETS

{Continued)

| Umverslty and College

.. Western
bar Illmois

Eastern.
Hllinois

i S;_.:.; _‘ 31 ‘;::. SRS
1458
69,9291
Ao

823

< Iinois i

State Hlinois

: Universltv

Northem ;

Ilinois -
Universitv

sof
i minois

Uni‘.."er'sitv; .

Non-Major

230.

86 $ 5422’”” $
e 5,004
96473
447,828
1,941

192,979
LB
7,631

183,818

_Z1=1_,'144“_

1,199,830
3,042,089
17,138

$ 595§

3A
L7907
1,147

41329
210,869
2,755,041 |
7,175,491

2343212

'$483530 $553332

siozsssz

$ 4454019'

_$ 243,998 .

$ 38602
33017 fl“f-
43826

o812 -

. ..“___ZZ$ o5 s
484
33626"'
39437 .
1116

31 225
. 62,584

BT

4,005

2503

-
456975“ ‘
84976::.“

$; | 5047 $
5274

120485
88257
8251

11606]
44,190
371,668
368,827
98162

$ 210,085 3

s ssss

0482
6505
L7125

12 525942

41329 f
55,041
983s_731 .

-+ 3,720,839

145,555 .

91,257 5

745 58086

‘,14'6,‘663 L

207284

894,453

'.45,152' '

4,946,545 -

121 427

195991

31314 '_ 14203

334960

50474

60,723"}

317'34;#473 o

87835

-_12,717”,‘1'583:" :

171 104 '

(622')-

"1-4:?0.9051 :
1,615,125
1291691

152,741

510,194

335434_;_

407,169:

'-3559566-'

1548&3'

7,579,397

$ 1,029,592 $ 4454019.

| $243008 $ 284838

$ 483530 $ 553832

$ 210035 $

12 525942 3
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State of Illinois

SEGMENT INFORMATION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

19

Selected financial information by enterprise fund
segment (amounts expressed in thousands) is as
folows:

Primary Government

_ Other

. .Commission

Operatlng revenues
'Deprecaatlon S _
.Operatmg income (Icss)‘ e
Operatmg transferin
Operating transfer-out

-Nonoparatmg revenues . .

Nonoperatmg expenses’_. e

Netincome H
Property, Plant and Equ:pment
Addmnns S A

‘ Deiehons

Net workmg capltal

Totaiassets S ‘
Bonds and other Iong—term ltablhtles Co

payable from: .

7 ...... m. (2) (3) G
$ 1584181 § 76930 § 208042 § 1,889,153 °
Soeoo 70D 80 8120 o 1402
; 4677 . 11,908 602,526

570 .
oees o
28311
1113‘4,207

2z .’
2175 - 584,263

e 3999 L 4,220 :
i . 2,406 ...... 428 2,834 :
L2483 . 12606 19,662

582 1185

o107 802

43673 (118507)
85585 1,360,272

43

(188 491)
1 140 480

. eagaze | 699,428

Oparatmg revenues i - :
Otherrevenues 65633 . oo o 30 65,686
Totai equnty 27,966 . .. 79,396 . 52,986 160,348
The above referenced organizations and activities Departments
generate enterprise fund revenues as follows: Central Management Services
Corrections
1 Ilinois State Lottery revenues and operations. Insurance
2 Administration of State-authorized financial Mental Health & Developmental Disabilities
aid programs for post-secondary students in Veterans’ Affairs
Illinois.
3) Service and processing fees charged by the Commissions
following board, departments, and Attorney Registration & Disciplinary Commission
commissions for their operations: Office of Banks and Real Estate
Hlinois Industrial Commission
Board

Board of Admissions to the Bar
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20 RISK MANAGEMENT

The State has elected to retain most exposures to risk,
Workers’ compensation, auto liability, employee
fidelity and surety, and general liability are “self-
insured” by the State. Claims liabilities are carried at
present value, discounted at 5.4%, the average interest
rate for fiscal year 1997 general obligation debt issues.
The amounts are based on actual claims that are

outstanding, historical trend data and known inflation
and cost of living factors. The State purchases minimal
commercial insurance. There were no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the prior fiscal
year. The amount of settlements has not exceeded
insurance coverage in the past three fiscal years. A
reconciliation of the State’s claims liabilities for its
major claims categories for the current fiscal year and
prior fiscal year (amounts expressed in thousands) is as
follows:

_ Changes in Claims Liability Balances

FYS7- . 8. 101,478

- __;_Begin_nin f_?-'-'-;;;'CIaims i '_En_din'g- f
_Balance  -Incurred  Decreases  Balance
FYo6 $ 64913 $ 112880 $. 76315 § 101478
%

19,810 - §. 58798 $ 62490 =

I 21  CONTINGENCIES I

The State offers its employees a deferred compensation
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, available to all State
employees, permits them to defer a portion of their
salary until future years. The deferred compensation is
not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan,
all property and rights purchased with those amounts,
and all income attributable to those amounts, property,
or rights are (until paid or made available to the
employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and
rights of the State (without being restricted to the
provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to
the claims of the State’s general creditors. Participants’
rights under the plan are equal to those of general
creditors of the State in an amount equal to the fair
market value of the deferred account for each
participant.

The State has no liability for losses under the plan but
does have the duty of due care that would be required
of an ordinary prudent investor. The State believes that
it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the
claims of general creditors in the future.

The State Lottery has entered into agreements with
insurance companies under which the Lottery purchases
annuities under group contracts which provide
payments corresponding to the Lottery’s

73

obligation to prize winners. The State would be liable
for such future payments if the insurance companies
defaulted on their payment obligation. At June 30,
1997, the Lottery had purchased annuity contracts to
fund future installment payments aggregating
approximately $83.4 million. Effective July 30, 1985,
the law provides that the State Treasurer may, with the
consent of the Director of Lottery, contract to invest in
securities which provide payments corresponding to the
Lottery’s obligation to prize winners. The securities
purchased subsequent to July 30, 1985 are accounted
for in the accompanying financial statements in an
agency fund at an amount equal to the present value of
these future installment obligations.

The llinois State Toll Highway Authority has entered
into commitments for road construction of $128
million. The Illinois Housing Development Authority
has entered into commitments aggregating $29.8
million for home loans.

The State receives significant financial assistance from
the U.S. Government in the form of grants and
entitlements.  Entitlement to these resources is
generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and
conditions of the grant agreements and applicable
federal regulations, including the expenditure of the
resources for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants
are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. Any adjudicated disallowance as a result of
these audits become a liability of the State.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Also, the State, its units and employees are parties to
numerous legal proceedings, many of which normally
recur in governmental operations, All  legal
proceedings (except as discussed below) are not, in the
opinion of the Attorney General, likely to have a
material impact on any of the State’s fund types or
account groups.

The five State-sponsored pension funds (State
Employees’ Retirement System, Teachers’ Retirement
System, State Universities Retirement System, General
Assembly Retirement System, and Judges’ Retirement
System) and participants in these systems claim that the
State is required by statute to appropriate additional
funds to these systems. The actual appropriations to
these systems for years prior to fiscal year 1996 fell
short of what the Pension Code specified. The
complaint was initially dismissed in the Circuit Court,
but the Appellate Court reversed. The State has filed a
petition for leave to appeal to the Illinois Supreme
Court. The appeal was accepted and oral arguments
have been heard. A decision is expected in the near
future.

The State’s management is aware of the issues
associated with the programming code in existing
computer systems as the millennium (year 2000)
approaches. The “year 2000” problem is pervasive and
complex as virtually every computer operation will be
affected in some way by the rollover of the two digit
year value to 00. The issue is whether computer
systems will properly recognize date sensitive
information when the year changes to 2000. Systems
that do not properly recognize such information could
generate erroneous data or cause a system to fail.
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The State is utilizing both internal and external
resources at various degrees to identify, correct or
reprogram, and test the systems for the year 2000
compliance. In addition, the State, as a whole, has not
yet assessed the year 2000 compliance expense and
related potential effect on the State’s financial position.

The Toll Highway Authority (“Authority”) is a
defendant in a case filed in Cook County, Illinois,
entitled Graham, et. al. v. The State Toll Highway
Authority, et. al.. The case alleges that the Toll
Highway Act violated the 1970 Illinois Constitution in
that the Authority’s expenditures should have been
included in the Governor’s annual budget and then
appropriated by the General Assembly.. The court
granted the plaintiffs’ motion to enjoin the Authority
from spending toll revenues for purposes other than
debt service. The Supreme Court has stayed the
injunction entered in the cause until further order of the
Court.

In addition, the State and its units are involved in
certain other legal proceedings, which, if decided
adversely to the State, may require the State to make
material future expenditures for expanded services or
capital facilities or may impair future revenue sources.
It is neither possible to determine the outcome of these
proceedings nor to estimate the possible effects adverse
decisions may have on future expenditures or revenue
sources.
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Required Supplementary Information

Pension Trust Funds - Schedule of Funding Progress

The following schedule of funding progress (dollar amounts in thousands) for the State of
Illinois’ retirement systems is provided for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the only year
information is available. The actnarial valuation date for all systems is June 30, 1997.

(2) (b) (c) d) (e) N
Actuarial Accrued  Unfunded UAAL as a

Actuarial Liabitity ("AAL") AAL Funded Percentage of
Vaiue of Projected Unit ("UAAL") Ratio Covered Covered Payroll

Assets Credit (b-a) (a/b) Payroll (cle)
General Assembly $ 56,710 143,837 $ 87,127 39.4% $ 9,362 930.6%
Judges' 314,561 704,460 389,899 44.7% 87,171 447.3%
State Employees 6,048,027 7,548,208 1,500,181 80.1% 3,003,628 49.9%
Teachers' 17,393,108 26,951,585 9,558,477 64.5% 5,013,583 190.7%
State Universities 8,376,300 10,552,200 2,175,900 79.4% 2,298,000 94.7%
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is maintained to account for resources obtained and used
for those services traditionally provided by State government which are not
required to be accounted for 1n another fund.
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State of Illinois

Combining Schedule of Accounts

General Fund
June 30, 1997 (Expressed In Thousands)

Public
Aid
Medicaid
Provider
General Education Common Assessment
Revenue Assistance School Program  Eliminations Total

Taxes ' 622,190 18,707 98,209 36,877 775,983
Intergovernmental 329,080 220,004 549,084
Other 87,596 10 102 48,220 135,928

Loans and notes receivable 44,115 44,115
Other assets 11,515 11,515

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1432464 $ 2214 $ 80251 $ 301,465 $ 1,816,394
Intergovernmental payables 709,073 37,984 162,574 3 909,634

50,080 290,667 447,839 (102,356) 3,449,005

Total liabilities 2,752.&75

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

Intergovernmental and other receivables 598 598
Loans and notes receivable 39,208 39,206

Inventories 26,113 26,113

t) (502,014) 50,496 61 (451,457)

BEEREER
Total fund balances (defici

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2260761 $ 100576 $ 290,667 $ 447,900 $ (102,356) $ 2,997,548
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State of Illinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Public
Aid
Medicaid
Provider
General Education Common Assessment
Revenue Assistance School Program Eliminations Total

REVENUES

, ) 1,232,872
Federal government 3,547,656 874,600 4,422 256
Licenses and fees 91,003 649 91,852

EXPENDITURES
Current;

o

Social assistance 1,374,649 1,374,649
Transportation 33,817
Public protection gnd justice 1,267,067

Interest 59,526 ,
Capital outlays 94,298 61 4 83 94,446
Total expenditures 12,355,556 662,560 2,269,917 1,692,515 16,980,548
o

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF
_ FINANCIAL RESOURCES

]
(100,205) (1,307,206)

Capital lease financing 14,833 14,833
Net other sources (uses) of

Operating transfers to component units (1,207,001)

{under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources 576,930 (77,048) - (24) - 499,858
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State of Hlinois

Combining Schedule of Accounts - General Fund

Medicaid Provider Assessment Program
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Public Aid
Uofl Long-Term
Hospital Services Care Hospital Other Total

ASSETS
 Cashandc

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

123,362 164,437

146,361

81
447,900

146,361 $ 123"362 13,740 §

81



State of lllinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balance - General Fund

Medicaid Provider Assessment Program
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Public Aid
U of | Long-Term
Hospital Services Care Hospital Other Total

REVENUES

Other o 72,823 409,512 482,335
Total revenues 200,929 352,059 1124.034 33,454 1.710.476

Capital outléys o 83 ; '83
Total expenditures 182,970 352,051 1,124,017 33,477 1,692,515

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Operating transfers-in 44700 10 17 1 44728

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures and net other

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1997 $ - - $ - - $ == == $ 61 § 61
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are maintained to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes.
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SIGNIFICANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Department of Children and Family Services
DCES Children’s Services Fund--to account for revenues and expenditures related to the federal Title IV-E
foster care and adoption service program.

Department of Employment Security
Title IIT Social Security and Employment Services Fund--to account for monies received from the federal
government for the specific purpose of administering the Unemployment Compensation Act.

Department of Financial Institutions
State Pensions Fund--receipts from the sale of abandoned property. Expenditures are primarily to the various
state retirement systems for the reduction of the accrued actuarial unfunded liability.

Department of Public Aid
Child Support Enforcement Trust Fund--to record child support payments, federal grants, and incentive
payments that are related to the Child Support Enforcement Program.

Food Stamp and Commodity Fund--the receipt, distribution, and year end balance of food stamps and
commodities received by the Department of Public Aid from the federal government.

Department of Revenue
Local Government Tax Fund--to account for 15% share of various sales taxes that will be distributed to cities
and counties.

Local Government Distributive Fund--a portion of State income tax collections that are distributed to the
various municipalities and counties within the State, On a monthly basis, 1/12 of the income tax receipts are
transferred to this fund from the General Fund for such distributions.

Personal Property Tax Replacement Fund--the net revenue received from the personal property replacement
income tax. Expenditures consist of allocations to each taxing district within the State and administrative costs.

Department of Transportation
Road Fund--monies collected for the purpose of administering State highway programs. Funding sources
include federal aid, State motor fuel taxes and various license and fee charges. Expenditures are for highway
maintenance and construction, traffic control and safety and administering motor vehicle laws and regulations.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund--various transportation related program expenditures and the administrative cost of
supervising the use of funds apportioned to municipalities, counties and road districts. Revenue is derived
from State fuel taxes and an allocation (transfer) of State sales tax collections from the General Fund.

State Construction_Account Fund--a portion of motor vehicle registration fees, weight taxes and transfers from
the Motor Fuel Tax Fund. The fund is used exclusively for the construction, reconstruction and maintenance of
the State maintained highway system.

Environmental Protection Agency
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund--to assist units of local government in financing the construction of
wastewater treatment facilities by making direct loans at or below market interest rates.

Mlinois Student Assistance Commission
Student Loan Fund—to account for monies collected on defaulted student loans from individuals and the federal
government under the student loan guarantee program. Expenditures are primarily to lenders of defaulted
guaranteed student loans.

85



State of Hlinois

Combining Balance Sheet

Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 1997 (Expres_sed In Thousands)

Departments
Aging Alcoholism &  Children & Employment
Substance Family Commerce Security
Services Abuse Services and Title 11l Social
for Older Block Children's  Community Natural Security and
Americans Grant Services Affairs Resources  Employ Serv.

ASSETS

Intergovernmental
Other 208
Due from other funds 147 890 656 499

Other assets 8,935 2
Total assets $ 10257 $ 8801 $113947 $ 76935 $ 57301 § 51,137

ue to other funds o ' 19 261 676 556 58 5,101
Due to component units 87 133 230 171 2
Deferred revenues 2,086 , 135

FUND BALANCES (DEFIC
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 424 2,824 2,713 5,350 28,713

Inventories 1,908
Other 8,935
d, undesignated (424) (2,824) 73,866 41,671 27,250 35,836

7
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Agencies, Boards

Departments (continued) and Authorities
Financial Mental Environmental
Institutions Health & Dev. Protection
Disabilities Agency
State Mental Public Public Rehabilitation Water Pollution
Pensions Health Aid Health Services Revenue  Transportation Control Revolving

: 7
4,468 28,310 399 30,164
955 1,241 362 102,667 122,613

150,200 1,46
$ 55278 $ 15279 $ 249683 $ 36059 $ 19,912 §$ 886,389 $ 1465940 § 665,052

56 77 7,734 26 1,068 136,228 83,285 » 39

233 172 2,335
10 8,056 19 78,263

1268446 137,270

2954 904

1,031 9,082 616 21,460
1,464
54,306 (11,069) 42,149 (12,036) 10,040 16,841 (474,960) (21,548)

(continued)
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet
Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies, Boards, and Higher
(continued) Authorities (continued) Education
Emergency  State Fire Student
Management Marshal Assistance
State Agency Underground Commission
Board of Federal Aid Storage Student
Education Disaster Tank Loan Other Total

Intergovernmental 80,028 59,859 39,837 43,733 1,362,330
Other 313 494 31,1686 112,429
Due from other funds 2,173 1 41,100 273,304

5

“*Other assets 1,555 162,156
Total assets $ 102042 § 50,912 § 35281 § 1037156 S 634554 G 4647474

850 57,38
Due to component units 132 10,148 13,665
Deferred revenues 58 24,565 279,873

Reserved for:
Encumbrances 13,599 59,244 1,552,538

Inventories 4,059
Other 2,413
i 23,069 76,734 379,589
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments
Aging Alcoholism &  Children & Employment
Substance Family Commerce Security
Services Abuse Services and Title 1ll Social
for Older Block Children's Community Natural Security and
Americans Grant Services Aftairs Resources  Employ Serv.

REVENUES

Public utility taxes
Other taxes $ 13710
Federal government $ $ 127,564

86

$

Total revenues 45,342 54,175 138,198 241,116 20,677 153,164

EXPENDITURES

=

General government 233,699
Social assistance 151,400
HTran‘s rtation

rlnclpal)
Interest
Capital outlays 9

396 6,682 . 2,899

over (under) expenditures (773) 762 (192,670) 7,017 (7,021) {1,135)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF

rating
Operating transfers-out
Operating transfers to component units (685)
Capital lease financing

)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources - -- - 50,194 4,246 2,406 (322)

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1997 $ - $ $ 76579 $ 63362 § 55963 § 39,726

(continued)
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State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued) Departments (continued)
Financial Mental
Ingtitutions  Health & Dev.
T Disabilities
State Mental Public Public Rehabilitation
Pensions + Health Aid Health Services Revenue
REVENUES

ublic utility taxes )
Other taxes $ 3,350 332,166
Federal government 8205 $ 1058802 §$ 201,756 §$ 154,823

i

a5

Total revenues - 59,803 29,291 1,151,701 255,342 155,379 3,053,077

EXPENDITURES

General government 8,722 ‘ 3,193,415
Social assistance 1,073,372
Trans ortation

rincipa
Interest 1 15,521
Capital outlays 417 156 878 2,304 1,308 458

| i

gg
over (under) expenditures 7117 3,448 53,426 (6,485) 8,893 {156,335)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF

Operatmg transters-out

Operating transfers to component units (8,952)
Capital lease financing 77

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources (1,835) 1,984 12,760 - 7,671 10,196

QFUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1997 $ 54311 § (8,857) % 53,162 § $ 11,560 § 32,757
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Higher

Dept. (cont'd) Agencies, Boards and Authorities Education
Environmental Emergency State Fire Student
Protection Management Marshal Assistance
Agency State Agency Underground  Commission
Water Pollution Board of Federal Aid Storage Student
Transportation Control Revolving Education Disaster Tank Loan Other Total

15,146 222,721
82,479
798280

2,850,031 91,005 987,849 64,196 60,281 189,109 906,390 10,506,126

8
245,424 555 264,825 3,946,640
31,753 1,256,525

2,496,730 52,193 2,548,923

1,745 54 2,272 4,169
481 1 293 16,301

32,733 124 344 57 268 273 34,489 84,240

10,451 (134,376) (293,278)

(926,340) (7.689) (199) {9.421) '(1,268) (105,674) (1,796,196)
(618) (10) (2,986) (32,077) (46,959)
738 3,597 4,418

86,166 101,130 1,337

445 9,183 51,616 337,177

$ 1,110470 § 645644 §$ (11,076) $ 5 23089 § 76734 § 450563 $ 2,682,967
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds
Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Low-Income Community

Home Energy Development/ Build

Assistance  Small Cities Joh llinois

Block Grant Block Petroleum Training Loan
Fund Grant Violation Partnership Programs Total

ASSETS

Other 148 60 208

Due from component units 9 g
Loans and notes recei

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3 397 $ 3,066 % 344 % 8526 § 288 $ 12621
Intergovernmental bles 107 5 37 2 166

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:

Other 8,935 8,935
Unreserved, undesignated (977) (1,424) 31,375 (2,740) 15,437 41,671
Total 4fynd b’a‘lya - - - 31,672 - 31,790 63,362

ia
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State of Hllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
Department of Commerce and Community Affairs

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Low-Income Community

Home Energy Development/ Build

Assistance Small Cities Job lllinois

Block Grant Block Petroleumn Training Loan
Fund Grant Viclation Partnership Programs Total

REVENUES

4

Total revenues 73.822 52,809 7.001 104,199 3.285 541116

EXPENDITURES

Principal 4 ‘ 4
Capital outlays 14 89 280 13 396
Total expenditures 72,889 52,781 3,621 102,429 2,379 234,099

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANGIAL RESOURCES
(933)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures and net other

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 1997 $ - 5 - - $ 31672 § e $ 31,790 § 63,362
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State of Hlinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Natural Resources
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Open Space
Lands Park
Acquisition and and
Development Conservation Total
ASSETS
29
Other assets ' ]

Total assets 5 29674 5 271620 % 27,301

£

Intergovernmental payables 14
Due to other funds 55

Due to component units 171

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for encumbrances 28,713 28,713
Unreserved, undesignated 807 26,443 27,250
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Natural Resources
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Open Space
Lands Park
Acquisition and and
Development Conservation Total

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:

-

interest 1 1
Capital outlays 115 6,567 6,682
Total expenditures 10,560 17,138 27,698

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Operating transfers-i

20,199 20,199

er

i

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1997 3 29520 % 26,443 3 55,963
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds
Department of Public Aid

June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Child Food
Special Support Stamp
Purposes Enforcement and
Trust Trust Commodity Total

ASSETS
e

Other 28,310 28,310
Due from other funds 1,241 1,241
Inventories $ 1,031 1,031

Her agsi :

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $

$ 19,263

Total liabilities 2,793 43,528 150,200 196,521

FUND BALANCES

, 370 .
Total fund balances 45,719 1,031 53,162
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 9,205 % 89,247 % 151,231 $ 249,683
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State of Hlinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
Department of Public Aid

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Child Food
Special Support Stamp
Purposes Enforcement and
Trust Trust Commodity Total

REVENUES

58,

Total revenues 53,559 151,624 946,518 1,151 ,70i

EXPENDITURES

ervice:

Principal 21 21

Interest 1 1
tal-out } .

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 29,442 23,652 332 53,426

Operatihg transfers to component units (10) (10)
Net other sources (uses) of

financial resources (34,650) (6,016) (40,666)

‘'sources (uses) of financial resources (5,208) 17,636 332 12,760

Fund balances, Jul

1, 1986 11,620 28,083 699 40,402
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds
Department of Public Health
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

USDA
Public Women,
Health Infants, and
Services Children Total

ASSETS
an

Other ‘ e 246 16,078 161324

Due from other funds 362 362

Inventories 2,745 6,337 9,082

ABILIT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $
Intergovernmental payables

$ $ 19,430

Total liabilities h o ' 11,040 25019 36,059

FUND BALANCES

i
Unreserved, undesignated o ' . i (2,74 (9,291)
Total fund balances - —— -
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 11,040 $ 25,019 3 36,059
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
Department of Public Health

For the Year Ended June 30, 1897 (Expressed in Thousands)

USDA
Public Women,
Health Infants, and
Services Children Total

REVENUES
Federal

EER i -
Total revenues 63,442 191,900 255,342

EXPENDITURES

Total expenditures ‘ 69,987 191 ,840 261 ,827 !

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Operating transfers-out N (75) (60) (135)
Operating transfers to component units

(under) expenditures and net other
urces (uses) of financial resources - - -

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1997 $ $
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Rehabilitation Services
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Old Age
Vocational Survivors
Rehabilitation Insurance Total

ASSETS

Other 151 151
Due from component units 2 2

Inventories 423 193 616

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 3,325 $ 3,269 $ 6,594

Intergovernmental payables 422 77 499

Total liabilities 3,516 8,352

FUND BALANCES

42

Unreserved, undesignated 10,397
Total fund balances 11,367 11,560
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 16,203 3 3,709 $ 19,912
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State of Nlinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Rehabilitation Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Old Age
Vocational Survivors
Rehabilitation Insurance Total

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 8,700 193 8,893

Proceeds from capital lease financing 4
Net other sources (uses) of

xcess (def} of ar
(under) expenditures and net other

sources (uses) of financial resources 7,478 163
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State of Illinois.

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Revenue
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

State & County &
Local Mass Local Local
State Sales Tax Transit Government Government
Gaming Reform District Tax Distributive

93,217
32953 § 44437 § 50444 § 276,244 § 102,314

Due from other funds
Total assets $

Intergovernmental payables 19360 $ 8244 § 27666 $ 264865 § 99931
Due to other funds 3,667 32,976 18,552 625

FUND BALANCES _
Reserved for encumbrances 25 15,891

ese designs
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Personal

Property
Tax Build
Replacement Iinois Total

$ 331926 $ 48,071 3 886,389

‘s 4830 $ 18976 $ 24152
203,562 613,628
80,408 36,228
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Revenue
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

State & County &
Local Mass Local Local
State Sales Tax Transit Government  Government
Gaming Reform District Tax Distributive

REVENUES
icome tax

Other taxes $ 261,732
Licenses and fees 1,064
Interest and other investment income

NDY
urrent:

General government 89,835 33,934 235,264 1,125,554 818,430
Debt service:

Total expenditures 89,989 33,934 235,264 1,125,554 818,430

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Operating transfers-in : 802,364
Operating transfers-out (162,203) {135,774) (5,010)
Proceeds from capital lease financing

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources 10,604
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Personal

Property
Tax Build
Replacement Wlinois Total

70,434 332,166
1,064

2,658 756 3,414

bR By

859,239 31,159 3,193,415

875,082 31,159 3200412

37.803 840,167
(12)  (370,714) (673,713)
77 77

- (408) 10,196
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State of llinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Transportation
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Rail
Grade Federal/ Freight
Motor Crossing Local Loan
Road Fuel Tax Protection Airport Repayment

ASSETS

Intergovernmental 358,382 10,373
Other 29,011 12

Due from other funds 30,990 21,149 1,500 14

832,619 24137

funds
Due to component units 46
Deferred revenues 10,552 3,134

Reserved for:
Encumbrances 665,902 1 66,693 75,782 § 119
Long-term portion of:

“Other R 1,464
Unreserved, undesignated (2569,213) 129,325 (11,924) (75,782) 3,947

Total fund balances 703,602

129,326 44,769 - 24,137
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State
Public Construction
Transportation Account Total

B3

35,028 33,932

49,158 251,707 %

469,949 1,268,446
1,464
(261,313) (474,960)
8,

- 208,636

1,110,470
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Transportation
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Rail
Grade Federal/ Freight
Motor Crossing Local Loan
Road Fuel Tax Protection Airport Repayment

REVENUES

Interest and other investment income 18,588 $ 720
Other 59,067 69,384
Total revenues 1,236,256 1,172,398 145,670 720

Transportation 1,106,389 470,640 $ 17,197 145,588 4
Public protection and justice 52,732

Capital outlays 31,656 1,077
Total expenditures 1,388,892 521,252 17,197 145,688 4

Operating transfers-in 445410 87,964 18,000 174 984
Operating transfers-out (200,182)

financial resources

Excess {(deficiency) of revenues over
siider) expandit net other

und balances, July 1, 610,890 114,570 45 467 22,437

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1997 3 703,602 $ 129326 $ 44769 $ - - $ 24,137
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State
Public Construction
Transportation Account Total

10,899 30,207
128,451
254,987 2,850,031

$ 172,480 584,432 2,496,730
52,732

32,733
172,480 584,432 2,829,845

172,492 267,176 992,200

(12) (35) (926,340)

267,141

1 ) 2

$ - -- $ 208636 $ 1,110,470
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State of Nllinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

State Board of Education
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Special Federal Federal
Education Department  Department
Drivers Medicaid of of
Education Matching Agriculture Education Total

ASSETS

Inventories
Total assets $ 17598 § 9655 §$ $ 32226 §

Intergovernmental payables
Due to other funds 9 195
Due to component units

Encumbrances 248 8,558 13,599
inventories 2744
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State of Illinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

State Board of Education
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Special Federal Federal
Education Department  Department
Drivers Medicaid of of
Education Matching Agriculture Education Total

REVENUES

" To 16,978 91,528 315,508 563,835 987,849

nu

EXPENDITURES

Total expenditures 16,226 91,527 314,149 553,935 975,837

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

i

(6,914)
Operating transfers to component units (2,986)
Net other sources (uses) of financial resources (1) (1) 773) (9,900) (10,675)

(uses‘)’o‘f financial resources 751 586 1,337

Fund balances (deficit), July 1, 1996 (14,426) - 2,013 - (12,413)
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Debt Service Funds are maintained to account for resources obtained
and accumulated to pay interest and principal on general long-term
obligations.

113



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

114



SIGNIFICANT DEBT SERVICE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Treasurer
General Obligation Bond Retirement and Interest Fund--to account for payments of principal and
interest related to general obligation bonds. These bonds provide financing for the protection of the
environment within the State; the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extension and
improvement of highways; the acquisition, construction, reconstruction and improvement of capital
projects; the construction of facilities leased back to the State; and the development of mass
transportation and aviation systems within the State.

Department of Central Management Services
ESCO COP Debt Service Fund--to account for the payment of principal and interest upon
certificates of participation issued to finance energy service agreements at various sites within the
State.

EPA COP Debt Service Fund--to account for the payment of principal and interest upon certificates
of participation issued to purchase and renovate a building for use by the Environmental Protection
Agency.

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
Iitinois Civic Center Bond Retirement and Interest Fund--to account for the payment of principal
and interest upon bonds issued to finance the construction of local civic centers. Funding consists
of transfers from the Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium and Office Building Fund and investment
income.

Bureau of the Budget
Build Illinois Bond Retirement and Interest Fund--to account for the payment of principal and
interest upon bonds issued to finance improvements related to existing or planned scientific
research, manufacturing or industrial development or expansion in Illinois. Funding consists of
transfers from the Build Illinois Fund and investment income.

Capital Development Board
Public Building/Debt Service Fund--to account for the payment of principal and interest on debt
issued to finance improvements related to existing or planned improvements in building
infrastructure.

Illinois Student Assistance Commission
ISAC COP Debt Service Fund--to account for the payment of principal and interest upon
certificates of participation issued to finance improvements related to existing or planned
improvements in building infrastructure.
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet

Debt Service Funds
June 30, 1997 (Expressed In Thousands)

Commerce and Capital
Treasurer Community Bureau of  Development
General Central Affairs the Budget Board
Obligation Management Civic Center  Build lllinois
BR & Services BR &I BR &1 Public Building

ASSETS

Due from ot ér unds

Loans and notes receivable 25,500

Total Assets $ 438,200 $ 5027 $ 23573 §$ 169374 % 288
" - -

i

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 18
Due to other funds $ 7
Due to component units B % 884

LANCE
Reserved for long term portion of
loans and notes receivable $ 25,500

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 438,200 $ 5027 $ 23573 $ 169,374 % 288
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Ilinois Student
Assistance
Commission
COP Debt
Service Other Total

9
25,500
$ 640,231

$

25,500

$ 2180 $ 1,580 $ 640,231

117



State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Debt Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Commerce and Capital
Treasurer Community Bureau of Development
General Central Affairs the Budget Board
Obligation Management  Civic Center  Build lilinois
BR & | Services BR&I BR & Public Building

REVENUES

Other 342 1,170 $ 66
Total revenues 17,628 1,319 848 10,419 66

ebt service:

Principal 419,063 365 3,400 57,347

Interest 254,296 2,530 11,027 94,395

over (under) expenditures (655,731) (1576)  (13,609) (141,403)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES

perating transfers-out ‘ (89)
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (84,803)
Net other sources (uses) of

(under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources 45,479 2,345 987 59,844 -

ittt . e
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lllinois Student
Assistance
Commission
COP Debt
Service Other Total

1,578
89 9 30,378

480,845

(2,086) (2,989) (817,328)

(37) (409)
(84,803)

(79) 703 109,279
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State of Hllinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Debt Service Funds

Department of Central Management Services
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

ESCO COP EPA COP
Debt Service Debt Service Total

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved, designated for debt service 2,989 $ 1,154 4143
Total fund balances 2,989 1,154 4,143
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State of Hlinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Debt Service Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

ESCO COP EPA COP
Debt Service Debt Service Total

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
_ Debt service:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,316) (260) (1,576)

‘Operating transfers-out
Net other sources (uses) of
financial resources 2,507 1,414 3,921
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds are maintained to account for the acquisition
and/or construction of major capital facilities.
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SIGNIFICANT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Department of Central Management Services

ESCO COP Capital Projects Fund--to account for proceeds from issuance of certificates of
participation for energy service agreements at various sites within the State. Also to receive lease
payments from other State agencies for the agreements.

DPA COP Capital Projects Fund--to account for proceeds from the issuance of certificates of
participation for the construction and purchase of a building for use by the Department of Public Aid.

EPA COP_ Capital Projects Fund--to account for proceeds from the issuance of certificates of
participation for the purchase and renovation of a building for use by the Environmental Protection

Agency.

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs

Build Illinois Bond Fund--to account for the proceeds of bond sales from the Build Illinois Bond
Program. The proceeds are used to finance improvements related to scientific research,
manufacturing, and industrial development or expansion.

Department of Transportation

Transportation Bond Series A Fund--to provide funds through the sale of bond issues for State
highway acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extension and improvements, including the repair
and reconstruction of unsafe and substandard bridges on roads maintained by counties,
municipalities, townships and road districts.

Transportation Bond Series B _Fund--to provide funds through the sale of bond issues for mass
transportation and aviation purposes including, but not limited to, the acquisition of mass

transportation equipment, including rail and bus and other equipment for counties under the
Regional Transportation Authority.

Bureau of the Budget
Series FY95a COP Capital Projects Fund--to account for proceeds from the issuance of certificates
of participation for the construction and lease purchase of correctional facilities within the State.

Series FY96a COP Capital Projects Fund--to account for proceeds from the issuance of certificates

of participation for the construction and lease purchase of correctional facilities within the State.

Capital Development Board
Capital Development Fund--to account for proceeds from bond issues and disbursements for capital
development projects within the State.

i evelopment Board Contri Trust Fund--to account for local, state and federal funding
for the construction and remodeling of buildings, and the purchase of land and equipment in
connection with the various contributing educational institutions, State departments and agencies as
authorized by law. '

School Construction Fund--to account for proceeds from bond issues and disbursements for school
construction projects within the State.

Environmental Protection Agency

Anti-Pollution_Fund--to account for proceeds from bond issues and disbursements for the planning,
financing, and construction of municipal sewage treatment works and solid waste disposal facilities.
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet
Capital Projects Funds
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies, Boards and Auth.

Commerce &

Community

Affairs
Central Build Bureau Capital
Management lllinois of the Development
Services Bond Transportation  Budget Board

ASSETS

Inte rgd\/ernmental 2,272
Other 7
Due from component units

LIABILITIES .
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 2675 $ 808 $ 414 $ 43,098
Intergovemmental payables 8,943 58 3,631

Other liabilities 196
Total liabilities 12,718 895 414 53,553

Total fund balances 40,514 41,122 36,000 1,210 5,18i

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 40514 $ 63840 $ 36895 $ 1624 § 58734
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Agencies, Bds
and Auth. con't.
“Environmental
Protection
Agency
Anti-
Pollution Other Total

2,272

$ 101 $ 47,096
$ 142 12,774

142 121 67,843

4,129 6,549 134,705

$ 4271 § 6670 $ 202548
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State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Capital Projects Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies, Boards and Auth.

Commerce &

Community
Affairs
Central Build Bureau Capital
Management lllinois of the Development
Services Bond  Transportation Budget Board

REVENUES
edoral govemment

Total revenues 2,866 1,049 18,092

EXPENDITURES

Tfanspd}ta ion 1 69
Natural resources and recreation 366
Capital outlays 1,121 36,037

oveg‘r‘ﬁ(under) expenditures i (3,838) (41,941) (112,128) (34,988) (195,886)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF

Operating transfers-in 1,391 2
Operating transfers-out (5,156) (288) (1,477) (3,003)
Operating transfers t onent units (8,167) (60,700)

(under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources (7.603) 9,339 (18,237) (36,463) (29,221)
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Agencies, Bds
and Auth. con't.
“Environmental
Protection
Agency
Anti-
Pollution Other Total

10 22,017

114,780
$ 19,933 54,778
173 195,771

(19,933) (5487)  (414,201)

(68,867)

67 (10) (82,128)

$ 4129 $ 6,549 $ 134,705
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Funds
Department of Central Management Services
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

ESCO COP DPA COP EPA COP
Capital Capital Capital
Projects Projects Projects Total

ASSETS

Total assets $ 8076 § 19274 $ 13164 $ 40514

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 8076 $ 19,274 § 13,164 § 40,514
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State of Illinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Capital Projects Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

ESCO COP DPA COP EPA COP
Capital Capital Capital
Projects Projects Projects Total

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,095) 918 (3,662) (3,838)

Net other sources (uses) of
financial resources (1,434) (917) (1,.414) (3,765)

Fund balances, July 1, 1996 10,605 19,272 18,240 48,117
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State of lllinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Funds
Department of Transportation
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Transportation
Bond Bond
Series-A Series-B Total

ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ $
Brgove: T i o

808 § 808

T iabilities

FUND BALANCES
Resen F entymbran

36,895 § 36,895

Total liabilities and fund balances $ - $
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Capital Projects Funds

Department of Transportation
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Transportation
Bond Bond

Series-A Series-B Total

EXPENDITURES

(42,298)

(112,128)

d
obligation bond issues
Operating transfers-out (288) (288)
Net other sources (uses) of

ce ‘ over:
expenditures and net other sources
(uses) of financial resources (42,298) 24,061 (18,237)
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State of lllinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Funds
Bureau of the Budget

June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Series FY95a  Series FY96a
COP Capital COP Capital
Projects Projects Total

ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 414 $ 414

‘Unreserved, undesignated ) i o ) . ) 1,210
Total fund balances 1,210
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Capital Projects Funds

Bureau of the Budget
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Series FY85a  Series FY96a
COP Capital COP Capital
Projects Projects Total

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlays 19,986 16,051 36,037
Total expenditures : 19,986 16,051 36,037

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Operating transfers-in 2 2

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures and net other

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1997 $ 309 § 901 § 1,210
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State of llinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Funds

Capital Development Board
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

CDB
Capital School Contributory
Development  Construction Trust Total

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to component units 42 42
Deferred revenues 6,286 6,286
Other liabilities 196 196

Reserved for encumbrances ) 86,157 215 4,919 91.291
Unreserved, undesignated (81,832) 641 (4,919) (86,110)
Total fund balances 4,325 856 - 5,181
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State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Capital Projects Funds

Capital Development Board
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

CDB
Capital School Contributory
Development  Construction Trust Total

REVENUES

Total revenues 2 18,090 18,092

EXPENDITURES

netsl
Transportation
Natural resources and recreation
Capital outlays

366

over (under) expenditures (180,117) (16,129) 360 (195,886)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES

ng transfers
Net other sources (uses) of
financial resources 150,328 16,697 (360)

Op

sources (uses) of financial resources (29,789) (29,2’21‘)

Fund balances, July 1, 1996 34,114 288 - 34,402
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are maintained to account for the operations where the
intent of the State is to provide services to the general public in a manner
similar to private business enterprises.
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SIGNIFICANT ENTERPRISE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Attorney Registration and Disciplinary Commission
Operating Fund--to account for the activities of the Commission which include maintaining a
- master listing of licensed attorneys and investigating and prosecuting complaints against Illinois
attorneys.

Department of Central Management Services
Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund--to provide health and dental insurance to
participating local government entities. Premiums are collected from units of local government and
the insurance plan is administered by private companies.

Teacher Health Insurance Security Fund--to provide health benefits for the Teachers’ Retirement
System recipient and dependent beneficiaries.

Department of Corrections
Commissary Fund--to account for the operations of the commissary exclusive of labor costs. The
profits from the operations are transferred to funds that are for the special benefit of residents and
employees.

Department of Insurance
Office of the Special Deputy Receiver--to account for certain activities of the special deputy
appointed by the director of the Department of Insurance. The special deputy is empowered to
manage the affairs of insurance companies placed in conservation, rehabilitation or liquidation.

Department of Lottery
State [ ottery Fund--to account for all receipts and expenses from the operation of the State Lottery.
The net proceeds are transferred to the General Fund.

Student Assistance Commission

Designated Account Purchase Program Fund--to account for bond proceeds used to purchase

defaulted loans from lenders. Revenue is generated primarily from investment income and bond
proceeds.

Illinois Opportunity Loan Program Fund--to account for a direct loan program that assists full-time

Ilinois college students.
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State of Hlinois

Combining Balance Sheet

Enterprise Funds
June 30, 1997 {(Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies,

Boards and
Departments Commissions

Corrections  Insurance Lottery
Office of

Central the Special Student

Management Deputy State Assistance
Services Commissionary Receiver Lottery Commision Other Total

ASSETS

Intergovernmental o 933 10,893 11,826
Other 3,056 4 1,978 17,555 10,144 4536 37,273
Due from other funds 25,103 25,289
: .

¥

233,165

Total current assets 47,635 4,521

vestme_nts 65,594 7,128 72,722

 thar YRR, : : - : : . S ‘ 5
Total assets $ 47635 $ 4521 $ 2366 § 134,207 . § 1140480 $ 31,063 $ 1360272

Due to other funds 18 3,434 1,618
Deferred revenues

i3

Total current liabilities 9,798 4,521 2,366 40,608 15.911 494,860

Revenue bonds payabl

at

9426

FUND EQUITY
Retained earnings:

Total fund equ ‘ ‘ 37.837 27,966 79,396 15149 160,348
Total liabilities and fund equity 5 47635 $ 4521 $ 2366 § 134207 § 1140480 $ 31063 § 1360272
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State of Hlinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Retained Earnings - Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies,
Boards and
Departments Commissions
Corrections  Insurance Lottery
Office of
Central the Special Student
Management Deputy State Assistance
Services Commissary Receiver Lottery Commission Other Total

OPERATING REVENUES
ont

7 ; , 60 ) 1870
132,073 1,684,181 76,930 29,997 1,889,153

op

General and administrative 1,665 122 28,613
Depreciation

Operating income (loss) 10,051 2,012 585,041 4,677 (155) 602,526

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Other expenses

Income before operating transfers 11,875 2,058 - 586,094 3,039 846 603.912

Net income 11,870 - - 4,573 2,483 736 19,662
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State of Hlinois

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies,
Boards and
Department Commissions
Corrections Insurance Lottery
ice of
Central the Special Student
Management Deputy State Assistance
Services Commissary Receiver Lottery Commission Other Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash péymems for lottery prizes . (813,584} (813,584)
Cash receipts from other operating activities 78 1,926 157,180 445 159,629
i (11,668) (176,060) (194,764)

p \
interest paid on borrowing (1,985)
Operating transfers-in from other funds 2

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL. AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets i (570} (43) (566) (1,179)
Principal paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (7,565) (5) (7.570)

Proceeds from sale and maturities of investrnent securities 303,675 11,223 314,898
Interest and dividends on investments 1,835 £8 723 978 3,594
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,835 58 (7,653) 1,747 (4,013)

186,3

$ 386 § 7,323 § 169926 § 11,021 § 234,805

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 1997 $

"Total cash and cash equivalents per the balance sheat $ 43846 $ 2503 § s $ 7323 $ 33046 3 11,021 $ \
Add: restricted cash equivalents 136,880 136,880
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 1997 $§ 43646 § 2503 § 386 $ 7.323 § 169,26 § 11,021 & 234,806

Operating income (loss) ' $ 10051 § 2012 § - § 585941 $ 4677 § (155 $ 602,526
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash )
provided (used) by operating activities:

(1,302)
{8,995)

{43,098) (43.973)

(8,939)

%
(increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds

se) in ¢
Increase (decreass) in deferred revenues 179 365
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 12 (42) (60) (208) (299)
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State of Hlinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Enterprise Funds
Department of Central Management Services
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Local
Government Teacher
Health Health
Insurance Insurance
Reserve Security Total

ASSETS

Other 1,206 1.850 3,056
Total assets 3 12268 $ 35367 % 47,635

Due to other funds
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

05, Horese :
und equity 7,297 30,540 37,837
Total liabilities and fund equity $ 12,268 § 35367 $ 47,635
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State of Illlinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings - Enterprise Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Local
Government Teacher
Health Health
Insurance Insurance
Reserve Security Total

OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
‘Bﬂengfit_ payments and refunds
| General and administrative

Opera ing mcoﬁié “(Iosé)

NONOPERATING REVENUES

Operating transfers-out (5) (5)

RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1997 $ 7297 $ 30,540  § 37,837
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State of Ilinois

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds
Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Local
Government Teacher
Health Health
Insurance Insurance
Reserve Security Total

CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (3,831) 9,942 6,111 -
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating transfers-out to other funds (5) (5)

Net cash provided by investing activities 546 1,289 1,835

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

$

i&djustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
ts and liabilities:

5e m ,
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds o (16) 37 T (3)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 18 (6) 12

Total adjustments (340) (3,600) (3,940)
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State of lllinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Enterprise Funds

Student Assistance Commission
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Designated
Account Opportunity
Purchase Loan
Program Program Total

ASSETS

ntergovernmental 10,893
Other 638 10,144
Prepaid expenses 807 222 1,029

. Restrict

Loans and notes receivable : 722,083 24,313 746,396

Restricted assets 160,687 160,687
Property, plant and equipment, net 232 232

Total as

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 13,420 $ 13,420
Notes payable, current 95,954 95,954

bl 200

Revenue bonds payable 609,111 30,317 639,428
Total liabilities 1,026,685 34,399 1,061,084

Aing
R

eserved for,
Revenue bond and note retirement 73,794 5,602 79,396
Other
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State of Hlinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings - Enterprise Funds
Student Assistance Commission

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Designated
Account Opportunity
Purchase Loan
Program Program Total

OPERATING REVENUES
te  othiar i

OPERATING EXPENSES
Costs of sales and services 675 675
e o

Other 2,646 2,646
Total operating expenses 71,578 675 72,253

Investm 768
Interest expense (2,406) (2,408)

Net income (loss) 2,660 (a77) 2,483
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds
Student Assistance Commission
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Designated
Account Opportunity
Purchase Loan
Program Program Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

176,060)
(39,089)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

pefé ing -ou u
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(309,730) (2,321) (312,051)
303,675 303,675
: il

£

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 45,483 (3.763) 4A1‘.,720
Cash and cash equivalents, Jul 122,608 5,698 128,206

Total cash and cash equivalents per the balance sheet $ 31,211 % 1835 § 33,046
Add: restricted cash equivalents 136,880

onciliation of operati
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income $ 3216 % 1,461 % 4,677
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

o by

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (48,919) 5,821 (43,098)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (769) 103 (666)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (175) (175)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are maintained to account for the operations of state
agencies which render services to other state agencies or governmental
units on a cost-reimbursement basis.
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SIGNIFICANT INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Central Management Services

State Garage Revolving Fund--to account for the operation and maintenance of State garages
including the servicing and repair of all automotive equipment owned or controlled by the State.

Revenues consist of charges to user agencies.

Statistical Services Revolving Fund--to account for the purchase, maintenance and operation of
electronic data processing and information devices used by State agencies. Revenues consist of
charges from the user agencies.

Communications Revolving Fund--to account for the expenses related to telecommunications services
for State agencies. Revenues consist of reimbursements from user agencies.

Health Insurance Reserve Fund--to account for the self-insurance medical and dental plan for State
employees and qualified dependents. This fund records all contributions, appropriations, interest,
dividends and expenses related to the plan.

Department of Corrections
Working Capital Revolving Fund--to account for the income and expenses associated with the
industrial operations at the several State institutions.
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet

Internal Service Funds
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments
Corrections
Central Working
Management Capital
Services Revolving Other Total

ASSETS

Other o 985 287 > 274

Due from other funds 90,278 4,370 349 94,997
Due from component units 4127 11 3 4,141

Restricted assets 108 108
Property, plant and equipment, net 41,045 8,439 226 49,710

35

&

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5 92823 § 3963 % 233§ 97,019
Intergovernmental payables a1 41

Dy

Total current liabilities 1 17,159 5,632 783 123,574

Other obligations 8,913 13 8,926

Contributed capital 9,292 9,129 702 19,123
Retained earnings, unreserved 84,621 16,035 1,520 102,176

Total fund equity 93,913 25,164 2,222 121,299
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings

Internal Services Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments
Corrections
Central Working
Management Capital
Services Revolving Other Total

OPERATING REVENUES
& i sl

Total operating revenues 823.230 42,641 4911 870782

OPERATING EXPENSES

ral and
Depreciation
Other

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 2,773 5

Income before operating transfers 211,106 1,959 157 213,222
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State of Hlinois

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments

Corrections
Central Working
Management Capital
Services Revolving Other Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from other operating activities
Cash payments for other operating activities (506) (385) (891)
Net cash provided by operating activities 222,895 3,132 33 226,060
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTH ~' -

8,5 4)'"
53 53
(18)  (178,074)

Other noncapital financing activities
‘ Net cash prowded (used) by noncapltal fi nancmg actlvmes

Interest paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (435) ®) ©(443)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (29,035) (978) (92) (30,105)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

20,654
70,490

provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 206058 § 1,929 % 143 $ 208,130

Provision for uncollectible ac
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 496 383 15 894

(Increase) decreas
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (55,652) (869) (174) (56,695)
Increase (decrease) in mtergovernmental payables (32) (29) () (63)

29

Total adjustments 16,837 1,203 (110) 17,930
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 222895 $ 3,132 % 33 % 226,060
Fair market value $ 933 ¢ 23 % 3 956
Transfers from General Fixed Assets:
Fair market value § - $ 218 § -~ 3 219
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State of lllinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Internal Service Funds
Department of Central Management Services
June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Statistical Commun- Health
Garage Services ications Insurance
Revolving Revolving Revolving Reserve Total

ASSETS

Other
Due from other funds 5,820 23,270 19,379

Due from component units 6 11

Restricted assets 108 108
Property, plant and equipment, net 3,510 18,031 19,504 41,045

s
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 4614 $ 5316 $§ 12,042 §$ 70,851 $ 92,823
Intergovernmental payables 1 40

th
Total current liabilities 7612 20,030 17,924 71,593 117,159
cher obligations 2,057 4,976 1,880 8,913

Contributed capital 1,078 8,157 57 ) 9,292
Retained earnings, unreserved 671 35,352 48,598 84,621

Total fund equity 1,749 43,509 48,655 - 93,913
ilitie eqii EeEi TR BT ;
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State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings - Internal Service Funds
Department of Central Management Services

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Statistical Commun- Health
Garage Services ications Insurance
Revolving Revolving Revolving Reserve Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Total operating revenues 29,707 73,507 101,877 618,139 823,230

OPERATING EXPENSES

General and administrative 7,06 1,506 6,450 6,154 21,176
Depreciation 919 9,479 5,152 15,550
Oth 1,073 6,713 6,751 14,537

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income

Income (loss) before operating transfers {528) 13,229 19,871 178,534 211,106

Net income (_Ipss) 7 _ (532) 13,722 19,857 - 33,047
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State of Hllinois

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Internal Service Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Statistical Health
Garage Services Communications Insurance
Revolving Revolving Revolving Reserve Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash recemts from other<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>